1998 REPORT OF THE SHARK EVALUATION WORKSHOP

NOAA Fisheries: Highly Migratory Species

SEDAR77-RD58

Received: 8/25/2023



This information is distributed solely for the purpose of pre-dissemination peer review. It does not represent and should not be construed to represent any agency determination or policy.

1998 REPORT OF THE SHARK EVALUATION WORKSHOP

-

June, 1998

NOAA, National Marine Fisheries Service Southeast Fisheries Science Center 3500 Delwood Beach Road Panama City, FL 32408

SUMMARY

This report was prepared in support of the Atlantic Shark Fishery Management Plan to provide an update on the status of shark resources in waters off the U.S. Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico coasts. To that end a Shark Evaluation Workshop (SEW) was held at the Southeast Fisheries Science Center, Panama City Facility, 22-26 June 1998. The 1998 Workshop focused on the large coastal shark grouping. The Workshop format was a mechanism for the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) to obtain input into the process of scientific evaluation of shark status. This Report represents a summary and conclusions derived from analyses, which were largely the basis of discussions at the Workshop. However, this Report is a product of the scientific evaluation process of NMFS; and while every effort was made to consider the scientific viewpoints that were discussed at the Workshop, ultimately the Report represents the balancing of scientific views by NMFS and is not necessarily a consensus of those participating in the Workshop.

The 1996 SEW report had concluded that catch rates of many of the species and species groups declined by about 50 to 75% from the early 1970's to the mid 1980's, but that the rapid rate of decline that characterized the stocks in the early 1980's had slowed significantly in the 1990's. Partially based on results from the 1996 SEW report, a target of a 50% reduction in large coastal catch (relative to 1995) was selected. This was to be achieved through a 50% reduction in the commercial quota and through a reduction to a 2 fish bag limit in the recreational sector. The 1997 data indicated that commercial catches were, indeed, reduced relative to 1995 by more than 50% in numbers. However, recreational catches were reduced by only 12%. The recreational catch in numbers in 1997 was estimated to be greater than the commercial catches.

The most recent catch rate data corresponding to 1996 and 1997 continue to show inconsistent trends either upward or downward, and many of these trends are statistically insignificant. However, this is expected: although the fishery has now been regulated for five years, given that the expected rates of change in shark abundance are low and that the measures of stock abundance used are uncertain, a longer time series of catch rate estimates will be required to detect significant changes in stock size since implementation of the most recent management measures. For large coastal catch rate indices covering the recent period (1993-97, since the advent of the FMP), 3 of 7 indices exhibit negative slopes (2 statistically significant) and 4 indicate positive slopes (1 significant). The largest annual rate of increase from these indices during this period was 17%, while the largest decrease was 29%. For sandbar during the period 1993-97, 4 of 5 indices exhibit positive slopes (1 significant) and only 1 showed a negative slope (not significant). The largest annual rate of increase from these sandbar indices during this period was 37%, while the only one exhibiting a negative slope, decreased at 1% annually. For blacktip during the period 1993-97, 2 of the 5 indices exhibit positive slopes and 3 indicate negative slopes. One of the positive slope indices and one of the negative slope indices were significant. The annual rate of change from these blacktip indices ranged from 34% to -19%.

Production model analyses utilizing catch, catch rate and demographic data were integrated using Bayesian statistical techniques. For the large coastal aggregation: current (1998) stock size was estimated to be between 30 and 36% of MSY levels, and 1997 catch was estimated to be 218-233% of MSY (the ranges are defined by the mean values from two alternative catch scenarios). When analyses were disaggregated into sandbar and blacktip sharks, then for sandbar current stock size was estimated to be between 58 and 70% of MSY levels, and 1997 catch was estimated to be 85-134% of MSY. For blacktip, current stock size was estimated to be between 58 and 70% of MSY levels, and 1997 catch was estimated to be 85-134% of MSY. For blacktip, current stock size was estimated to be between 44 and 50% of MSY levels, and 1997 catch was estimated to be 163-184% of MSY. Thus, projections indicated that the large coastal aggregate complex might still require additional reductions in effective fishing mortality rate in order to ensure increases of this resource toward MSY. For the blacktip shark, projections also indicated a need for additional reductions, but it is unclear whether reductions in the U.S. alone would achieve the intended goals. Projections for sandbar were more optimistic, suggesting that current catches are closer to replacement levels.

On the basis of recent life history analyses of the sandbar shark showing that large juvenile and subadult individuals are likely to be the most sensitive stages in this species, it was concluded that management approaches should be aimed at reducing fishing mortality in these stages. A minimum size limit of about 140 cm fork length on the "sandbar-like" ridgeback sharks was identified as a possible strategy to reduce mortality in juvenile and subadult stages of sandbar sharks. Additionally, using similar life history arguments, a minimum size was also suggested for the "blacktip-like" non-ridgeback sharks as a strategy for reducing fishing mortality. However, in the case of blacktip, it is expected that a commercial minimum size might not achieve desired results due to mortality of undersized blacktips during normal fishing operations.

Although the lack of data do not allow modeling analyses for dusky sharks, this species has exhibited a low frequency of occurrence in recent periods and has a life history that is especially susceptible to overfishing. Therefore, dusky sharks may warrant special concern.

To continue improving shark stock assessments, the need for continued collection of species- and size-specific catch (landed and discarded, U.S. and non-U.S.) and effort data and fishery-independent measures of shark abundance and productivity was recognized. While notable improvements in species-specific catch information have been made for a portion of the recent catches through observer data collections and several fishery-independent measures of

abundance, improved assessment advice will only result if these efforts are maintained and increased.

Every effort should be made to manage species separately. New analyses indicate that individual species are responding differently to exploitation (as was suspected in previous SEW Reports). Management of large coastal aggregates can result in excessive regulation on some species and excessive risk of overfishing on others.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY	1
TABLE OF CONTENTS	4
BACKGROUND	6
1. TRENDS IN ABUNDANCE	7
2. BIOLOGICAL PARAMETERS	9
2.1. Vital Rates	9
2.2. Life Stage Modeling, Minimum Size Limits, and Nursery Areas	10
3. CATCH AND LANDINGS	12
4. POPULATION MODELING	18
 4.1. Model Applications 4.1.a. Trends in Catch Rates 4.1.b. Demographic Method 4.1.c. Production Model in A Bayesian Framework 	20 20 21 22
4.2. Model Projections	27
4.3. Summary of Model, Projections and CPUE Results	28
5. RESOURCE STATUS	30
5.1. Large Coastal Sharks 5.1.a. Maximum Sustainable Yield 5.1.b. Total Allowable Catch	30 30 30
5.2. Small Coastal Sharks	31
5.3. Pelagic Sharks	32
6. MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	33
7. RESEARCH RECOMMENDATIONS	35

8. REFERENCES CITED	37
9. GLOSSARY	38
10. LIST OF PARTICIPANTS	39
11. LIST OF DOCUMENTS	40
APPENDICES	43
Appendix 1. CPUE Series	43
Appendix 2. Production Model Analyses and Projections	54
FIGURES	98

.*

BACKGROUND

120

- 13 -

The Fishery Management Plan (FMP) for Sharks of the Atlantic Ocean was implemented on 26 April 1993. The objectives of the FMP (p. 76) are to: 1) prevent overfishing of shark resources; 2) encourage management of shark resources throughout their range; 3) establish a shark resource data collection, research, and monitoring program; and 4) increase the benefits from shark resources to the U.S. while reducing waste, consistent with the other objectives. During preparation of the FMP, it was determined that stocks of Atlantic large coastal sharks were below the level required to produce the maximum sustainable yield (MSY). Accordingly, the FMP included a recovery plan designed to rebuild the resource to the MSY level, with annual total allowable catch (TAC) increasing as the rebuilding plan progressed.

A number of regulations were implemented to limit fishing mortality of shark resources in the U.S. western Atlantic and achieve FMP objectives. These include quotas for the large coastal and pelagic categories, recreational bag limits, a trip limit for large coastal species of 4,000 lb. per trip, and prohibition of the practice of removing the fins from a shark and discarding the carcass. In addition, the FMP calls for an annual evaluation of information on shark landings, current stock condition, MSY, and information on which to base the TAC. This information is to be developed by the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and submitted to the Operations Team as specified in the FMP.

To facilitate the evaluation in 1994, NMFS convened a group of scientists to examine the available data on shark resources and provide appropriate scientific advice. The Shark Evaluation Workshop (SEW) was held in Miami in the Southeast Fisheries Science Center (SEFSC) in March 1994. The most important conclusion from the Workshop Report was that "the weight of the evidence does not support the previous (FMP) recommendation that the 1994 or 1995 TAC should automatically increase". The SEW Report therefore recommended that "the projected quota increase for 1995 should be delayed indefinitely". Based on this recommendation, the FMP rebuilding plan, particularly the projected 1995 quota increases for large coastal sharks were rejected. The large coastal quota for 1995 and 1996 remained at the 1994 level of 2,570 mt. This quota would also apply in future years, unless future scientific analyses indicated otherwise in order to meet FMP objectives and/or to promote rebuilding of the shark resource.

A second meeting of the Shark Evaluation Workshop was held June 4-6, 1996 at the Southeast Fisheries Science Center in Miami, FL. An important conclusion from the Workshop Report was that "additional reductions in fishing mortality would improve the probability of stock increases for Large Coastal sharks. Analyses indicate that recovery is more likely to occur with reductions in effective fishing mortality rate of 50% or more". After consideration of the 1996 SEW Report by the NMFS Shark Operations Team and other pertinent factors, on April 2, 1997, NMFS implemented the following actions under the shark FMP: 1) reduced the annual commercial quota for large coastal sharks by 50% from 2,570 metric tons dressed weight (mt dw) to 1,285 mt dw; 2) established a commercial quota of 1,760 mt dw for small coastal sharks; 3) reduced the recreational bag limit to 2 sharks per vessel per trip for all Atlantic sharks, with an additional allowance of 2 Atlantic sharpnose sharks per person per trip; 4) prohibited all directed (commercial and recreational) fishing for 5 species of sharks (whale, basking, white, sand tiger,

and bigeye sand tiger); 5) established a catch-and-release only recreational fishing allowance for white sharks; 6) prohibited filleting of sharks at sea; and 7) reemphasized the requirement for species-specific identification by all vessel owners or operators, dealers, and tournament operators of all sharks landed.

The Shark Evaluation Workshop was not reconvened in 1995 and 1997, because the elapsed time of new regulatory measures and the amount of new information collected in one year were not sufficient to warrant a full new evaluation each year. However, an annual report was prepared to represent the 1995 and 1997 evaluations required by the FMP (SB-IV-40 and SB-IV-32); these were updates to the Workshop Reports prepared in 1994 (SB-IV-39) and 1996 (SB-IV-31), respectively.

A third meeting of the SEW was held June 22-26, 1998 at the Southeast Fisheries Science Center in Panama City, FL. The objectives of the workshop were to review the additional data that has accumulated since the implementation of the FMP and to evaluate changes in status of the shark Large Coastal Group.

1. TRENDS IN ABUNDANCE

Numerous catch rate series for sharks were examined: a total of 76 time series of CPUE data were considered for evaluation (Appendix Table 1). The primary differences between the series presented in this document compared with those of the 1996 SEW are:

- For the shark observer time series (SHARK Observer), data for 1996 and 1997 were added and indices for 1994-97 inclusive were aggregated over areas and recalculated for aggregated large coastals, sandbar, blacktip and tiger sharks based on information in SB-IV-2;
- For the North Carolina time series (NC # and NC KG), the years 1990 onwards were excluded because the catch rates were expressed in terms of catch per trip and trip limits were implemented in 1990 resulting in many of the largest vessels in the fleet exiting the fishery;
- For the Virginia longline survey (Virginia LL, all species and species groups), sample sizes for the years 1974-79 inclusive and 1982-89 inclusive were extremely small so these had previously been aggregated and assigned to the years 1976 and 1986 respectively (with no entries for the other years). It was determined that this approach could bias annual trends in abundance so the previously aggregated years were disaggregated and reported on an annual basis. Values in Appendix Table 1 with the CV reported as 1.0 represent very small sample sizes and were excluded from assessment runs;
- For the Large Pelagic Survey (LPS), previous time series for sandbar and dusky sharks were omitted based on evidence of serious problems with species misidentification. Instead, a new aggregated large coastal index was created using GLM analysis and added to the series analyzed. Previous series for hammerhead, blue and mako sharks were retained and updated by adding two more years of data and re-running GLM analyses;
- An additional two years of data were added to each of the pelagic logbook series (pelagic logbook), and GLM analyses were re-run resulting in changes to the absolute numbers tabulated (although the historic trends generally remained similar) for each series (aggregated

large coastals, sandbar, blacktip, dusky, night, silky, hammerhead, tiger, aggregated pelagics, blue, mako, thresher, and oceanic whitetip sharks);

- The Marine Recreational Fisheries Statistics Survey (MRFSS) data for Texas headboats (MRFSS,HBOAT,TX) was split into two separate time series to reflect the fact that bag limits for recreational fisheries came into existence in 1993. The series was updated to 1997;
- Two more years of data (1996 and 1998) were added to the NMFS longline survey conducted out of the northeast region (NMFS LL NE). These surveys were conducted at the same time of year (spring) as the 1989 and 1991 surveys, although there were some changes in gear between the two pairs of years. The 1986 survey was conducted in the summer and is placed in parentheses in the table because it is not believed to be comparable to the later years. Nominal indices of CPUE were added to the table for additional individual species commonly caught in the surveys (sandbar, blacktip, dusky, scalloped hammerhead, tiger, and sharpnose sharks);
- Several new series of fishery-independent data were created from the NMFS longline survey conducted out of the southeast region (NMFS LL SE), including an aggregate large coastal index and individual indices for sandbar, blacktip and tiger sharks. This survey has now been conducted for three consecutive years (1995-97) using a standardized sampling design;
- A new time series based on the Oregon II groundfish survey data was created for aggregate small coastals; however, since sharpnose sharks dominate the shark bycatch, this index essentially mirrors the existing sharpnose shark index;

The remaining series were not updated over those reported in the 1996 SEW.

Se :-

1. 2. 23 - 100 - 13

- gage

Of the 76 time series, 47 include data for the recent time period since implementation of the FMP (1993-97). The recent aggregated large coastal, sandbar and blacktip series are examined in more detail in Section 4.1.a. For dusky shark, four indices spanned the recent period and none demonstrated an increasing tendency. For the remainder of the species (i.e., tiger, sand tiger, night, silky, hammerhead, scalloped hammerhead, aggregate pelagics, blue, mako, thresher, oceanic whitetip, aggregate small coastals, sharpnose and bonnethead sharks), there was little if any indication of a recent increasing trend for any series, with the possible exception of one or two series for blue shark and one for oceanic whitetip shark.

Of the 76 time series, 6 are expressed in units of biomass and the rest in units of numbers; thus, most of the subsequent analyses were restricted to the series using numbers. All relevant numbers-based series were used in assessment analyses: 17 series for aggregated large coastal species; 8 for sandbar sharks alone; and 7 for blacktip alone (the biomass index from the Gulf reeffish logbooks was considered along with the indices based on numbers because it was believed that average size had not changed markedly over the duration of the series and because the fishery on which this index is based occurs in the same area as the center of concentration of blacktip sharks). Assessments for other individual large coastal species, pelagic and small coastal categories (represented by a total of 40 time series) were not conducted due to time constraints. The available large coastal CPUE series were of different quantity and quality; most were nominal (aggregated averages from localized fishing operations). However, others were based on analyses designed to adjust for area, season, and fishing practices for set-by-set catch and effort from fishing operations. Of these, two series covered a broad geographical area: the Pelagic Longline Logbook series provided information for a wide area of the western Atlantic large coastal shark fishery, and the Marine Recreational Fishery Statistics Survey (MRFSS)

provided information across the spectrum of recreational fisheries off the coastal United States including the Gulf of Mexico and Atlantic. The index data are given in Figures 1.1-1.3 and Appendix 1.

As indicated, the available catch rate information represents a mixture of data time series. Some of these time series are based on analyses designed to adjust the catch rates for spatiotemporal fishing strategies not related to shark abundance (SB-III-17). Other time series data sets are highly nominal sets of information and might be highly influenced by factors other than shark relative abundance patterns. In particular, there was concern about nominal observations from shark tournaments. The data were not standardized and appear to be clustered in the early years. Therefore, they may have a disproportionate influence on trend estimates. It is believed that more detailed analyses of the more nominal time series would help to reduce the uncertainty about the use of these data sets for indicators of shark abundance patterns.

The U.S. Atlantic fisheries landings of sharks have been regulated for only a few years. Since the expected annual rates of change in shark abundance are low and since measures of stock abundance are uncertain, it is unlikely that short-term changes in abundance can be detected with precision. For example, even with reasonably precise indices of abundance having CVs of 20%, it would be necessary for the stock to halve or double in order to detect a change with high probability. Hence, it may not be possible to detect year to year changes in abundance.

The large coastal, sandbar and blacktip indices used in further analyses are plotted in Figures 1.1-1.3.

2. BIOLOGICAL PARAMETERS

2.1. Vital Rates

To assess biological productivity of key species in the large coastal fishery, the Workshop focused on improving and extending the demographic models developed in the 1994 and 1996 Shark Evaluation Workshops. The purpose of the demographic runs was to develop a range and estimate a mean for r, the intrinsic rate of increase, for several key species of large coastal sharks in the western Atlantic, based on the best available biological information. Of special relevance were the values derived for the sandbar and blacktip sharks, since these two species comprise approximately 80% of the landings. With a range of r values, stock rebuilding schedules can be examined for their biological realism based on current levels of F, target goals for the stock, and rebuilding time frames. Estimates of r are also required as prior probabilities in Bayesian analyses.

The 1996 Workshop had recognized the need for incorporating some of the uncertainty and variability associated with vital rates by using a stochastic framework. Subsequent to the 1996 meeting a stochastic analysis was conducted for sandbar sharks (Appendix 2 in SB-IV-31). An additional analysis evaluated the effects of uncertainty in estimates of reproductive output and survival rates of four species of large coastal sharks: the sandbar, blacktip, dusky, and lemon sharks (SB-IV-10). In this analysis, age-specific survivorship for early ages was obtained from a life history method relating weight to natural mortality; for later ages survivorship was randomly selected from a distribution of survival rates obtained through one or two additional life history methods. It was assumed that all estimates of survivorship were equally probable. Age-specific reproductive rate was calculated by randomly choosing the number of pups per female from a normal distribution with a given mean and standard deviation for each species and further dividing by two to account for a biennial cycle and by two again to consider a sex ratio of offspring at birth of 1:1. It was also assumed that all mature females were reproductively active in any given year regardless of their age (thus no reproductive senility). Both age at maturity and longevity were obtained from published studies and held constant. For the stochastic simulations the effective longevity was chosen with the consideration that less than 1% of females be alive at the beginning of their last year of life.

Table 1. Estimates of mean, maximum, and minimum intrinsic rates of increase for four representative species of large coastal sharks and for the large coastal shark group.

Estimate	Large Coastal Group	Sandbar	Blacktip	Dusky	Lemon
Mean	0.029	0.034	0.022	0.028	0.056
Upper bound	0.113	0.117	0.136	0.041	0.058
Lower bound	0.018	0.022	0.009	0.0007	0.054
Percent of catches		26	53	4.6	16.4*

* Includes all other large coastal species

- 3 - 1

WLATEL -

·

THEF I

stars "

ap

4.00

27 M

12: 4 -

Table 1 summarizes the estimates of intrinsic rate of increase that were considered more likely by the Committee. The upper bound represents the absolute biological upper limit of the ability of each species to increase stock size assuming geometric growth. In theory, the intrinsic rate when population sizes are very small corresponds to the r value used in production model analysis. Therefore, it was felt that this value should be closer to the upper bound of the ranges in Table 1. Thus, the upper bounds were used as prior means of r for subsequent Bayesian analysis. The mean, upper, and lower bound estimates for the four species come from a variety of sources: Table 2 in the 1996 SEW report (SB-IV-31), Table 1 in document SB-III-25, and Table 1 in document SB-IV-10. Estimates for the large coastal shark group were calculated as the mean of the corresponding estimates for each species weighted by their average contribution to the commercial and recreational catches. In all, both deterministic and stochastic predictions reinforce the conclusion that our present knowledge indicates that maximum annual intrinsic rates of increase are unlikely to exceed 12% for sandbar sharks and the large coastal assemblage and 14% for blacktip sharks. Additionally, dusky sharks are perceived to have very little potential, i.e., the upper bound of r is small. Thus, this species is more likely to be susceptible to overexploitation than some of the others.

2.2. Life Stage Modeling, Minimum Size Limits, and Nursery Areas

Evidence indicating that juvenile and immature life stages of sandbar sharks are the most sensitive to changes in survivorship (SB-IV-4 and SB-IV-9) was reviewed. One line of evidence (SB-IV-4) indicated that juveniles (considered to correspond to sharks \sim^* age 1-6) and subadults (\sim age 7-14) were the most sensitive stages. The second line of evidence indicated that large juveniles (considered to correspond to sharks \sim age 4-9) and young adults (\sim age 13-18),

respectively, were the most sensitive. Minimum size at sexual maturity for female sandbar sharks is approximately 140 cm FL (168 cm TL).

Considering the above information together with life table analyses previously conducted for the sandbar shark (SB-III-20), it was indicated that only low values of $F\sim0.1$ should be applied to sharks age 8-10+. Also, a yield per recruit analysis (SB-III-25) showed that values of F<0.1 and a late age of entry in the fishery in excess of the age of maturity may be most beneficial in terms of yield in weight per recruit. This and the above supported consideration of a minimum size limit of approximately 140 cm FL (168 cm TL) for the sandbar shark.

There was also discussion of the adequacy of minimum size limits vs. time/area closure strategies. A minimum size limit might be a more effective and practical management strategy than time/area closures because the former protect fish regardless of time and location and are easier to implement from an enforcement standpoint. It was also noted that a minimum size limit could effectively remove fishing effort from nearshore areas where juvenile or smaller sandbar sharks are more abundant. This effort would have a large recreational component. It is unclear whether displaced effort would or could move to offshore areas where larger fish predominate without incurring a large bycatch of fish. A minimum size would also provide ancillary protection for other smaller species of sharks that may congregate in nearshore waters, in particular for dusky sharks. It is also recommended differentiating between "ridgeback" and "non-ridgeback" large coastal sharks; and establishing a sandbar shark-based minimum size limit for ridgeback large coastal species as a practical means to separate the sandbar shark-based fishery from the blacktip shark-based fishery for management and enforcement purposes.

A commercial minimum size limit for blacktip sharks is not suggested because of incomplete biological information on life stages at this time and different size/depth segregation patterns from the sandbar shark. It was determined that imposing a commercial size limit on the blacktip shark might result in substantial bycatch of other small sharks and thus increase fishing mortality. A TAC reduction for non-ridgeback large coastal sharks including blacktips was identified as a more reasonable strategy should reductions in F be necessary. There is concern about the general lack of knowledge of the fishery dynamics in the western Gulf of Mexico and about the fact that the blacktip shark fishery seems to be juvenile-based and might thus result in future population declines.

Conversely, a recreational minimum size limit for blacktip sharks was suggested as an effective way to reduce fishing mortality in this species and helping protect the smaller/younger stages. This was thought to be a viable option because the recreational fishery for blacktip sharks catches mostly juveniles and post-release survivorship of blacktips caught on rod and reel appears to be very high. As with the sandbar shark, it was also recommended establishing a blacktip-shark based minimum size limit for all non-ridgeback large coastal shark species to facilitate both regulation and enforcement.

Progress has continued to be made since 1996 to identify pupping and nursery areas and characterize juvenile habitat in the Gulf of Mexico and U.S. Atlantic (SB-IV-6, 7, 13, 15, 24, 28, and 35). Further delineation of nursery areas is available from previous Shark Evaluation Reports and background documentation. For the sandbar and blacktip sharks, these areas lie

11

primarily in inshore waters of the mid-Atlantic (sandbar) and the south Atlantic and Gulf (blacktip). Over-wintering areas for the juveniles, however, are still poorly known at this time.

3. CATCH AND LANDINGS

U.S. Atlantic shark catches increased rapidly during the late 1980's and early 1990's to more than 9,500 mt, but have recently been limited by a suite of regulations including a commercial quota. Because species-specific catches of sharks were not documented until 1994, they are grouped by similar life-history and habitat characteristics for the purpose of management. Most of the recent U.S. catch of sharks for the market is of species grouped as large coastal sharks (e.g., blacktip, sandbar, dusky, spinner sharks, etc.). Some pelagic sharks (e.g., mako, thresher, porbeagle) are also highly valued by U.S. fishers targeting tunas and swordfish.

Estimates of total catch and dead discarded large coastal sharks for the period 1981-1995 were summarized in Table 2 of the 1996 Report of the Shark Evaluation Workshop (SB-IV-31). Estimated catches for 1996 and 1997 were added and presented in Table 2 herein.

U.S. commercial landings of Atlantic Sharks in 1996 and 1997 were compiled based on Northeast Regional general canvass data, Southeast Regional general canvass landings data, and the SEFSC quota monitoring data based on southeastern region permitted shark dealer reports. Landings for 1996 were taken as reported in the 1997 Shark Evaluation Report. For 1997, North Carolina (NC) dogfish landings by gear (used in partitioning NC unclassified sharks by gear) were assumed equal to the average of 1995 and 1996 landings. Landings in southeastern states reported in the general canvass and quota monitoring data files were combined to define the species composition and volume of landings. The quota monitoring data provided a more diverse species listing than the general canvass data, while the general canvass data apportioned a higher volume of shark landings as unclassified. The larger reported landing of a given species in the two data sets was taken as the actual landed volume for that species. The positive difference between the quota monitoring data and the general canvass data was then subtracted from the unclassified sharks category of the general canvass data to maintain the total landings volume equal to that reported in the general canvass data files. For the state of NC, it was believed that some dogfish may have also been assigned to the unclassified sharks category. To adjust for this possibility for the state of NC, the NC unclassified sharks were first apportioned between the large coastal, small coastal, pelagic and dogfish categories based on the reported distribution of landings by species and gear for that state. For states other than NC, the remainder of unclassified shark landings were assigned to the large coastal group unless the harvesting gear was pelagic longline, in which case the landings were assigned to the Pelagic group. The resulting landings estimates for 1996 and 1997 are shown in Table 2 of SB-IV-12.

Commercial Landings and Discards. The U.S. commercial shark fishery is primarily a southern coastal fishery extending from North Carolina to Texas. About 90% of recent U.S. Atlantic Large Coastal shark landings came from the southeastern region. The most sought after species in this fishery are blacktip and sandbar sharks, although others are also taken (SB-III-1).

Year	Col 1 Commercial Landings	Col 2 Longline Discards	Col 3 Rec. Catches	Col 4 Unre- ported	Col 5 Coastal Discards	Col 6 Total
81	16.2	0.9	265.0			282.1
82	16.2	0.9	413.9			431.0
83	17.5	0.9	746.6			765.0
84	23.9	1.3	254.6			279.8
85	22.2	1.2	366.1			389.6
86	54.0	2.9	426.1	24.9		508.0
87	104.7	9.7	314.4	70.3		499.0
88	274.6	11.4	300.6	113.3		699.9
89	351.0	10.5	221.1	96.3		678.8
90	267.5	8.0	213.2	52.1		540.8
91	200.2	7.5	293.3	11.3		512.3
92	215.2	20.9	304.9			541.1
93	169.4	7.3	249.0	de la comp	17.6	443.3
94	228.0	8.8	160.9		22.8	420.5
95	222.4	6.1	183.4		22.2	434.1
96	164.5	5.7	184.5		16.4	371.1
97	98.4	5.6	161.9		9.8	275.7

Table 2. Estimates of Total Landings and Dead Discards for Large Coastal Sharks (numbers of fish in thousands), modified from 1996 Report of the Shark Evaluation Workshop.

Column 1, commercial landings - These data are the landings reported under the established NMFS cooperative statistics program. (See document SB-III-6 for a description of this data collection program.) The data are collected in landed or dressed weight. Various sources of weight per fish estimates were used to convert pounds to numbers of fish. For the period 1981 through 1985, a generic factor of 45 pounds dressed weight per fish was used. For 1986 through 1991, an average weight for all species was used. These averages are the ones that were used in the 1992 assessment. For 1992 and 1993, average weights for coastal species observed in longline catches were used in document SB-III-6, but the group felt that these weights were too high to apply to fish caught nearer shore in the directed large coastal fishery. Therefore, a weight of 40 pounds per fish was used for these two years. For 1994 through 1997, predicted weights from lengths based on the observer program (Branstetter and Burgess 1997) and data from the pelagic longline database were used.

Column 2, pelagic longline discards - The data for this column are from the analyses of the discards by pelagic longline vessels (see document SB-III-4). The estimates prior to 1987 are calculated using the average ratio of the discards to commercial landings for the data for 1987 through 1992 (discards as a fraction of combined landings and discards averaged 5.12% over this period). A fraction of 5.12% was also assumed for the 1996 value since data to support a new estimate for "1996 are not yet available.

Column 3, recreational harvest - These data are reproduced from document SB-III-5 and include estimated catches from the NMFS MRFSS, headboat and charter boat surveys and the Texas Parks and Wildlife recreational creel survey. The estimate for 1996 also included catches from the same three sources (described below).

Column 4, unreported catches - These data are from a single source, which owned a fleet of vessels that fished in the Gulf of Mexico and off the coast of North Carolina. The estimate for 1988 was determined from company landings records. The estimates for other years were prorated based on the 1988 landings record and financial statements indexing income from shark fishing (SB-III-30). The Working Group did not have any way of determining the amount, if any, of these catches that were included. Therefore, the Working Group made the assumption that none of the catches were included and kept these data separate, listing them as unreported. The implicit assumption in doing this is that the landings were off-loaded in Alabama docks, but not sold to Alabama dealers.

Column 5, discards by coastal fishery - These data are from the Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Development Foundation/University of Florida observer program (SB-III-1) and show that alightly more than 10% of large coastal species were discarded by the directed fishery in 1994 and 1995. The calculated percentages for 1994 and 1995 were averaged and applied to the recorded landings for 1993 to give an estimate of the discards in 1993. A 10% discard fraction was also assumed for 1996. The discarded species are non-marketable animals that are included in the large coastal management unit.

Column 6, total - The numbers in this column are the sum of columns 1-5.

As reported to the 1996 Shark Evaluation Workshop, information from observer sampling on board directed effort shark vessels (Branstetter and Burgess 1997) was summarized to obtain information on the average size of sharks harvested by the commercial fleet. The measured average size of the observed component of the large coastal shark catch in 1996 was 20.34 kg (44.8 lb), dressed, based on a sample of 264 specimens weighed, while in 1997 the average size of the observed component of the large coastal shark catch was 19.75 kg (43.5 lb), dressed, based on a sample of 224 specimens weighed. These average sizes are inconsistent with the average weights predicted from lengths of measured fish from the same survey program (see SB-IV-12). Applying weight-length regressions summarized in SB-III-5 results in fork length predicted average weights of 14.0 kg (30.86 lb) and 13.72 kg (30.24 lb), dressed, from 2,844 and 5,345 fish fork lengths in 1996 and 1997, respectively. Differences in predicted and observed sample weights likely result from the opportunistic nature of weight measures made during the observer program (K. Johns, Univ. Florida, personal communication). Over the period 1994-1997, the number of shark weight observations has diminished (SB-IV-12). For the estimates in Table 2, it is assumed that average weights predicted by fork length (SB-IV-12) are a closer approximation to the actual dressed weights of sharks caught in the commercial fishery. The observer program provides needed information on both the sizes of fish in the catch and the discards from that fishery.

3 5

11

In 1996 the estimated U.S. commercial landings of Atlantic large coastal sharks were 2,387 mt dressed weight (about 113,300 - 164,500 fish, depending on average size data) and in 1997 the estimated U.S. commercial landings of these sharks were 1,418 mt (about 68,400 - 98,400 fish depending on average size assumptions). These levels represent a reduction from peak recorded commercial landings (about 4,600 mt, approximately 350,000 fish in 1989; SB-III-6) of this grouping of sharks). Commercial catches of large coastals in numbers in 1997 are estimated to be less than 50% of those in 1995 (Table 2).

Recreational Harvest Estimates. Recreational fishing for sharks also results in significant harvests of large coastal (and other) shark species (SB-III-5). Recreational harvests of sharks occur all along the U.S. Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico coasts. Recreational harvests of the large coastal grouping of sharks in 1995 were estimated to be on the order of 183,000 fish (about 780mt; SB-III-5). The estimated harvest for 1996 (from the same sources as SB-III-5 and as reported in the 1997 Shark Evaluation Report) by the recreational sector was about 184,500 fish, essentially the same as estimated for 1995. For 1997 the recreational harvest of large coastal sharks was estimated to be about 162,000 fish. The 1997 estimated harvest assumes that the catches of large coastal sharks made by Texas anglers in 1997 were the same as in 1996, since Texas Parks and Wildlife Department Recreational Fishing Survey catch estimates are not yet available. These recent estimates are lower than the mid-1980s level of about 375,000 fish (about 3,000 mt). About 23,000 unidentified sharks (about 45 mt) were estimated to have been harvested in 1995 and about 27,000 in 1996 and about 15,000 in 1997 by the recreational fishery, some of which might have been from the Large Coastal grouping. Recreational catches in numbers are estimated to be 88% of those in 1995 (Table 2). The 1996 and 1997 recreational catches in numbers were greater than those from the commercial sector (Table 2).

Bycatch and Discard of Sharks. As reported in the 1996 Shark Evaluation document, bycatch of sharks is also known to occur in trawl, set-net and hook and line fisheries. For

instance, in the Gulf of Mexico, shark bycatch by the U.S. shrimp trawl fleet consists mainly of sharks too small to be highly valued in the commercial market (SB-III-23). Bycatch of sharks in trawl and other fisheries outside of the Gulf of Mexico also likely occurs with regularity. Pelagic fisheries targeting swordfish and tunas can, at times have shark bycatches which exceed the targeted species catch. In the U.S. longline and drift gillnet fisheries, logbook and scientific observer reports indicate shark bycatch varies with target species (e.g., yellowfin tuna, bigeye tuna or swordfish), gear characteristics and fishing season. Estimates of the annual dead discarded tonnage of large coastal sharks by these U.S. fisheries between 1987 and 1995 range from about 140-875 mt (approximately 6,000-21,000 fish; SB-III-4). Estimates for 1996 were provided in Cramer et.al. (1997) and for 1997 in Cramer and Adams (SB-IV-31). For 1996 and 1997; approximately 5,600-5,700 large coastal sharks per year were estimated to have been discarded dead by these fleets. Observer data collected from the directed shark fishery (Branstetter and Burgess 1997) indicate the landed catch of large coastal sharks from the fishery represents about 90% of the total mortality attributable to the large coastal grouping harvested by the fishery.

Historical estimates of shark harvest are more uncertain than those from the more recent period. This is attributable to the practice of finning, and some unknown degree of underreporting. The estimates of Table 3, although not based on any quantitative measures of these features, are proposed as a catch series for use in evaluating the sensitivity of the assessment models applied to changes in catch history.

Year	Col 1 Commercial Landings	Col 2 Longline Discards	Col 3 Rec. Catches	Col 4 Unre- ported	Col 5 Coastal Discards	Col 6 Total
81	24.3	10.0	265.0			299.3
82	24.3	10.0	413.9			448.2
83	26.2	10.0	324.6			360.8
84	35.8	10.0	254.6			300.4
85	33.3	10.0	366.1			409.4
86	108.0	10.0	426.1	24.9		603.8
87	209.4	9.7	314.4	70.3		499.0
88	549.2	11.4	300.6	113.3		974.5
89	702.0	10.5	221.1	96.3		1029.9
90	535.0	8.0	213.2	. 52.1		808.3
91	400.4	7.5	293.3	11.3		712.5
92	430.4	20.9	304.9			756.2
93	254.1	7.3	249.0		25.4	535.8
94	228.0	8.8	160.9		22.8	420.5
95	222.4	6.1	183.4		22.2	434.1
96	164.5	5.7	184.5		16.4	371.1
97	98.4	5.6	161.9		9.8	275.7

Table 3. Modifications to estimates of Total Landings and Dead Discards for Large Coastal Sharks (numbers of fish in thousands), to evaluate the sensitivity of assessment models using catch data.. Modifications from Table 2 are shown in italics.

Columns as above, except for column 1, during the period 1981-1985, commercial catches were assumed underreported by 50% and thus the values in the base catch table were multiplied by 1.5. For the period 1986-1992, commercial catches were assumed to be underreported by 100% and thus the values in the base catch table were multiplied by 2. For 1993, the catches made prior to the mid-year implementation of the FMP were assumed underreported by 100% and thus the values in the base catch table were multiplied by 1.5.

Column 2, For the period 1981-1986, longline dead discards were assumed to equal 10,000 fish per year.

Column 3, The 1983 recreational catch estimate was assumed to be the geometric mean value of the 1982 and 1984 estimates, although there is no obvious statistical or sampling theoretical reason to consider the 1993 catch estimate less accurate than the neighboring years estimates.

Species-Specific Catch Histories. For the purpose of development of species-specific assessments, estimates of the historical catch time series for blacktip and sandbar sharks were prepared based on estimated area and gear specific landings by year. Estimated catches of blacktip (Table 4) and sandbar (Table 5) sharks were based on the proportional allocation of commercial landings of unclassified sharks by gear type and region defined in SB-IV-31 for the period 1986-1995 and using the species breakouts defined in SB-IV-12 for 1996 and 1997. Unclassified sharks in 1996 and 1997 attributed to the large coastal grouping were proportionally allocated to sandbar and blacktip sharks, respectively, based on the species-specific landings identified in SB-IV-12. Unreported landings were based on the assumed proportions of the

16

values reported in Table 1 of SB-IV-12: 75% blacktip and 25% sandbar for the period 1986-1987, and 50% blacktip, 50% sandbar for the period 1988-1991. Species-specific recreational catches are as reported in SB-III-7 and SB-IV-12. Levels of dead discarded blacktip and sandbar sharks are assumed to be negligible for U.S. pelagic longline fisheries. Average weights for these species are taken as predicted weights from fork length measures from Table 5 of SB-IV-12 (Rev) for the period 1994-1997. Prior to 1994, values assumed are indicated. Estimates of numbers of sharks caught and landed by the directed commercial fleet are taken as estimates of lb (dressed) landed/average wt (dressed, lb). Alternative catch scenarios for blacktip and sandbar used the same logic as for the large coastals in Table 3.

Year	Blacktip lb landed	Average Wt	lb landed/ Ave Wt	Recreational Harvest	Rec+Com	Unreported	Mexico small fish	Total
1986	1213040	. 20.5	59173	162403	221576	. 18675	15642	255893
1987	1463544	20.5	71392	129552	200944	. 52725	22346	276015
1988	3300321	20.5	160991	139809	300800	56650	29050	386500
1989	3832421 20.5 186947		3832421 20.5 186947 111363 298310		298310	48150	35754	382214
1990	2052287	20.5	100112	94135	194247	26050	42458	262755
1991	2744292	20.5	133868	150794	284662	5650	49161	339473
1992	3610218	20.5	176108	157659	333767	100000	55865	389632
1993	3086965	20.5	150584	109054	259638		62569	. 322207
1994	3829364	20.0	191468	66106	257574	-	62569	320143
1995	2915797	20.9	139512	67046	206558	11118	62569	269127
1996 ·	2121714	22.3	95144	78010	173154		62569	235723
1007	1700004	226	75650	69294	143034		62560	206503

Table 4. Estimates of the annual catches of blacktip sharks based on area-gear definitions described in SB-IV-31.

Table 5. Estimates of the annual catches of sandbar sharks based on area-gear definitions described in SB-IV-31.

Year	Sandbar lb landed	Average Wt	lb landed/ Ave wt	Recreational Harvest	Rec+Com	Unreported	Total
1986	796509	35.9	22187	123661	145848	6225	152073
1987	2285644	35.9	63667	32551	96218	17575	113793
1988	2737938	35.9	76266	64792	141058	= 56650	197708
1989	4215657 -	. 35.9	117428	27415	144843	48150	192993
1990	4026470	35.9	112158	58811	170969	26050	197019
1991	3292594	35.9	91716	36794	128510	5650	134160
1992	3470449	35.9	96671	36294	132965		132965
1993	2483235	35.9	69171	26607	95778		95778
1994	4691470	35.4	132527	14973	147500		147500
1995	3012065	36.4	82749	24869	107618		107618
1996	2004759	31.3	64050	35180	99230		99230
1997	982100	30.7	31990	40929	72919		72919

Mexican Catches. The additional source of mortality resulting from catches of Large Coastal sharks in Mexican fisheries was investigated. Results from an intensive monitoring project of the artisanal shark fishery in the Mexican Gulf conducted from November 1993 to December 1994 showed that this multispecific fishery is dominated by Atlantic sharpnose, bonnethead, and blacktip sharks, which account for 46%, 15%, and 11% of the landings by number, respectively (SB-IV-8). In contrast, sandbar sharks only represented 0.6% of the landings numerically. These results are illustrative because the artisanal coastal fishery is believed to account for about 80% of the total shark production in the Mexican Gulf.

Since blacktip sharks are known to migrate from the western U.S. Gulf into the Mexican Gulf, where they make up an important part of the fishery, an attempt was made to estimate the loss of blacktip sharks from the U.S. harvestable stock into Mexican waters. An estimate of about 62,569 fish was obtained based on the following considerations and assumptions: the annual landings for the "cazon" category (consisting of sharks less than 1.5 m in length) were 4,685 mt (1995 estimate), blacktip sharks make up 11% of the total Mexican catches in the Gulf (or about 515.35 mt), the two western-most states (Tamaulipas and Veracruz) account for 79% of blacktip landings, the average weight of "cazones" is 3 kg (6.7 lb), and 100% of the Mexican catches of blacktip sharks in those two states are animals which have migrated from the northwestern U.S. Gulf to Mexico during the six fall and winter months of the year (SB-IV-8, 36, and 38). Since the estimate of 62,569 related to 1993, a Mexican catch scenario was created by increasing catches linearly from 25% of 62,569 in 1986 to 100% of 62,569 in 1993; with 1994-97 being set equal to 1993 (Table 4). This estimate was incorporated into the blacktip population model analyses and in Table 4. Efforts should continue to obtain better information on Mexican catches, the proportion of large vs. small coastal sharks, and the rates of movement of large coastal sharks, particularly blacktip and sandbar sharks, from the U.S. to Mexico.

4. POPULATION MODELING

يه م

25

2 14

4000

An attempt was made to integrate several population models and approaches. Thus, results from demographic methods (SB-IV-9, 10 and SB-III-20, 25) and catch rates (SB-IV-1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 11, 13, 15, 16, 18, 23, 28, 29 and 30) were evaluated as input in a production model within a Bayesian framework (SB-IV-21, 26, 27, 41).

The demographic or life table approach uses estimates of vital rates to determine the innate capacity that a population has to increase assuming geometric growth. This approach thus assumes closed populations and no density-dependent compensatory mechanisms. In addition, the method does not allow estimation of actual exploitation rates or absolute population levels.

The catch rate data utilizes the frequency of catch per unit of sampling (or fishing effort) as an indicator of relative abundance. As noted in Section 2, in some cases these data have been standardized to eliminate signals that are unrelated to abundance. However, that could not be done in all cases. Nevertheless, in aggregate the catch rates can be used as guidance to recent trends in abundance.

The production modeling approach uses information on the catch history and indices of abundance to determine population levels, relative population levels, fishing mortality history and benchmarks such as Maximum Sustainable Yield (or Catch) and fishing mortality rates that achieve the benchmarks. Disadvantages in the method are that it assumes a closed population (no net migration rate), that population parameters are stationary, and that the population responds instantaneously to the changes in magnitude of fishing. Weaknesses include that the model parameters are defined in terms of maximum intrinsic rate of increase and carrying capacity and not in terms of natural mortality and recruitment. Also, model fits are often sensitive to short time series of catch and CPUE, especially when there are lags between birth and maturity and the data do not span the period where maximum production occurs.

Fishery management involves making regulatory decisions in the presence of uncertainty. Bayesian statistical analysis is a tool that allows stock assessments to provide quantitative support required by managers for decisionmaking when faced with uncertainty (see NRC, 1998 and references therein). The Bayesian approach to stock assessment uses a probabilistic framework for assessing the biological status of fishery resources and evaluating the implications of alternative management strategies (SB-IV-21, 26, 27). The essence of the Bayesian approach lies in replacing unknown parameters by known probability distributions for those parameters observed previously, which are generally referred to as *priors*. The general framework for Bayesian stock assessment and decision analysis includes: 1) identification of alternative management procedures; 2) specification of indices of policy performance; 3) specification of alternative hypotheses; 4) determination of the relative weight of the evidence supporting each alternative hypothesis; 5) evaluation of the distribution and expected value of each management performance measure for each alternative management procedure; and 6) presentation of results to decision makers.

The main advantages of the Bayesian approach applied this year to shark stock assessment are that it deals directly with uncertainty and it allows integration of demographic (vital rate) information into the production model through prior distributions on r. The model applied is still a surplus production model, but it has the added advantage of incorporating population biological information.

Beyond the pros and cons of the modeling approaches themselves, they all require inputs that should represent what they are supposed to represent, i.e., CPUE, average weight, effort and catch histories should be unbiased measures of their true quantities. While some models are robust to errors in some inputs, the models themselves cannot make up entirely for lack of accuracy and precision in the basic data.

4.1. Model Applications

4.1.a. Trends in Catch Rates

An analysis of catch rate data may be considered a population modeling exercise from which we can look for patterns in trends of abundance. An advantage of this approach is that given that catch rate data are indicators of relative abundance, then the analysis makes no assumptions about catch rates being obtained from closed populations or not. In other words, the rate can be interpreted as an index of abundance within an area/region without inferring whether dynamics in the rate are caused by mortality, migration or growth. The disadvantages, of course, are that one cannot directly infer management quantities about the catch such as MSY. Also, the overarching assumption in using these data is that the data truly represent an index of abundance. This is also true when using catch rates in other model fitting procedures, such as production modeling.

Table 6. Recent (1993-97 and 1990-97) trends in catch rates. Slopes and standard deviations (SD's) of the slopes are expressed relative to the mean of the data points (n) in the slope calculation. Slopes that are significantly different from zero at a 0.1 probability level are marked with an *.

		1993-97 Data	1		1990-97 Data	
Index	n	slope	SD	n	slope	SD
Large Coastal Sharks		11 miles				
Shark Observer	4	0.1367*	0.0391	4	0.1367*	0.0391
Virginia LL	4	0.0975	0.1005	7	0.1251*	0.0436
LPS	5	0.1753	0.1488	8	-0.0969	0.0867
Charter Boat	3	0.0470	0.0373	6	-0.0095	0.0241
Pelagic Log	5	-0.2160*	0.0628	8	-0.1821*	0.0203
Late Rec Surveys	5	-0.1163*	0.0515	5	-0.1163*	0.0515
NMFS LL SE	3 .	-0.2870	0.3999	3	-0.2870	0.3999
Early Rec Surveys	-		-	3	0.1563*	0.0063
NMFS LL NE				3	0.0161	0.2057
Sandbar						
Virginia LL	4	0.1051	0.0696	7	0.1876*	0.0518
Pelagic Logs	4	0.1995	0.1584	4	0.1995	0.1584
Late Rec Surveys	5	0.1347	0.0771	5	0.1347	0.0771
NMFS LL SE	3	-0.0101	0.3082	3	-0.0101	0.3082
Shark Observer	4	0.3654*	0.0940	4	0.3654*	0.0940
Early Rec Surveys	-			. 3	-0.2917	0.2165
NMFS LL NE				3	0.1010	0.2348
Blacktip						
Pelagic Logs	.5	-0.1920*	0.0445	6	-0.1385*	0.0387
Late Rec Surveys	5	-0.1277	0.0662	5	-0.1277	0.0662
Shark Observer	4	-0.0856	0.3799	4	-0.0856	0.3799
NMFS LL SE	3	0.0518	0.2945	3	0.0518	0.2945
Gulf Reef Logs	5	0.3462*	0.1252	5	0.3462*	0.1252
Early Rec Surveys				3	0.2285*	0.0272
NMFS LL NE	-			3	-0.0667	0.1734

Trend analysis of recent catch rate data is presented in Table 6. For the period since 1993 (1993-97 since the advent of the FMP) for large coastals: 3 of the 7 indices exhibit negative slopes (2 of which are significantly different from zero) and 4 indicate positive slopes (1 of which is significantly different from zero). The largest annual rate of increase from these indices during this period was 17%, while the largest decrease was 29%.

For sandbar during the period 1993-97: 4 of the 5 indices exhibit positive slopes (1 of which is significantly different from zero) and only 1 showed a negative slope (which was not significantly different from zero). The largest annual rate of increase from these indices during this period was 37%, while the only one showing decrease, decreased at 1% annually.

For blacktip during the period 1993-97: 2 of the 5 indices exhibit positive slopes and 3 showed negative slopes. One of the positive slope indices and one of the negative slope indices were significantly different from zero. The annual rate of change from these indices ranged from 35% to -19%.

Another procedure was used for examining trends in the data which was similar to that conducted in previous years; i.e., to apply a generalized linear model to the available data to scale each independent time series into a single series representing an average species or species group catch rate category. The model was applied to data transformed by natural logarithms controlled for source of data. The annual CPUE values (both nominal and standardized) were weighted in the analysis by the inverse of the precision of the value (i.e., the inverse of the coefficient of variation). In cases where only nominal information was available, or where no measure of uncertainty in the annual CPUE series was available, a coefficient of variation of 100% (weight of 1.0) was assumed. Results (Fig. 4.1) have large variability such that one cannot show significant differences in rates between any two years. Nevertheless, the mean estimates for large coastals indicate a slowing of the decrease in recent years; whereas, the means for sandbars show stabilization and perhaps an increase in recent years. Variability in the blacktip results dominates any signal from this analysis.

4.1.b. Demographic Method

Using the demographic approach in the case of Large Coastal sharks, one argues that the observed vital rates are a manifestation of the dynamics when density-dependence has already occurred. Then by comparing derived intrinsic rates of increase (r) to fishing mortality rates (Fs) derived from the catch data, and also to the various rates of increase required by different stock rebuilding schedules, the appropriateness of management measures can be assessed. In simple terms, if F > r the stock will not be able to rebuild.

In fact, intrinsic rates derived from demographic methods are closely related to production models. Fishery science literature often recommends an F equal to one half of the maximum r for parabolic production curves in order to achieve MSY for the stock. This corresponds to a production model curve that is parabolic (with an exponent of 2). However, it is argued that production curves of species with low production capacity should exhibit maximums which occur closer to the carrying capacity than to the origin (SB-IV-10), i.e., with exponents greater than 2. This would imply that maximum productivity occurs at larger stock

sizes than with an exponent of 2. This also implies that the F which maximizes equilibrium yield occurs at a higher proportion of r than one-half. Then there would be proportionally less flexibility between the F at maximum production and an F greater than the value of r_{max} , at which the population cannot persist.

One should be aware that the above arguments no longer apply if the fishing mortality rates are using an "open" stock scenario, i.e., where there is migration of the stock available to the fishery (note this migration includes migration of fish and/or fishers). The estimated F is for the known fishery, whereas the r is for the whole resource.

The examination of the parameters in Section 2.1 indicated maximum annual intrinsic rates of increase of about 12-14% for sandbar and blacktip. Therefore, it is unlikely that fishing mortality rates in excess of 12-14% for sandbar and blacktip are sustainable.

4.1.c. Production Model in A Bayesian Framework

3.61

Ξ.

dit. 1

10 20

1

94.55

t. 5 .:

Production modeling was conducted previously and reported on in the 1996 SEW Report. The production models integrated catch rate information with the catches into a population framework. However, the demographic data were not integrated at that time. Instead, results of the two types of analyses were compared. This was difficult in that some parameters were not directly equated between the two methods. In this SEW, analyses were conducted which allowed integration of the demographic information into the production model analyses through a Bayesian framework (as in SB-IV-21, SB-IV-26, SB-IV-27).

Since most of the CPUE series and catches were in numbers of fish rather than in biomass or yield in weight the production modeling method was used to estimate numbers of fish rather than biomass. Also, the production model fits used in the following scenarios assumed a parabolic model wherein the maximum net production in numbers occurs at half of equilibrium carrying capacity and the fishing rate that produces it occurs at half of the maximum intrinsic rate of increase (maximum r). As noted earlier, this assumption may not be appropriate for long-lived sharks (SB-III-21); maximum production may occur at more than half of carrying capacity and the F may occur at more than half of the maximum r.

A stock production model was fitted to the CPUE data presented in Section 1, and prior information on the parameter for the intrinsic rate of increase, r (presented in Section 2), and on the average catch between 1975 and 1981 (since catch rate data extend back to 1975 but data on total catch only date back to 1981) were incorporated into the model. Production model fits were done on the Large Coastal group as an aggregate, on the sandbar shark individually, and on the blacktip shark individually. In each case, two scenarios were considered: one based on the baseline catch history presented in Table 3 and the other based on the same catch history adjusted for underreporting (Table 4).

Detailed results from the analyses based on the six scenarios are summarized in Appendix 2. Each scenario shows the mean of the posterior distribution for input parameters r and carrying capacity, K, estimated by combining the priors and the stock assessment data using Bayes theorem. It was assumed that the probability density function for r was lognormal. The

22

estimated average catch for 1975-1980 (C1975-80), MSY, stock size at the beginning of 1975 and 1998 (N(75) and N(98)), stock size at the beginning of 1998 as a proportion of K (N(98)/K) and of the stock size at the beginning of 1975 (N(98)/N(75)), and catch in 1997 as a proportion of maximum sustainable yield or catch (C(97)/MSC) are also summarized for each scenario. A measure of the precision of the estimates (the coefficient of variation) is also given. The annual variation in estimated stock size (N), stock size as a proportion of K (N/K) and of the stock size at MSY (N/Nmsy), fishing mortality rate (F), and F as a proportion of the fishing mortality rate producing MSY (F/Fmsy) are also provided for the period 1974-1997 (Tables 7, 8, and 9). The most relevant results for each scenario are summarized next. Fits to the indices under each modeling scenario are shown in Figures 4.2-4.7, corresponding to each of the following six scenarios.

Scenario 1: Large Coastal sharks, baseline catch. A total of 17 CPUE series were used (see Appendix 2). Each series was weighted by its inverse variance. Model fits to the indices are shown in Figure 4.2. Results indicated that the mean posterior for r was 0.067 (the mean prior for r was 0.113); the maximum sustainable catch in numbers (MSC) was 149,063 fish; stock size had continuously declined from 8,927,100 fish in 1974 to an estimated 1,385,000 fish in 1998; the stock size in 1998 was estimated to be about 15% of K; the catch in 1997 was about 2.2 times that which would produce MSC; and the 1997 fishing mortality rate (0.182) was over 6 times higher than that which would produce MSY (F at MSY is equal to one half of r for this and all subsequent scenarios).

Scenario 2: Large Coastal sharks, alternative catch. A total of 17 CPUE series were used, each series being weighted by the inverse of its variance. Model fits to the indices are shown in Figure 4.3. The mean posterior for r was 0.051 (the mean prior for r was 0.113); the maximum sustainable catch in numbers (MSC) was 142,766 fish; stock size had continuously declined from 11,299,000 fish in 1974 to an estimated 2,081,000 fish in 1998; the stock size in 1998 was estimated to be about 18% of K; the catch in 1997 was about 2.3 times that which would produce MSC; and the 1997 fishing mortality rate (0.126) was about 6 times higher than that which would produce MSY.

• • • •	Large Coastals Bas	seline	Large Coastals Alternative Catch			
Parameter	Expected Value	CV	Expected Value	CV		
K	9535	0.17	11754	0.16		
r	0.07	0.51	0.05	0.50		
C1975-80	284	0.39	327	0.42		
MSC	149	0.38	143	0.40		
N(98)	1385	0.25	2081	0.22		
N(98)/K	0.15	0.24	0.18	0.23		
N(98)/N(75)	0.16	0.22	0.18	0.19		
C(97)/MSC	2.18	0.44	2.33	0.49		

Table 7. Expected posterior values of parameters and time series for large coastals from the Bayesian production model analyses. Note K (carrying capacity), N's (abundance), MSC (maximum sustainable catch) and C 1975-80 (catch in 1975-80) are in thousands of sharks.

		Large Coastals Baseline		Large	Large Coastals Alternative Catch						
	N	N/K	N/Nmsy	F/Fmsy	F		N	N/K	N/Nmsy	F/Fmsy	F
1974	8927	0.95	1.90	1.12	0.03	1974	11299	0.98	1.96	1.38	0.03
1975	8671	0.92	1.84	1.15	0.03	1975	10984	0.95	1.90	1.42	0.03
1976	8430	0.90	1.79	1.19	0.03	1976	10685	0.93	1.86	1.46	0.03
1977	8202	0.87	1.74	1.23	0.04	1977	10399	0.90	1.80	1.51	0.03
1978	7985	0.85	1.70	1.26	0.04	1978	10125	0.88	1.76	1.56	0.03
1979	7777	0.83	1.65	1.30	0.04	1979	9862	0.86	1.72	1.60	0.03
1980	7577	0.81	1.61	1.34	0.04	1980	9607	0.83	1.66	1.65	0.03
1981	7387	0.79	1.57	1.35	0.04	1981	9374	0.81	1.62	1.55	0.03
1982	7130	0.76	1.52	2.14	0.06	1982	9087	0.79	1.58	2.39	0.05
1983	6640	0.71	1.41	4.08	0.12	1983	8780	0.76	1.52	1.99	0.04
1984	6250	0.66	1.33	1.59	0.05	1984	8553	0.74	1.48	1.70	0.04
1985	6047	0.64	1.28	2.28	0.07	1985	8307	0.72	1.44	2.39	0.05
1986	5733	0.61	1.22	3.14	0.09	1986	7915	0.69	1.38	3.70	0.08
1987	5371	0.57	1.14	3.29	0.09	1987	7489	0.65	1.30	3.23	0.07
1988	4913	0.52	1.04	5.04	0.15	1988	6876	0.60	1.20	6.87	0.14
1989	4370	0.46	0.93	5.51	0.16	1989	6010	0.52	1.04	8.32	0.17
1990	3906	0.41	0.83	4.91	0.14	1990	5236	0.45	0.90	7.51	0.16
1991	3520	0.37	0.75	5.17	0.15	1991	4615	0.40	0.80	7.52	0.16
1992	3126	0.33	0.66	6.16	0.18	1992	4010	0.35	0.70	9.21	0.19
1993	2761	0.29	0.59	5.72	0.17	1993	3492	0.30	0.60	7.52	0.16
1994	2446	0.26	0.52	6.14	0.18	1994	3131	0.27	0.54	6.60	0.14
1995	2125	0.23	0.45	7.32	0.21	1995	2811	0.24	0.48	7.61	0.16
1996	1820	0.19	0.39	7.36	0.21	1996	2509	0.22	0.44	7.33	0.15
1997	1585	0.17	0.34	6.34	0.18	1997	2280	0.20	0.40	6.03	0.13

Scenario 3: Sandbar shark, baseline catch. A total of 8 CPUE series were used, each series being weighted by the inverse of its variance. Model fits to the indices are shown in Figure 4.4. The mean posterior for r was 0.10 (the mean prior for r was 0.117); the maximum sustainable catch in numbers (MSC) was 71,264 fish; stock size had continuously declined from 3,311,200 fish in 1974 to an estimated 924,000 fish in 1998; the stock size in 1998 was estimated to be about 29% of K; the catch in 1997 was about 1.3 times that which would produce MSC; and the 1997 fishing mortality rate (0.093) was 2.7 times higher than that which would produce MSY.

Scenario 4: Sandbar shark, alternative catch. A total of 8 CPUE series were used, each series being weighted by the inverse of its variance. Model fits to the indices are shown in Figure 4.5. The mean posterior for r (0.209) was much higher than in the previous scenario (the mean prior for r was 0.117); the maximum sustainable catch in numbers (MSC) increased to 109,043 fish; stock size was predicted to continuously decline from 2,960,000 fish in 1974 to an estimated 941,000 fish in 1998; the stock size in 1998 was estimated to be about 35% of K; the catch in 1997 was lower (0.85 times) than that which would produce MSC; and the 1997 fishing mortality rate (0.093) was about 1.6 times higher than that which would produce MSY. This scenario was the most optimistic of all considered.

Table 8. Expected posterior values of parameters and time series for sandbar from the Bayesian production model analyses. Note K (carrying capacity), N's (abundance), MSC (maximum sustainable catch) and C 1975-80 (catch in 1975-80) are in thousands of sharks.

	Sandbar Baseli	ine	Sandbar Alternative Catch			
Parameter	Expected Value	CV	Expected Value	CV		
K	3265	0.32	2870	0.42		
r	0.10	0.70	0.21	0.79		
C1975-80	170	0.54	126	0.56		
MSC	71	0.55	109	0.41		
N(98)	924	0.45	941	0.47		
N(98)/K	0.29	0.39	0.35	0.37		
N(98)/N(75)	0.29	0.41	0.35	0.41		
C(97)/MSC	1.34	0.58	0.85	0.61		

		Sandbar E	Baseline			Sandbar	Alternativ	ve Catch			
	N	N/K	N/Nmsy	F/Fmsy	F		N	N/K	N/Nmsy	F/Fmsy	F
1974	3311	1.02	2.05	1.48	0.05	1974	2960	1.03	2.06	0.74	0.04
1975	3143	0.97	1.95	1.56	0.05	1975	2830	0.99	1.97	0.77	0.04
1976	2989	0.93	1.85	1.65	0.06	1976	2720	0.95	1.90	0.81	0.05
1977	2847	0.88	1.77	1.75	0.06	1977	2630	0.92	1.84	0.84	0.05
1978	2713	0.84	1.69	1.85	0.06	1978	2540	0.89	1.79	0.87	0.05
1979	2586	0.81	1.61	1.95	0.07	1979	2470	0.87	1.74	0.90	0.05
1980	2465	0.77	1.54	2.06	0.07	1980	2400	0.85	1.70	0.93	0.05
1981	2348	0.74	1.48	2.19	0.08	1981	2330	0.83	1.66	0.96	0.05
1982	2234	0.71	1.41	2.33	0.08	1982	2270	0.81	1.62	0.99	0.06
1983	2123	0.67	1.35	2.49	0.09	1983	2210	0.79	1.59	1.02	0.06
1984	2013	0.64	, 1.28	2.69	0.09	1984	2150	0.78	1.56	1.06	0.06
1985	1904	0.61	1.22	2.95	0.10	1985	2100	0.76	1.53	1.09	0.06
1986	1804	0.58	1.16	2.70	0.09	1986	. 2030	-0.74	1.47	1.59	0.09
1987	1734	0.56	1.11	2.09	0.07	1987	1940	0.70	1.40	1.81	0.10
1988	1640	0.53	- 1.05	3.85	0.13	1988	1800	0.65	1.29	3.04	0.18
1989	1509	0.48	0.96	4.11	0.14	1989	1600	0.57	1.14	3.94	0.23
1990	1378	0.44	0.88	4.64	0.16	1990	1390	0.49	0.98	4.63	0.27
1991	1276	0.40	0.81	3.44	0.12	1991	1230	0.43	0.86	3.92	0.23
1992	1204	0.38	0.76	3.63	0.13	1992	1100	0.38	0.77	4.56	0.26
1993	1150	0.36	0.73	2.75	0.09	1993	1020	0.36	0.71	2.82	0.16
1994	1087	0.34	0.69	4.51	0.16	1994	977	0.34	0.68	3.31	0.19
1995	1018	0.32	0.64	3.57	0.12	1995	943	0.33	0.67	2.48	0.14
1996	971	0.31	. 0.61	3.50	0.12	1996	933	0.34	0.67	2.27	0.13
1997	941	0.30	. 0.59	2.70	0.09	1997	940	0.34	0.69	1.62	0.09

Scenario 5: Blacktip shark, baseline catch. A total of 7 CPUE series were used, each series being weighted by the inverse of its variance. Model fits to the indices are shown in Figure 4.6. The mean posterior for r was 0.117 (the mean prior for r was 0.136); the maximum sustainable catch in numbers (MSC) was 136,727 fish; stock size had continuously declined from 5,191,700 fish in 1974 to an estimated 1,383,000 fish in 1998; the stock size in 1998 was predicted to be about 25% of K; the catch in 1997 was about 1.8 times that which would produce MSC; and the 1997 fishing mortality rate (0.172) was about 3.5 times higher than that which would produce MSY.

Scenario 6: Blacktip shark, alternative catch. A total of 7 CPUE series were used, each series being weighted by the inverse of its variance. Model fits to the indices are shown in Figure 4.7. The mean posterior for r was 0.114 (the mean prior for r was 0.136); the maximum sustainable catch in numbers (MSC) was 156,884 fish; stock size had continuously declined from 6,103,000 fish in 1974 to an estimated 1,441,000 fish in 1998; the stock size in 1998 was estimated to be about 22% of K; the catch in 1997 was about 1.6 times that which would produce MSC; and the 1997 fishing mortality rate (0.166) was about 3.7 times higher than that which would produce MSY.

Table 9. Expected posterior values of parameters and time series for blacktip from the Bayesian production model analyses. Note K (carrying capacity), N's (abundance), MSC (maximum sustainable catch) and C 1975-85 (catch in 1975-80) are in thousands of sharks.

	Blacktip Basel	ine	Blacktip Alternative Catch			
Parameter	Expected Value	CV	Expected Value	CV		
K	5527	0.31	6532	0.29		
r	0.12	0.70	0.11	0.70		
C1975-85	81	0.37	235	0.38		
MSC	137	0.43	157	0.45		
N(98)	1383	0.57	1441	0.56		
N(98)/K	0.25	0.43	0.22	0.40		
N(98)/N(75)	0.27	0.47	0.25	0.45		
C(97)/MSC	1.84	0.49	1.63	0.50		

1.2

1.12

a state

			Blacktip Baseline			В	Blacktip Alternative Catch				
	N	N/K	N/Nmsy	F/Fmsy	F	1	N	N/K	N/Nmsy	F/Fmsy	F
1974	5192	0.96	1.91	0.93	0.05	1974	6103	0.95	1.90	0.94	0.04
1975	4996	0.92	1.84	0.97	0.05	1975	5899	0.91	1.83	0.98	0.04
1976	4820	0.89	1.77	1.01	0.05	1976	5715	0.88	1.77	1.02	0.05
1977	4659	0.86	1.71	1.05	0.05	1977	5548	0.86	1.71	1.05	0.05
1978	4510	0.83	1.66	1.09	0.05	1978	5393	0.83	1.67	1.09	0.05
1979	4371	0.80	1.60	1.12	0.05	1979	5249	0.81	1.62	1.12	0.05
1980	4240	0.78	1.56	1.16	0.06	1980	5113	0.79	1.58	1.16	0.05
1981	4116	0.76	1.51	1.20	0.06	1981	4985	0.77	1.54	1.19	0.05
1982	3997	0.74	1.47	1.24	0.06	1982	4862	0.75	1.50	1.23	0.05
1983	#3884	0.71	1.43	1.28	0.06	1983	4745	0.73	- 1.47	1.26	0.06
1984	3774	0.70	1.39	1.32	0.06	1984	4633	0.72	1.43	1.30	0.06
1985	3667	0.68	1.35	1.37	0.07	1985	4524	0.70	1.40	1.34	0.06
1986	3545	0.66	1.31	1.61	0.08	1986	4393	0.68	1.36	1.59	0.07
1987	3399	0.63	1.26	1.81	0.09	1987	4211	0.65	1.30	2.01	0.09
1988	3191	0.59	1.18	2.70	0.13	1988	3903	0.60	1.21	3.43	0.15
1989	2936	0.54	1.08	2.92	0.14	1989	3493	0.54	1.08	4.02	0.18
1990	2747	0.50	1.01	2.15	0.11	1990	3184	0.49	0.98	2.83	0.13
1991	2577	0.47	0.95	2.97	0.14	1991	2916	0.45	0.89	4.04	0.18
1992	2342	0.43	0.86	3.78	0.18	1992	2541	0.39	0.77	5.64	0.25
1993	2115	0.39	0.77	3.51	0.17	1993	2203	0.33	0.67	4.68	0.21
1994	1916	0.35	0.70	3.91	0.19	1994	1975	0.30	0.60	4.28	0.19
1995	1738	0.32	0.63	3.70	0.18	1995	1804	0.27	0.54	4.02	0.18
1996	1597	0.29	0.58	3.61	0.18	1996	1667	0.25	0.50	3.89	0.17
1007	1/91	0 27	0.54	2 52	0 17	1007	1555	0 23	0 47	3174	017

26

The production model analyses for the large coastal shark aggregate (scenarios 1 and 2), the sandbar shark (scenarios 3 and 4), and the blacktip shark (scenarios 5 and 6) should be regarded as separate. For large coastal sharks combined, inclusion of underreporting in the catches (scenario 2) had little effect on the estimated parameters and the main conclusion is that the 1998 catch is twice as high as that which would produce MSY. The assessment for sandbar sharks alone (scenarios 3 and 4) is not so pessimistic. While the 1998 catch is estimated to be 34% higher than that which would produce MSY when considering baseline catches (scenario 3), the prediction is more optimistic when including underreporting in the model (scenario 4) and in fact indicates that the 1998 catch is about 15% smaller than that which would produce MSY. Predictions for the blacktip shark alone (scenarios 5 and 6) lie somewhere between those for the large coastal aggregate and the sandbar shark, but still indicate that blacktip sharks are being overfished, with relatively little effect when accounting for underreporting (scenario 6).

4.2. Model Projections

The joint posterior distribution for population model parameters obtained after fitting the stock production model to CPUE data and estimates of intrinsic rate of increase was used to represent uncertainty in the evaluation of alternative harvesting options as in SB-IV-26, 27. The alternative total allowable catch (TAC) policies examined included a no catch option and a 10%, 20%, 30%, 40%, and 50% (status quo) catch of the 1995 level, respectively. All policies assumed constant catch. Stock size was projected forward 10, 20, and 30 yr and the ratio of stock size to carrying capacity (Nfin/K), and the probability of stock size being less than 20% of K (Nfin<0.2K), more than 50% of K (Nfin>0.5K), more than the 1998 stock size (Nfin>N98), and more than the 1993 stock size (N98>N93) was evaluated for each policy at each time step. Detailed results of these and other additional projections are presented in Appendix 2; projections for Large Coastal and Sandbar shark abundance relative to K (with confidence intervals) are given in Figures 4.8 and 4.9. Projection results under each scenario are summarized next.

Scenario 1: Large Coastal sharks, baseline catch. Projections indicated that the status quo policy (50% reduction in 1995 catch) would not allow recovery of the stock (Nfin/K=0.01 after 10, 20, and 30 yr), with the probability that stock size after 10, 20, and 30 yr were larger than the 1998 stock size being negligible. The no catch policy (0 quota) indicated that the stock would reach the MSY level (Nfin/K=0.5) only after 30 yr under this policy, with an associated probability of stock size after 30 yr being larger than the MSY level (Nfin>0.5K) of 46%.

Scenario 2: Large Coastal sharks, alternative catch. Predictions under this scenario incorporating expanded catch did not differ much from the previous scenario. In addition to the no catch policy (0 quota), which indicated that the stock would almost reach the MSY level (Nfin/K=0.47) only after 30 yr, the 10% of 1995 catch option also showed a slowly recovering trajectory, with stock size as a proportion of K increasing from 0.22 after 10 yr, to 0.27 after 20 yr, and to 0.34 after 30 yr.

Scenario 3: Sandbar shark, baseline catch. Projections indicated that the status quo policy would stabilize the stock level, but would not allow recovery (Nfin/K=0.3 after 10 yr, and 0.31 after 20 and 30 yr), with a probability of 41% that the stock size after 10, 20, and 30 yr would be larger than the 1998 stock size. All the other options predicted faster stock recovery, but only the no catch policy allowed the stock to almost reach the MSY level after 10 yr. With the 10% and 20% of 1995 catch options MSY could be reached after 20 yr, and after 30 yr, MSY could be reached with the 10%, 20%, and 30% of 1995 catch options.

Scenario 4: Sandbar shark, alternative catch. Projections under this alternative catch scenario for the sandbar shark were by far the most optimistic. All catch policies allowed stock recovery to the level producing MSY after only 10 yr. The status quo policy had a 50% probability that stock size would be larger than the MSY level after 10 yr and a 74% probability that stock size would be larger than the 1998 stock size after 10 yr.

Scenario 5: Blacktip shark, baseline catch. Projections indicated that the status quo policy would not allow recovery of the blacktip shark stock (Nfin/K=0.17, 0.14, and 0.13 after 10, 20, and 30 yr, respectively), with the probability that stock size after 10, 20, and 30 yr were larger than the 1998 stock size being about 16%. The no catch policy indicated that the stock would reach the MSY level after between 10 and 20 yr. The only other policy that would allow for stock recovery after 20 yr was the 10% of 1995 catch option (Nfin/K=0.56). MSY was predicted to be reached with the no quota, and 10% and 20% of 1995 catch policies after 30 yr.

Scenario 6: Blacktip shark, alternative catch. Predictions under this scenario incorporating expanded catch followed the same general pattern as the baseline scenario for the blacktip shark. Thus, projections indicated that the status quo policy would not allow recovery of the blacktip shark stock (Nfin/K=0.16, 0.17, and 0.17 after 10, 20, and 30 yr, respectively), with the probability that stock size after 10, 20, and 30 yr were larger than the 1998 stock sizes being about 21%, 23%, and 23%, respectively. The no catch policy also indicated that the stock would reach the MSY level after between 10 and 20 yr. As in scenario 5, the only other policy that would allow for stock recovery after 20 yr was the 10% of 1995 catch option (Nfin/K=0.53) and MSY was predicted to be reached with the no quota, and 10% and 20% of 1995 catch policies after 30 yr.

4.3. Summary of Model, Projections and CPUE Results

30 5

· · · · ·

- -

2 19

45 2 . 64

and the second

9 84 8.2

.. 300

×

37

forther co

1000

100

There are a number of issues at which one should look critically in interpreting the various modeling results. These include: the fits of the population models to the catch rate data, the evidence of trends in the catch rates, the degree to which the population is "closed", and the effects of aggregation of species in the models and in the catch.

To understand the above factors, it is instructive to examine the fits of the production model to the CPUE data for large coastal and sandbar analyses (Figures 4.2-4.5). There is a tendency for residual patterns over the series (the model predicted values are less than many of the CPUE points in the early and late periods of the 1973-97 series). This is understandable in that the production model has but two parameters, so is relatively inflexible in trying to fit rapid changes in CPUE patterns. Therefore, recent changes in CPUE may not be well accommodated by the model. This might have caused some overestimation of the pre-1981 catch levels, as well. Additionally, the model assumes that changes are instantaneous. Thus, if catches change and CPUE's do not, then the model will reinterpret the value of r accordingly. These are model conditional concerns that are not encompassed in the precision estimates.

Also, the issue of closed versus open stocks and aggregation of species is still a problem. The production model assumes that the population being analyzed is closed (no net migration, no change in the mix of species being fished, no systematic changes in fleet composition) and is described by a parabolic production curve. In the past the production model results were high relative to the demographic analyses (and were extremely imprecise), but were interpreted by recognizing these caveats. In the analyses done this year, the demographic data were integrated into the production model through Bayesian priors on r. Because the priors on r were based on the demography, the Bayesian production model is less likely to fit open population effects. However, there is more correspondence between r's from the demographic models with those from the production models in the single species blacktip and sandbar models than in the aggregated large coastal model. In any case, the values of the intrinsic rate of increase are critical to interpretation of future growth potential and overall potential productivity (MSY). Therefore, projection analyses were conducted from the Bayesian analyses conditional on r and are given in Appendix 2. Note that the Maximum Sustainable Catch (MSC in numbers) for large coastals is estimated to be less than the sum of the sandbar and blacktip estimates, which may be an indication of the species aggregation problem in estimating r and MSC.

There are two primary reasons why the aggregated large coastal analyses are more pessimistic than the separate-species analyses. The first is that the separate-species analyses did not incorporate time series with rates of decline as extreme as some of those used in the aggregate analyses (e.g., the shark tournament time series). Secondly, low productivity species such as dusky sharks may contribute to a steeper rate of decline for the aggregated species.

. n. etc. c

Recognizing the caveats mentioned in regard to the demographic modeling and production modeling, the results for the large coastal aggregation indicate that current (1998) stock size was estimated to be between 30 and 36% of MSY levels, and 1997 catch was estimated to be 218-233% of MSY (the ranges are defined by the mean values from two alternative catch scenarios). When analyses were disaggregated into sandbar and blacktip sharks, then for sandbar current stock size was estimated to be between 58 and 70% of MSY levels, and 1997 catch was estimated to be 85-134% of MSY. For blacktip, current stock size was estimated to be between 58 and 70% of MSY levels, and 1997 catch was estimated to be 85-134% of MSY. For blacktip, current stock size was estimated to be 163-184% of MSY. Thus, projections indicated that the large coastal aggregate complex might still require additional reductions in effective fishing mortality rate in order to ensure increases of this resource toward MSY. For the blacktip shark, projections also indicated a need for additional reductions, but it is unclear whether reductions in the U.S. alone would achieve the intended goals. Projections for sandbar were more optimistic suggesting that current catches are closer to replacement levels.

5. RESOURCE STATUS

212

14.000

-500 m

5.1. Large Coastal Sharks

5.1.a. Maximum Sustainable Yield

The Fishery Management Plan (FMP) developed an argument for maximum sustainable yield (MSY) based upon analytical results from a 1992 Review Committee. That approach used maximum likelihood estimation procedures to compute various statistics of interest including stock sizes, fishing mortality rates and production. The FMP used the maximum of annual production estimates during the period of the data as a biological reference point by assuming that any annual production, including the maximum, is sustainable. Therefore, first approximations of maximum sustainable yield were taken as the maximum of the annual production estimates during the period of the data. In doing so it was recognized that a recovery plan was to be implemented through the FMP, which was designed to return the resources to a more biologically optimal level. It was also recognized that this first approximation of the resource level that might produce MSY was likely to be an underestimate (i.e., the true BMSY was likely to be higher). Given the implementation of a recovery plan, the underestimate of this statistic was deemed acceptable in that in order for the resource to recover to MSY it would have to pass through the "first approximation" levels. In the ensuing time period some new information was brought to bear to improve the estimate of the MSY resource level. However, the resulting predicted equilibrium catch at maximum net productivity derived in the 1996 report (approximately 300,000 fish) was not felt to be of sufficient accuracy to alter the previous estimate of MSY.

Estimates of MSY (actually, MSC since results were expressed in numbers) derived in the six scenarios considered under the Bayesian approach placed MSC at about 143,000-149,000 fish for the Large Coastal Group (scenarios 1 and 2), at 71,000-109,000 sandbar sharks (scenarios 3 and 4), and at 137,000-157,000 blacktip sharks (scenarios 5 and 6). The sum of the sandbar and blacktip MSC results ranged from 208,000-266,000. This is in contrast with the MSC estimated for the Large Coastal Group in the 1993 FMP (346,691 fish) and with the MSC estimated in the production models used in the 1996 assessment.

As noted in the 1996 SEW report, an estimated MSY which could be substantially below the actual level is not in conflict with the general strategy in the FMP to recover the resource, in that the FMP recognized that any recovery strategy would have to achieve the "first approximation" target on the resource recovery trajectory (assuming that B_{MSY} is underestimated). Recovery to MSY is likely to be a lengthy process under the best of circumstances, and it is unlikely that full recovery of the resource to MSY stock level (B_{MSY}) could occur within a decade under any catch scenario.

5.1.b. Total Allowable Catch

The 1994 Workshop Report noted that in the case of sharks it was unreasonable to expect that sufficient additional data had accumulated since the implementation of the FMP to provide much more precise information to adjust the TAC at that time. Therefore, the approach taken in 1994 was to examine evidence that would suggest whether the exploitation rate and replacement yield originally chosen in the FMP as the target were risk-averse or risk-prone, given inexact information on current abundance, productivity rates, and harvest levels. In the 1994 and 1996 SEW Reports, it was noted that although CPUE observations show substantial declines from mid-1970's levels to the current levels, in the most recent years since 1991, the CPUE data are too few and variable and/or the trend is too flat to show statistically significant evidence that the stocks are either increasing or decreasing under the allowable catch level. Still the estimated trends (though variable) do not appear to be increasing (with the possible exception of sandbar). Thus, evidence is still equivocal regarding stock rebuilding or further depletion.

The commercial fishery has had a 50% reduction imposed in its catches. Since the expected rates of change in shark abundance are low, and our measures of stock abundance are uncertain, sufficient observational data are not yet available to detect changes in stock size since the most recent management measures were implemented with any certainty.

However, the balance of data indicate that there is a need for substantial reductions in catches of the large coastal species, exclusive of sandbar and blacktip. For sandbar, analyses indicate that small reductions are needed to ensure recovery. For blacktip, large reductions in catches may be needed, but it is unclear whether reductions in the U.S. alone would achieve the intended goals.

5.2. Small Coastal Sharks

Document SB-IV-12 indicates that small coastal commercial landings have increased from 209 mt dressed weight (dw) in 1996 to 326 mt dw in 1997 (1997 data are still preliminary). Atlantic sharpnose sharks made up 36 percent of the 1997 landings followed by blacknose (28%), finetooth (26%), and bonnethead (10%) sharks. Percentages were similar in 1996 with finetooth sharks making up a smaller proportion and additional landings of Caribbean sharpnose, Atlantic angel, and unclassified sharks. Preliminary recreational numbers for small coastal sharks indicate the Atlantic sharpnose shark comprises 67 percent of the harvest followed by bonnethead (16%) and blacknose (11%) sharks.

SB-IV-2 documents the results of an observer program for the commercial longline fishery off North Carolina, Atlantic coast of Florida, and Gulf of Mexico coast of Florida. Since 1994 through the first season of 1998, approximately 7,916 small coastal sharks (out of 26,351 total sharks) were caught. Atlantic sharpnose sharks comprised 84 percent (6,667 fish) of the small coastal catch followed by blacknose sharks (15%; 1,188 fish). Other small coastal species caught include bonnethead, finetooth, and Atlantic angel sharks.

In a fishery-independent survey described in document SB-IV-6, Atlantic sharpnose, finetooth, and bonnethead neonate and juvenile sharks were three of the most abundant species caught in both gillnets and longlines in two northwest Florida sampling stations. These results indicate the existence of a nursery area for these three species.

Document SB-IV-29 describes a longline survey conducted in 1995 and 1996 in the Gulf of Mexico and western North Atlantic. Three small coastal species (blacknose, finetooth, and Atlantic sharpnose) comprised 72% of all shark captures. Atlantic sharpnose sharks were caught in virtually all locations, whereas blacknose and finetooth sharks were only caught in the Gulf of Mexico.

No new analyses were conducted with which to modify estimated MSY or TAC of the small coastal sharks. Additional CPUE time series are needed before new analyses can be performed.

ļ

5.3. Pelagic Sharks

122

V TENE

* 40 A 1

8 1 10 July 22

. . 5.

800 P.

1.62

1 - 11

21

2.2

Document SB-IV-12 indicates that pelagic shark commercial landings have increased from 315 mt dw in 1996 to 433 mt dw in 1997 (1997 data are preliminary at this time). Unclassified, shortfin mako, and thresher sharks make up 98 percent of the landings. Oceanic whitetip sharks, which made up 30 percent of the landings in 1996 comprised only 0.40 percent of the landings in 1997. Preliminary recreational numbers indicate that blue sharks make up 51 percent of the harvest followed by shortfin mako (31%) and thresher (17%) sharks.

SB-IV-2 documents the results of an observer program for the commercial longline fishery off North Carolina, Atlantic coast of Florida, and Gulf of Mexico coast of Florida. Since 1994 through the first season of 1998, approximately 65 pelagic sharks (out of 26,351 total sharks) have been caught. Shortfin mako was the most abundant of the pelagic sharks caught (45 %; 29 fish) followed by common thresher (25%; 16 fish) and bigeye thresher (20%; 13 fish). Other pelagic species caught include sevengill, bigeye sixgill, and blue sharks.

Document SB-IV-5 indicates an increasing trend in the relative catch per 100 trips for blue sharks (1.04 in 1994 to a peak of 2.63 in 1996 and 1.68 in 1997) in the rod and reel fishery from Virginia through Massachusetts. The same document shows a fairly steady relative catch per 100 trips (ranging from 1.05 in 1994 to 1.55 in 1995) for make sharks since the early 1990s (see figures to see variance of estimates).

Data from the pelagic longline logbook indicate the catch per 1,000 hooks set for pelagic sharks as a group has decreased since 1986 (12.3 in 1986 to 3.9 in 1997; Document SB-IV-11; see figure for variance). Individually, blue sharks, mako sharks, and thresher sharks also have decreasing catches per 1,000 hooks set (see figure for variance) although for both blue and thresher sharks the catch per 1,000 hooks set has increased slightly since 1995 (1.7 to 2.2 for blue sharks and 0.15 to 0.18 for thresher sharks). The catch per 1,000 hooks set for oceanic whitetip sharks has remained fairly constant (ranging from 0.06 in 1995 to 0.09 in 1997) since this species was added to the logbook in 1992 (see figure for variance).

Document SB-IV-22 describes the Atlantic pelagic shark bycatch in the tuna and swordfish pelagic longline fisheries. Estimates indicate that since 1993 the number of thresher sharks discarded dead appears to be increasing. In 1996, approximately 949 mt whole weight of pelagic sharks (blue, thresher, porbeagle, mako, oceanic whitetip, and unidentified pelagic species) were discarded dead. An estimated 75 percent of these sharks were blue sharks. In

contrast, approximately 407 mt whole weight of pelagic sharks were landed. Mako sharks made up the majority of the landings (58%) followed by porbeagle (19%) and thresher sharks (15%). Less than 1 percent of the landings were blue sharks.

No new analyses were conducted with which to modify estimated MSY or TAC of the pelagic sharks. Additional CPUE time series are needed before new analyses can be performed.

6. MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Total Allowable Catch. In 1997, NMFS reduced the commercial quota and recreational bag limits for Large Coastal Sharks (LCS) in order to achieve a 50 percent reduction in catch. Results indicate that the recreational catch of sharks now results in mortality higher than that of the commercial sector following the successfully implemented 50% reduction in the commercial catch last year (and earlier reductions) and the apparently unsuccessful implementation of reduced recreational bag limits, resulting in less than the intended 50% reduction from that sector.

The balance of data indicate that there is a need for substantial reductions in catches of the large coastal species, exclusive of sandbar and blacktip. For sandbar, analyses indicate that small reductions are needed to assure recovery. For blacktip, large reductions in catches may be needed, but it is unclear whether reductions in the U.S. alone would achieve the intended goals.

Every effort should be made to manage species separately. New analyses indicate that individual species are responding differently to exploitation (as was suspected in previous SEW Reports). Risk-neutral management of large coastal aggregates can result in excessive regulation on some species and excessive risk of overfishing on others. This Report makes the initial attempt to separate species for analysis. Options for carrying this forth through management should be explored (see minimum size discussion, for example).

If the LCS fishery must be managed in aggregate, then the ramifications for the directed commercial LCS fishery might be severe. Note that catches of LCS in incidental commercial fisheries (including the small coastal shark fishery when the LCS fishery is closed), which by definition catch sharks incidentally to other fishery operations, may continue to occur unless regulations limiting effort in those other fisheries are implemented. A reduced commercial quota may then result in increased discards of LCS in those incidental fisheries if they continue to operate unchanged, contrary to the desired reduction in effective fishing mortality.

The bag limits for Atlantic sharks in recreational fisheries were reduced by 50% in 1997 as a proxy to reducing effective fishing mortality equally across user groups. Evidence available to NMFS indicates that the bag limit reduction was not effective at reducing fishing mortality by the intended 50 percent (SB-IV-25 and Table 2). The recreational fisheries often target other species and encounter sharks incidentally. Reductions in recreational mortality might be achieved by not retaining those sharks caught incidentally. Post-release survival of sharks caught on rod and reel is expected to be relatively high such that restricting recreational fisheries to lower bag limits or to catch-and-release only fishing would still afford those fishers with the opportunity to fish while still resulting in a reduction in effective fishing mortality.

Minimum Sizes. It is possible that minimum size regulations could reduce fishing mortality on the younger, more sensitive life history stages/sizes while allowing fishing on the older, less sensitive stages/sizes. Two documents on the population dynamics of sandbar sharks (SB-IV-4 and SB-IV-9) outline essentially similar results in that younger life history stages or smaller sizes of sandbar sharks are more sensitive to mortality and that this sensitivity to mortality declines at the stage/size of first maturity or slightly earlier. These results, in combination with the directed shark observer data (SB-IV-1, 2, and 3), which demonstrate a clear segregation by size and depth of sandbar sharks (smaller fish predominate in the catches in nearshore waters and larger fish predominate in catches in deeper waters), suggest that a commercial minimum size for sandbar sharks could effectively push fishing effort into deeper waters. By pushing fishing effort into deeper waters where larger subadults and large adults predominate, effective fishing mortality could be reduced while still allowing fishing. Furthermore, Sminkey and Musick (SB-III-20) showed that by delaying entry into the fishery until approximately age 12-13 years, substantially higher levels of fishing effort could be maintained and positive population growth achieved. The size-depth segregation of sandbar sharks is likely to result in less bycatch of smaller, immature individuals, thereby reducing effective fishing mortality.

4 ⁴L

ż. .

-

and there -

ner -

t -

÷

A commercial and recreational minimum size limit on ridgeback sharks would thus protect the more vulnerable large juvenile and subadult sandbar sharks and accord added protection to subadult dusky sharks and other species. It would also serve to reduce recreational mortality.

For blacktip sharks, the directed fishery observer data do not demonstrate clear size-depth segregation; these sharks occur in mixed-size schools in nearshore waters. As it may be difficult to target a stage/size class of blacktip sharks and thereby redistribute fishing mortality onto older, less sensitive stages/sizes, a commercial minimum size on blacktip sharks may actually increase effective fishing mortality as more small fish are caught and discarded dead in order to harvest the same quantity of larger fish.

In contrast, a recreational minimum size limit, perhaps in combination with a reduced bag limit, would be an effective way to reduce fishing mortality on the younger, and probably more sensitive, life history stages in this species. A minimum size limit corresponding to the minimum size at maturity in female blacktip sharks, was identified. It was noted that this minimum size limit should be applied to all non-ridgeback large coastal shark species to facilitate both regulation and enforcement.

For reasons similar to those mentioned under the discussion of total allowable catches, a minimum size for the recreational fisheries for Atlantic sharks in general may reduce effective fishing mortality while still allowing fishing. Due to the high post-release survival of many sharks caught on rod and reel, a minimum size in combination with bag limits could be effective in reducing mortality on the sensitive life history stages/sizes. Significant fisheries exist for sharks, including blacktip, sandbar, and dusky sharks, in nearshore waters generally held to be

nursery areas. Concern is expressed that these recreational fisheries are targeting juvenile and subadult fish as evidenced by the average sizes of fish caught (SB-III-5). Implementing minimum sizes to protect these life history stages/sizes was generally supported as a means of significantly reducing effective fishing mortality.

Time/Area Closures. The Workshop discussions generally supported minimum size restrictions and total allowable catch restrictions over time/area closures as management measures for Federal waters. This was primarily due to the acknowledgement that most nursery areas, and therefore the areas the most appropriate for time/area closures, were managed under the authority of different States. Nevertheless, further analyses and discussion of management in State waters is needed.

Dusky Shark Status. There was general agreement that the status of dusky shark stocks is of special concern and warrants a precautionary, risk-averse approach in managing this species. In addition to the Virginia longline CPUE series showing marked declines since the mid-1970's, none of the additional catch rate indices covering the recent period demonstrated an increasing trend. Furthermore, vital rates for dusky sharks appear to be very low and thus this species is likely to be highly susceptible to overexploitation. These arguments led some Workshop participants to propose that dusky sharks be added to the list of prohibited species, noting that the NMFS Office of Protected Resources has added this species to its Candidate List.

Prohibited Species. In 1997, NMFS prohibited possession of five species of sharks: sand tiger (Odontaspis taurus), bigeye sand tiger (Odontaspis noronhai), whale (Rhincodon typus), basking (Cetorhinus maximus), and white (Carcharodon carcharias) sharks. These species were identified as highly susceptible to overexploitation and the prohibition on possession was a preventive measure to ensure that directed fisheries did not develop. These species had been included in the large coastal shark management unit until that rulemaking and had been determined to be overfished in the LCS aggregate stock assessment in 1996. When NMFS identified the list of overfished species in the 1997 Report to Congress, all species that comprised the LCS management unit were listed individually as overfished with the subsequent mandate to develop a rebuilding program within one year. Regarding the five prohibited species, only two species are encountered regularly in directed fisheries: sand tiger sharks in directed commercial longline operations and white sharks in directed recreational operations. The remaining three prohibited species (whale, basking, and bigeye sand tiger sharks) are encountered rarely in fishery operations. During this year's assessment, the night shark (Carcharhinus signatus) was also mentioned by some participants as a possible candidate for the prohibited species list, but it was generally felt that this was premature at this time.

7. RESEARCH RECOMMENDATIONS

The 1996 SEW report included several recommendations, many of which were acted upon in the interim. In particular, the recommendation to resolve the age uncertainties for sandbar has essentially been completed. The younger ages of maturity and longevity (about 15 and 30 years, respectively) are now generally accepted over the older ages (30 and 60 years, respectively). Research to determine the nursery areas for the most important commercial species continues both in the Gulf and Atlantic regions. The level of fishery-independent
monitoring of sharks has increased, particularly with the continuation of the NMFS longline surveys in both the northeast and southeast areas. Attempts to characterize the Mexican and Canadian catches and to increase cooperation with the scientists of these countries have been initiated. In particular, some information on the species composition and volume of Mexican shark catches has been obtained and incorporated in this assessment as appropriate.

Some of the following recommendations reiterate those for which work has already begun, thus stressing the need to continue such research. Others are new recommendations arising out of discussions at the 1998 SEW. The order below does not indicate a priority order.

Continue research to determine nursery areas; expand such research to other areas and species. Although knowledge about both summer and winter nursery areas continues to grow, there is still a need for considerable additional research, including exploration of new areas and additional species. Studies of nursery areas should include both short-term tagging studies to estimate survival rates of young sharks in the nursery areas, and long-term tagging studies to determine the limits of the nurseries and the site specificity of the animals using them.

Expand tagging studies in the Gulf of Mexico. Tagging studies in both the eastern and western Gulf of Mexico are needed to determine whether blacktip and sandbar sharks migrate from the United States to Mexico or vice-versa, and to clarify the origin of sharks taken in various fisheries in both countries.

Continue data rescue projects. Studies should focus on locating and compiling existing set by set data, and data related to historical species composition. In particular, historical fin dealer databases that include data that could be related to the species and size composition of commercial catches prior to implementation of the FMP could be used in developing stage or size based population models.

"建制法"""

Convert the Gulf of Mexico reeffish logbook indices from biomass to numbers to make them consistent with the other time series used. In the current assessment, it was assumed that average weights of blacktip have not changed substantially over the duration of the logbook time series and therefore the biomass index was included along with other indices based on numbers. This assumption needs to be checked.

Continue and expand fishery-independent monitoring of sharks. New fisheryindependent time series (e.g., the NMFS longline surveys in the northeast and southeast regions and the NMFS gill net and longline surveys in the northeastern Gulf of Mexico) are just getting to the point where they are long enough to be used in quantitative stock assessments. These fishery-independent surveys should be continued and, if possible, expanded.

Increase observer sampling. Current fishery observer programs have yielded much needed information on the commercial shark fisheries. Even though the time series are short, they have been useful for a number of purposes (e.g., to calculate average weights for the various species in order to convert between numbers and biomass in other datasets), as well as providing indices of relative abundance. However, in order to increase the utility of observer data further, substantial increases are required in the number of observed directed shark fishery sets (particularly in the north-central and western Gulf of Mexico), as well as the number of observed pelagic longline sets.

Continue to characterize the Mexican and Canadian shark catches. Fisheries management requires an understanding of shark catches in adjacent fishing areas. Efforts to obtain and analyze available data on Mexican and Canadian shark catches should be continued and intensified.

Investigate possibilities for cooperative stock assessments and fisheries management systems. Avenues for joint stock assessments and potential future joint management (trans-Atlantic for pelagic sharks, and at least the United States and Mexico for large and small coastal sharks) should be explored to improve the accuracy of assessments and the effectiveness of management.

Standardize catch rate time series for factors thought to influence catch rates but not related to abundance. This requires detailed set by set information from commercial fishing and fishery-independent surveys. More detailed catch and effort records (e.g., daily catch and effort by fishing method, area and platform) from recreational angler surveys are also needed.

Continue development of size and stage based models for important individual shark species, including sandbar and blacktip sharks. Some stage-based models for sandbar sharks have proved useful in identifying life history stages particularly sensitive to mortality. Such modeling efforts should be continued and expanded to other species, particularly the blacktip shark. Additional research required to parameterize such models is also required, with a long-term view towards developing and using size or stage based models for stock assessments.

Increase research and assessment efforts on small coastal and pelagic sharks. Assessments of these groups have not been conducted since the FMP was implemented.

8. REFERENCES CITED

- Branstetter, S. and G. Burgess. 1997. Commercial shark fishery observer program 1996. Final Report, MARFIN Award NA57FF0286, May 1997.
- Cramer, J. and H. Adams. 1998. Pelagic longline bycatch. SEFSC Sustainable Fisheries Division Contribution SFD-97/98-06, 29pp.
- Cramer, J, A. Bertolino, and G.P. Scott. 1997. Estimates of recent shark bycatch by U.S. vessels fishing for Atlantic tuna and tuna-like species. ICCAT Working Document SCRS/97/58, 18pp.
- National Research Council (NRC). 1998. Improving fish stock assessments. National Academy Press, Washington, D.C.

9. GLOSSARY

a. . .

This is a glossary of terms as used in this document.

Bayesian approach- A statistical procedure, based on Bayes theorem, in which unknown parameters are replaced by known distributions for those parameters observed previously, generally called priors.

Carrying capacity (K)- In density-dependent population theory, the value of population density at which the intrinsic rate of increase is 0.

Catch Per Unit of Effort (CPUE)- The number or weight of fish caught by a given amount of effort. CPUE is often used as a measure of relative abundance of a particular fish stock.

CV (coefficient of variation)- A measure of statistical variability equal to the standard deviation expressed as a percentage of the mean.

Fishing mortality rate (F)- The portion of total mortality in a fish stock attributable to fishing. Fishing mortality can be expressed as an instantaneous rate (the proportion of fish dying at any given time) or as an annual rate (the proportion of fish dying in one year).

Fork length (FL)- The length of a shark measured in a straight line from the tip of the snout to the posterior notch of the caudal fin.

GLM (General Linear Modeling)- A statistical procedure that provides a useful framework for examining multiple factors (including both discrete and continuous variables) and determining which ones are better predictors of the dependent variable.

Intrinsic rate of increase (r)- In population theory, the maximum instantaneous rate of population growth (also known as the intrinsic capacity for increase, per capita rate of population increase, or Malthusian parameter).

Large Coastal Sharks (LCS)- A management unit identified in the NMFS Fishery Management Plan for Sharks of the Atlantic Ocean that currently includes seventeen species of sharks. Blacktip and sandbar sharks are the two most important species in this group.

Marine Recreational Fishery Statistics Survey (MRFSS)- A survey conducted by the National Marine Fisheries Survey (NMFS) to estimate catch and effort in the recreational sector.

Maximum Sustainable Yield (MSY)- The maximum average catch or yield that can be taken on a continuous basis (sustainably) from a stock under prevailing ecological and environmental conditions. Also referred to as the Maximum Sustainable Catch (MSC).

mt (metric ton)- Equals 1,000 kg or about 2,205 pounds.

Natural mortality rate (M)- The portion of total mortality in a fish stock attributable to natural causes. Natural mortality can be expressed as an instantaneous rate (the proportion of fish dying at any given time) or as an annual rate (the proportion of fish dying in one year).

Pelagic sharks- A management unit identified in the NMFS Fishery Management Plan for Sharks of the Atlantic Ocean that currently includes ten species of sharks. The blue, shortfin mako, and thresher sharks are the most important species in this group.

q (catchability coefficient)- The part of a stock caught by a defined unit of effort. It can also be thought of as the efficiency of the vessels.

Ridgeback sharks- Those sharks that have an interdorsal ridge (a ridge between the first and second dorsal fins).

Small coastal sharks- A management unit identified in the NMFS Fishery Management Plan for Sharks of the Atlantic Ocean that currently includes seven species of sharks. The Atlantic sharpnose shark is the most important species in this group.

Stochastic simulation- A simulation involving a randomly determined sequence of observations obtained from a probability distribution. It implies randomness, as opposed to fixed or deterministic simulations.

Total Allowable Catch (TAC)- The annual allowed catch in biomass for a particular species or species group. It is a management decision.

Total length (TL)- The length of a shark measured in a straight line from the tip of the snout to the tip of the caudal fin.

Total mortality rate (Z)- The sum of the effects of natural mortality rate (M) and fishing mortality rate (F). Total mortality rate can be expressed as an instantaneous rate (the proportion of fish dying at any given time) or as an annual rate (the proportion of fish dying in one year).

10. LIST OF PARTICIPANTS

Almeida, F.	NMFS, Woods Hole
Babcock, E.	U. of Washington and Wildlife Conservation Society (WCS)
Brewster-Geisz, K.	NMFS/HMS, Silver Spring
Burgess, G.	Florida Museum of Natural History, U. of Florida
Carlson, J.	NMFS, Panama City
Castro, J.	NMFS, Miami
Cortes, E.	NMFS, Panama City
Grace, M.	NMFS, Pascagoula
Henwood, T.	NMFS, Pascagoula
Hester, F.	Directed Shark Fisherman's Association
Hueter, R.	Mote Marine Laboratory

Jones, L.	NMFS, Pascagoula
Kohler, N.	NMFS, Narragansett
Mace, P.	NMFS, Miami/Woods Hole
McAllister, M.	WCS and Imperial College
Musick, J.	Virginia Institute of Marine Science
Natanson, L.	NMFS, Narragansett
Pikitch, E.	Wildlife Conservation Society
Powers, J.	NMFS, Miami
Schulze, M.	NMFS/HMS, Silver Spring
Scott, G.	NMFS, Miami
Trent, L.	NMFS, Panama City

Observers:

Camhi, M.	National Audubon Society
Fordham, S.	Center for Marine Conservation
Hudson, R.	Directed Shark Fisherman's Association
Moore, C.	North Carolina Department of Natural Resources
Oliver, A.	World Wildlife Fund

11. LIST OF DOCUMENTS

- SB-IV-1. Branstetter, S. and G. Burgess. Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Development Foundation and University of Florida. Commercial shark fishery observer program 1996.
- SB-IV-2. Branstetter, S. and G. Burgess. Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Development Foundation and University of Florida. Commercial shark fishery observer program 1997-1998.
- SB-IV-3. Branstetter, S. and G. Burgess. Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Development Foundation. Monitoring the large coastal shark stock of the western Gulf of Mexico.
- SB-IV-4. Brewster-Geisz, K.K., and T.J. Miller. Management of the sandbar shark (Carcharhinus plumbeus): implications of a stage-based model.
- SB-IV-5. Brown, C.A. Standardized catch rates of four shark species in the Virginia-Massachusetts (U.S.) rod and reel fishery 1986-1997.
- SB-IV-6. Carlson, J.K., and L. Trent. An index of abundance for coastal species of sharks from the northeast Gulf of Mexico: 1996-1997.
- SB-IV-7. Carlson, J.K. Occurrence of neonate and juvenile sandbar sharks, *Carcharhinus plumbeus*, from the northeastern Gulf of Mexico.
- SB-IV-8. Castillo, J.L., J.F. Márquez, M.C. Rodriguez, E. Cortés, and A. Cid. The Mexican artisanal shark fishery in the Gulf of Mexico: toward a regulated fishery.

- SB-IV-9. Cortés, E. A stochastic stage-based population model of the sandbar shark in the western North Atlantic.
- SB-IV-10. Cortés, E and G. Scott. Rates of increase per generation for large coastal species of sharks from the U.S. Atlantic Ocean and Gulf of Mexico.
- SB-IV-11. Cramer, J. Large pelagic logbook catch rates for sharks.

- SB-IV-12. Scott, G., J. Bennett, B. Slater, and P. Phares. Recent recreational and commercial catches of sharks along the US east and Gulf of Mexico coasts.
- SB-IV-13. Musick, J.A., J. Gelsleichter, R.D. Grubbs, and K. Goldman. A delineation of shark nursery grounds in Chesapeake Bay and an assessment of abundance of shark stocks (Parts 1, 2, 3, and Annual Progress Report for 1996-97).
- SB-IV-14. Trent, L., D.E. Parshley, and J.K. Carlson. 1997. Catch and bycatch in the shark drift gillnet fishery off Georgia and East Florida.
- SB-IV-15. Trent, L., S. Prescott, J.K. Carlson, and B. Heinisch. Relative abundance and size of juvenile and small adult sharks in St. Andrew Sound in northwest Florida.
- SB-IV-16. Trent, L. Comparison of longline methods to estimate juvenile shark abundance indices in shallow coastal areas of northwest Florida.
- SB-IV-17. Poffenberger, J. Shark logbook data.
- SB-IV-18. Schirripa, M.J. Analysis of shark catch rates from the Gulf of Mexico reeffish logbooks: 1998.
- SB-IV-19. O'Boyle, R.N., G.M. Fowler, P.C.F. Hurley, and M.A. Showell. Update on the status of NAFO SA 3-6 Porbeagle shark (*Lamna nasus*).
- SB-IV-20. NAFO Subarea 3-6 Porbeagle shark. DFO Science Stock Status Report B3-09 (1998).
- SB-IV-21. Powers, J.E. Options for age-structured production models for large coastal sharks
- SB-IV-22. Cramer, J., A. Bartolino, and G.P. Scott. Estimates of recent shark bycatch by U.S. vessels fishing for Atlantic tuna and tuna-like species.
- SB-IV-23. Hoey, J. and G.P. Scott. Standardized catch rates for pelagic and large coastal sharks based on research survey, logbook, and observer data from the western North Atlantic.

- SB-IV-24. Merson, R.R., and H.L. Pratt, Jr. Nursery and pupping grounds of the sandbar shark, *Carcharhinus plumbeus*, in Delaware Bay.
- SB-IV-25. Babcock, E.A., and E. K. Pikitch. The effect of bag limits on shark mortality in the U.S. Atlantic recreational fishery.
- SB-IV-26. McAllister, M.K., and E. K. Pikitch. A Bayesian approach to assessment of sharks: fitting a production model to large coastal shark data.
- SB-IV-27. McAllister, M.K., and E. K. Pikitch. Evaluating the potential for recovery of large coastal sharks: a Bayesian decision analysis.
- SB-IV-28. Hueter, R.E., and C.A. Manire. Distribution, relative abundance, and migration of sharks in coastal nursery areas of the Gulf of Mexico. (5 documents included).
- SB-IV-29. Grace, M. and T. Henwood. Assessment of the distribution and abundance of coastal sharks in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico and Eastern Seaboard, 1995 and 1996.
- SB-IV-30. Henwood, T. Mississippi Laboratories groundfish surveys: 1972-1997.
- SB-IV-31. N.M.F.S. 1996 Report of the Shark Evaluation Workshop.
- SB-IV-32. N.M.F.S. 1997 Report of the Shark Evaluation Workshop.
- SB-IV-33. Cramer, J., and H.M. Adams. Pelagic longline bycatch.
- SB-IV-34. Jones, L. A preliminary report on historical and recent longline shark catches.
- SB-IV-35. Jones, L., M. Grace, and T. Cody. Shark nursery areas in the major bay systems of Texas.
- SB-IV-36. Bonfil, R. Status of shark resources in the southern Gulf of Mexico and Caribbean: implications for management.
- SB-IV-37. Marín, R. Aspectos biológicos de los tiburones capturados en las costas de Tamaulipas y Veracruz, México.
- SB-IV-38. Castillo, L. et al. Evaluación de la pesquería de tiburón del Golfo de Mexico.
- SB-IV-39. N.M.F.S. 1994 Report of the Shark Evaluation Workshop.
- SB-IV-40. N.M.F.S. 1995 Report of the Shark Evaluation Workshop.
- SB-IV-41. Pikitch, E. Preliminary large coastal shark assessment results.

APPENDICES

3

Appendix 1. CPUE Series

Appendix Table 1. The CPUE series for sharks considered in the 1998 Shark Evaluation Report. Series are indicated by species or species group with source of information indicated. The index is the estimated mean CPUE and the CV is the estimated precision of the mean value. Type refers to whether the index is based on biomass or numbers. Observations with a CV of 1.0 are either nominal data for which no measure of the precision of the estimate was available (whole series) or estimates with very small sample sizes for which an estimate of CV could not be computed (individual years within series).

!

ł.

SPECIES	SERIES	TYPE	YEAR	R INDE	X CV	SOURCE
large coastal	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	90	280.41	0.39096	c,1
large coastal	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	91	335.78	0.24266	c
large coastal	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	92	281.70	0.27111	c
large coastal	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	95	155.17	0.26968	с
large coastal	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	94	145.34	0.27074	c
large coastal	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	95	181.58	0.36975	c
large coastal	Brannon	Numbers	86	162.00	1.00000	C,£
large coastal	Brannon	Numbers	87	332.29	1.00000	c
large coastal	Brannon	Numbers	88	282.56	1.00000	с
large coastal	Brannon	Numbers	89	205.41	1.00000	c
large coastal	Brannon	Numbers	90	245.07	1.00000	c
large coastal	Brannon	Numbers	91	251.44	1.00000	c
large coastal	Brannon	Biomass	86	3944 00	1.00000	c.9
large coastal	Brannon	Biomass	97	04.50 50	1.00000	C,
large coastal	Brannon	Biomass	99	7000.02	1.00000	c
large coastal	Brannon	Diomass	00	1002.01	1.00000	c
large coastal	Brannon	Diomass	00	0140.33	1.00000	c
large coastal	Brannon	Diomass	90	0011.00	1.00000	C
large coastal	Brannon	Diomass	91	0110.81	1.00000	C
large coastal	Hudson	Numbers	85	0.22	1.00000	r,z
large coastal	Hudson	Numbers	86	0.10	1.00000	r
large coastal	Hudson	Numbers	87	0.12	1.00000	г
large coastal	Hudson	Numbers	88	0.10	1.00000	г
large coastal	Hudson	Numbers	89	0.05	1.00000	r
large coastal	Hudson	Numbers	90	0.02	1.00000	r
large coastal	Hudson	Numbers	91	0.02	1.00000	r
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	75	0.11	1.00000	c,5
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	76	0.08	1.00000	с
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	77	0.13	1.00000	с
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	78	0.25	1.00000	c
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	79	0.12	1.00000	C
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	80	0.16	1.00000	c
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	81	0.13	1.00000	с
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	82	0.13	1.00000	с
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	83	0.14	1.00000	с
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	84	0.12	1.00000	C
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	85	0.14	1.00000	с
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	86	0.11	1.00000	c
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	87	0.08	1.00000	c
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	88	0.08	1.00000	с
large coastal	Crooke LL	Numbers	89	0.09	1.00000	c
large coastal	SHARK Obser	ver Num	bers	94 9	2.173 1.00	0000 c,4
large coastal	SHARK Obser	ver Num	bers	95 3	5.066 1.00	0000 c
large coastal	SHARK Obser	ver Num	bers	96 3	5.227 1.00	0000 c
large coastal	SHARK Obser	ver Num	bers	97 3	5.480 1.00	0000 c
large coastal	Jax N	umbers 7	79	0.59 1.	00000 г,5	
large coastal	Jax N	lumbers 8	84	0.71 1.	00000 r	
large coastal	Jax N	lumbers §	90	0.16 1.	00000 r	
						-
large coastal	NC#	Numbers	88	999.10	0.42199	C,3
large coastal	NC#	Numbers	89	1637.36	0.23219	с

large coastal large coastal	NC KG NC KG	Biomass Biomass	88 89	837.85 2398.68	0.50421 0.28493	с,3 с	
large coastal	SC LL	Numbers	85	6.99	1.00000	.5	
large coastal	SC LL	Numbers	94	2.44	1.00000		
large coastal	SC LL	Numbers	95	1.75	1.00000	i	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	76	0.18	1.00000	г,3	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	77	0.81	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	79	0.89	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	80	0.82	1.00000	г	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	81	0.39	1.00000	г	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	82	0.50	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	83	0.12	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	OF	0.10	1.00000	r r	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	86	0.50	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	87	0.32	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	88	0.20	1.00000	г	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	89	0.12	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Port Salerno	Numbers	90	0.20	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Tampa Bay	Numbers	85	0.16	1.00000	T.5	
large coastal	Tampa Bay	Numbers	86	0.09	1.00000) r	
large coastal	Tampa Bay	Numbers	87	0.03	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Tampa Bay	Numbers	88	0.14	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Tampa Bay	Numbers	89	0.06	1.00000	r	
large coastal	Tampa Bay	Numbers	90	0.05	1.00000) г	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	74	1.83	0.2893	1.6	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	75	3.49	0.2980	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	76	5.85	0.3509	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	77	1.18	0.3818	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	78	5.36	1.0000	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	79	5.42	1.0000	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	80	3.11	0.1799	1	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	81	2.78	0.1640	1	
large coastal	Virginia LL.	Numbers	85	1.30	0.1515	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	84	1.44	0.9715	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	85	0.71	1.0000	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	86	0.72	0.3790	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	87	1.21	0.5224	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	88	1.29	0.2374	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	89	1.09	0.3991	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	90	0.42	0.2341	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	91	0.50	0.2498	i	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	92	0.32	0.3281	1	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	93	0.52	0.4552	1	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	90	0.83	0.2012	;	
large coastal	Virginia LL	Numbers	97	0.71	0.2270	i	
large coastal	IPS	Marmhan	0.0		-		
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	07	10.40	0.142 1,	11	
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	88	59.50	0.910 T		
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	89	65.42	0.128 г		
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	90	24.40	0.241 r		
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	91	46.45	0.148 г		
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	92	20.64	0.289 г		
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	93	13.53	0.465 г		
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	94	4.51 1	.136 г		
large coastal	LPS	Numbers	95	18.22	U.366 r		
larme coastal	LPS	Numbers	96	25.91	0.356 T		
arge coastal	LIS	Taumoers	51	10.05	0.409 L		
large coastal	charter boat	Numbers	89	411.44	0.1250	в г,7	
large coastal	charter boat	Numbers	90	\$70.55	0.12120	5 r	
large coastal	charter boat	Numbers	91	387.99	0.1181	г	
large coastal	charter boat	Numbers	92	300.56	0.1248	r	
large coastal	charter boat	Numbers	93	339.37	0.15629		
ange wastal	cual ter boat	raumers	34	333.26	0.13174	- 1	

44

ъ,

ŝ

large coastal	charter boat	Numbers	95	372.11	0.1221	ВГ	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	86	13.954	0.993	95 c.8	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	87	8 506	0116	19 C	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	88	10.646	0 106	96 C	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	89	8 570	0 1010	19 C	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	90	10 677	0.090	95 C	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	91	8 030	0.103	4 C	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	99	7 964	0.060	14 C	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	95	7144	0.065	05 C	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	94	4 464	0.066	70 c	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	QK	5.696	0.075	87 6	
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	06	8 808	0.095		
large coastal	pelagic logbook	Numbers	07	3.303	0.000		
auge coastar	peragic togooor	Trumbers	31	3.000	0.000.		
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTXI Nu	mbers	81	4 60	1.00000 r	.9
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTXI Nu	mbers	89	5 88	1 00000 r	
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTXI Nu	mbers	83	10.59	1 00000	г
large coastal	MRFSS HBOA	T.TX1 Nu	mbers	84	4.79	1.00000 r	
large coastal	MRFSS HBOA	TTX1 Nu	mbers	85	5.18	1.00000 r	
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTXI Nu	mbers	86	4.78	1,00000 r	
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTXI Nu	mbers	87	4.94	100000 m	
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTYI Nu	mbers	88	416	100000 1	
large coastal	MRESS HROA	TTYI Nu	mbere	99	8 80	1.00000 1	
large coastal	MRESS UROA	TTYI Nu	mbers	00	\$ 00	1.00000 1	
large coastal	MDFSS UPOA	TTYI No	mbers	50		1.00000 1	
large coastal	MARSS, HOUA	TTYI NU	mbers	91	3.0Z	1.00000 1	
large coastal	MRF 55, HBUA	I,IAI NU	mbers	92	4.23	1.00000 1	
large coastal	MRESS HROA	TTYO Nu	mhere	95	9.99	1.00000 1	.9
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTX9 Nu	mbers	94	9 07	1,00000 r	-
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTX9 Nu	mbers	95	9.50	1,00000 m	
large coastal	MRESS HBOA	TTX9 Nu	mbers	96	9 914	1,00000	r
large coastal	MRFSS HBOA	TTX9 Nu	mbers	97	1.799	1.00000	r
The Be boubeau	Mild objild off	Lyranz Ito	uniocis	01	1	1.00000	•
(large coastal	NMFS LL NE	Numbe	rs 86	5 5.75	96 0.83	72 i),12	
large coastal	NMFS LL NE	Numbe	rs 89	4.00	61 0.48	69 i	
large coastal	NMFS LL NE	Numbe	rs 91	2.19	92 0.70	75 i	
large coastal	NMFS LL NE	Numbe	rs 96	0.63	39 0.49	29 i	
large coastal	NMFS LL NE	Numbe	rs 98	3.31	14 0.54	96 i	
large coastal	NMFS LL SE	Number	rs 95	1.44	1 0.11	1,13	
large coastal	NMFS LL SE	Number	°S 96	0.51	1 0.14	1	
large coastal	NMFS LL SE	Number	\$ 97	0.89	6 0.12	1	
aandhar	Culf Pastlore	Riomana	0.8	00 701	0 1 57	110	
sandbar	Gulf Reef logs	Diomass	93	82.721	0.157	1,10	
sandbar	Gulf Reef logs	Diomass	94	119.876	0.282	1	
sandbar	Guil Reel logs	Biomass	85	168.608	0.115	1	
sandbar	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	96	143.415	0.062	1	
sanubar	Guil Reel logs	DIOMASS	91	120.179	0.083	1	
sandhar	Virginia LL	Numbers	74	0.981 (3139	i6	
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	75	1.518 (3155	i	
sandhar	Virginia LL	Numbers	76	3 1 58 (3804	1	
sandhar	Virginia LL	Numbers	77	0.019 (1 6360	-	
sandhar	Virginia LL.	Numbers	78	1 100 1	0000		
sandhar	Virginia LL	Numbers	70	1.667	0000	;	
sandhar	Virginia LL	Numbers	00	1.007	1755	:	
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	00	1.001	1045		
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	81	2.0/1 0	0000	1	
sandhar	Virginia II	Numbers	85	0.021	0000		
sandhar	Virginia LL	Numbers	0.4	0.101	1.2130	1	
sandbar	VigunaLL	Numbers	64	0.53/ 0	0.6038		
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	85	0.714	1.0000	1	
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	86	0.493	1.0000	:	
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	87	0.521 (0.5462	1	
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	88	0.848 (0.5007	1	
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	89	0.952 (J.4327	1	
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	90	0.202 (0.3792	1	
sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	91	0.292 (3.3474	1	
sandbar	virginia L.	Numbers	92	0.070	J.4322	1	
sandhar	TT ST TT	NT	~ ~				
JI	Virginia LL	Numbers	95	0.381	0.5841	i	
sandbar	Virginia LL Virginia LL	Numbers Numbers	93 95	0.381 0	0.5841	i	

Ŀ

. .

.

sandbar	Virginia LL	Numbers	97	0.571	0.2817	i
and here	- de sie beske als	Mumhan	- 01	0.030	0.040	5
sandbar	pelagic logbook	Number	5 94	0.932	0.240.	5 C,8
sandbar	pelagic logbook	Number	\$ 95	2.573	0.167	l c
sandbar	pelagic logbook	Number	\$ 96	2.766	0.170	5 C
sandbar	pelagic logbook	Number	\$ 97	2.291	0.172	0 c
sandbar	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TXI N	lumbers	81	2.24	1.00000 г,9
sandbar	MRFSS.HBOA	T.TXI N	lumbers	82	0.47	1.00000 г
sandbar	MRESS HROA'	TTXI N	lumbers	85	5.86	1.00000 r
candbar	MDESS UPOA	TTYI N	Tumboro	84	1.06	1.00000 F
sandbar	MDESS HBOA	TTY1 N	Tumbers	OF	0.05	1.00000 *
sandoar	MRF 55, HBOA	I,IAI N	umbers	85	0.95	1.00000 1
sandbar	MRF SS, HBOA	1,1X1 N	lumbers	86	1.39	1.00000 r
sandbar	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TX1 N	lumbers	87	0.44	1.00000 r
sandbar	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TX1 N	lumbers	88	0.90	1.00000 г
sandbar	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TX1 N	lumbers	89	0.41	1.00000 r
sandbar	MRFSS.HBOA'	T.TX1 N	Jumbers	90	0.85	1.00000 r
sandbar	MRESS HBOA	T.TXI N	Jumbers	91	0.45	1.00000 r
sandhar	MRESS HBOA	TTXI N	Jumbers	99	0.50	1.00000 r
Santabai	mid bourborr	1,111 1	Tunio Cro	02	0.00	
sandbar	MRFSS, HBOA	TTX2 N	Jumbers	95	0.54	1.00000 г,9
sandbar	MRFSS.HBOA	T.TX2 N	Jumbers	94	0.19	1.00000 r
sandhar	MRESS HROA	TTYON	Jumbers	95	0.59	1.00000 r
candbar	MDESS UBOA	TTYA	Jumborg	96	0.417	100000 г
Sanubai	MINT SS, HDOA	TTYO	Tumbers	00	O.TIT	1.00000 1
sandbar	MRF SS, HBOA	1,122 1	lumbers	97	0.459	1.00000 F
(sandbar	NMFS LL NE	Num	ers 86	9.70	00 0.6	730 i).12
candbar	NMES LL NE	Numb	here 80	95	4 0.50	140 i
sandbar	NIMES LI ME	Mumh	ALIS 03	0.0	0.04	KOR i
Sandbar	NMF5 LL NE	Num	ALLS 91	0.80	DZ O.T	
sandbar	NMF5 LL NE	Num	pers 96	0.4	12 0.34	130 1
sandbar	NMFS LL NE	Numt	pers 98	2.4	55 0.44	248 1
sandbar	NMFS LL SE	Numb	ers 95	0.23	6 0.25	7 i.13
sandhar	NMES LL SE	Numb	AP 96	0.19	8 0.97	1 i
sandbar	NMES II SE	Numb	ore 07	0.00	0 0.11	0 i
sandbar	NMF5 LL SE	Numb	CIS 91	0.20	2 0.31	U I
sandbar	SCLL	Numbers	83	4.73 1.	00000	i,5
sandbar	SC LL	Numbers	94	0.41 1.	00000	i
sandbar	SCLL	Numbers	95	0.59 1.	00000	i
sandbar	SHARK Observ	ver Num	ubers 9	4 0.4	24 1.0	00000 c,4
sandbar	SHARK Observ	ver Num	bers 9	5 1.4	64 1.0	00000 c
sandbar	SHARK Obser	ver Num	bers 9	6 1.	861 1.0	00000 c
sandhar	SHARK Obser	ver Num	bers 9	7 91	061 1.0	00000 c
oundour	ond and o block					
blacktip	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	93	45.697	0.266	i,10
blacktip	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	94	10.215	0.406	i
blacktin	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	95	93.889	0.965	i
blacktin	Gulf Reef logs	Biomass	06	144 468	0.085	
blacktip	Gulf Deeflogs	Diomass	07	105.000	0.000	:
Бласкцр	Gull Reef logs	DIOMASS	91	120.023	0.089	
blacktip	pelagic logbook	Number	rs 92	1.637	0.250	8 c,8
blacktin	pelagic logbook	Number	rs 95	2.008	0.130	9 C
blacktin	pelagic loghook	Number	05 94	1.456	0.139	6 C
blacktin	pelagic logbook	Number	T OF	1 100	0165	4 0
blacktip	peragic logbook	Number	5 90	1.108	0.105	
blacktip	pelagic logbook	Number	rs 96	1.118	0.178	3 C
blacktip	pelagic logbook	Number	rs 97	0.910	0.201	3 C
blacktin	MRESSHROA	TTTI	Jumbers	81	9.59	1.00000 г.9
blacktin	MRESSUROA	TTT	Jumban	20	10.04	1 00000 -
blacktip	MDESS HDOA	TTY.	Tumbers	OZ	10.01	1.00000 -
Dlacktip	MRF 55, HBOA	I,IXI I	umbers	83	4.14	1.00000 F
blacktip	MRFSS,HBOA	1,1X1 1	vumbers	84	7.12	1.00000 r
blacktip	MRFSS, HBOA	T,TX1 1	Numbers	85	13.77	1.00000 r
blacktip	MRFSS,HBOA	T,TX1 M	Numbers	86	18.23	1.00000 r
blacktip	MRFSS,HBOA	T,TX1 M	Numbers	87	17.46	1.00000 r
blacktin	MRFSS HBOA	T.TX1	Numbers	88	19.55	1.00000 r
hlacktin	MRESS HROA	TTY	Jumbers	89	1675	1.00000 r
Linkip	MPECCUDOA	TTTT	Tumbers	00	10.10	1.00000 -
Diacktip	MRF SS, HBOA	1,1A1 1	vumbers	90	13.63	1.00000 F
blacktip	A COROS TANK					
	MRFSS,HBOA	T,TX1 1	Numbers	91	18.60	1.00000 r
blacktip	MRFSS,HBOA MRFSS,HBOA	T,TX1 1 T,TX1 1	Numbers	91 92	18.60 21.87	1.00000 r 1.00000 r
blacktip	MRFSS,HBOA MRFSS,HBOA	T,TX1 1 T,TX1 1	Numbers	91 92	18.60 21.87	1.00000 r 1.00000 r

.

ĩ

blacktin	MDESS UBOAT TYA Numbers 04 949 100000 r	
Lashtin	MARTSS, HOAT TY A Manham OF 040 100000 F	
ыасктр	MRF 55, HBOAT, TAY Numbers 95 8.40 1.00000 1	
blacktip	MRFSS, HBOAT, TX2 Numbers 96 9.21 1.00000 r	
blacktip	MRFSS, HBOAT, TX2 Numbers 97 7.62 1.00000 r	
-		
blacktin	SHARK Observer Numbers 94 0.145 1.00000 c.4	
blacktin	SUADK Observer Numbers 95 0.599 1.00000 c	
olackup	SHARA Observer Numbers 95 0.392 1.00000 C	
blacktip	SHARK Observer Numbers 96 0.333 1.00000 c	
blacktip	SHARK Observer Numbers 97 0.143 1.00000 c	
blacktin	NMES LL NE Numbers 86 0.00 0.00 i).12	
blacktin	NIMES II NE Numbers 80 000 0474	
Diackup	NINTS LA NE NULLES 89 0.00 0.2777 1	
blacktip	NMFS LL NE Numbers 91 0.13 0.1613 1	
blacktip	NMFS LL NE Numbers 96 0.03 0.2072 i	
blacktip	NMFS LL NE Numbers 98 0.13 0.3856 i	
blacktin	NMESIL SE Numbers 95 0.905 0.895 113	
Llachtin	MARSING MULTING OF OLD ON ON ON	
ыаскпр	NMFS LL SE Numbers 96 0.121 0.328 1	
blacktip	NMFS LL SE Numbers 97 0.224 0.267 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 74 0.154 1.0000 1.6	
duality	Vincial II Numbers 77 0011 0 0007 i	
dusky	VIIginia LL INUMBERS 75 0.911 0.3907 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 76 1.414 1.0000 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 77 0.164 0.7155 i	
dusky	Virginia LL. Numbers 78 3.571 1.0000 i	
chicky	Virginia II Numbers 79 0,000 1,0000 i	
dusky	Virginia LL. Numbers 75 0.000 1.0000 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 80 0.933 0.4219 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 81 0.379 0.4000 i	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 82 0.000 1.0000 i	
dusky	Virginia I.I. Numbers 85 0.069 1.0000 i	
ducky	Vinginia II Numbers 84. 0688 10000 i	
dusky	VIIginia LL Numbers 84 0.055 1.0000 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 85 0.000 1.0000 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 86 0.000 1.0000 i	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 87 0.097 0.6227 i	
dusky	Virginia I.I. Numbers 88 0.000 1.0000 i	
dueky	Virginia II Numbers 80 0.068 1.0000 i	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 33 0.000 1.0000 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 90 0.030 0.6959 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 91 0.040 0.7467 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 92 0.011 1.0000 i	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 95 0.096 0.6272 i	
dusky	Virginia I.I. Numbers 95 0.048 0.8168 i	
dualar	Vinginia II Numbers OC 0.004 0.4104 i	
dusky	Virginia DL Numbers 96 0.227 0.7127 1	
dusky	Virginia LL Numbers 97 0.000 1.0000 1	
dusky	MRFSS_HBOAT,TX1 Numbers 81 6.50 1.00000 r,9	
dusky	MRFSS.HBOAT.TX1 Numbers 89 1.98 1.00000 r	
ducky	MERSS HEOATTY1 Numbers 95 501 100000 r	
dusky	MARTSHIDOATTAL Numbers 65 5.01 1.00000 F	
dusky	MRF 55, HBOA1, 1X1 Numbers 84 5.74 1.00000 F	
dusky	MRFSS,HBOAT,TX1 Numbers 85 2.15 1.00000 r	
dusky	MRFSS,HBOAT,TX1 Numbers 86 2.34 1.00000 r	
dusky	MRFSS.HBOAT.TX1 Numbers 87 5.55 1.00000 r	
ducky	MRESS HROAT TY1 Numbers 88 909 100000 r	
dusty	MILLES HEOATTY Numbers 00 100 10000 F	
dusky	MAR SS, HDOAT, TAT NUMBERS 85 1.82 1.00000 T	
dusky	MRFSS, HBOAT, 1X1 Numbers 90 1.50 1.00000 r	
dusky	MRFSS,HBOAT,TX1 Numbers 91 1.66 1.00000 r	
dusky	MRFSS,HBOAT,TX1 Numbers 92 5.92 1.00000 r	
dueky	MRESS HROAT TX9 Numbers 95 048 100000 r.9	
dusky	MIRESTIDOAT, TAL NUMBERS SS 0.10 1.00000 F	
dusky	MAT 55, HDOAT, TAZ NUMBERS SY 1.21 1.00000 1	
dusky	MRF55,HBOA1,1X2 Numbers 95 1.04 1.00000 r	
dusky	SHARK Observer Numbers 94 0.060 1.00000 c,4	
dusky	SHARK Observer Numbers 95 0.244 1.00000 c	
dusky	SHARK Observer Numbers 96 0.910 1.00000 c	
dusky	CUADE Observer Numbers 07 0100 100000 0	
dusky	SHARA ODSERVER NUIRDERS 97 0.188 1.00000 C	
	the second se	
dusky	pelagic logbook Numbers 92 1.097 0.1973 c,8	
dusky	pelagic logbook Numbers 95 1.196 0.1168 c	
dusky	pelagic logbook Numbers 94 0.734 0.1905 c	
dueky	nelagic loghook Numbers 05 0.700 0.1811 c	
duaky	Peragic logotok Humbers 85 0.708 0.1511 C	
dusky	penagic logbook Numbers 96 0.618 0.1596 c	
dusky	pelagic logbook Numbers 97 0.538 0.1772 c	

, **%**

(dusky	NMFS LL NE	Numbers	86	0.296	0.2207	i).12
dusky	NMFS LL NE	Numbers	89	0.095	0.1209	i
dusky	NMFS LL NE	Numbers	91	0.054	01555	i
dusky	NMES LL NE	Numbers	96	0.099	0.9199	;
ducky	NMES LL NE	Numbers	00	0.14.9	0.2122	:
dusky	NHI O DD NE	INULLOCIS	30	0.175	0.2301	1
tiger	Virginia I I	Numbers 74	0	800 0.7	OOK is	
tiger	Virginia LI	Numbers 75	0.	054 0.6	cao i	
time	Virginia LL	Numbers 75	0.	0.04 0.0		
uger	Virginia LL	Numbers 76	0.	241 0.7	554 1	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 77	0.	102 1.0	000 1	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 78	0.	000 1.0	000 1	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 79	0.	000 1.0	000 1	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 80	0.	048 1.0	000 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 81	0.	078 0.4	870 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 82	0.	000 1.0	i 000	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 85	0.	196 0.6	425 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 84	0.	105 1.0	000 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 85	0.	000 1.0	000 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 86	0.	000 1.0	000 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 87	0.	028 1.0	000 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 88	0	070 10	000 i	
tiger	Virginia LL.	Numbers 89	0	000 1.0	000 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 90	0	090 10	000 i	
tiger	Virginia I L	Numbers 01	0.	041 07	090 i	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 91	0.	011 10		
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 92	0.	000 1.0	000 1	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 95	0.	000 1.0	1000 I	
uger	Virginia LL	Numbers 95	0.	029 0.5	538 1	
uger	Virginia LL	Numbers 96	0.	009 1.0	000 1	
tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers 97	0.	028 0.5	560 1	
tiger	SC LL N	umbers 83	1.0	8 1.000	00 i,5	
tiger	SC LL N	lumbers 94	1.9	3 1.000	00 i	
tiger	SC LL N	Jumbers 95	1.2	9 1.000	00 i	
tiger	SHARK Observ	er Numbers	94	0.424	1.00000	c,4
tiger	SHARK Observ	er Numbers	95	0.399	1.00000	C
tiger	SHARK Observ	er Numbers	96	0.429	1.00000	C
tiger	SHARK Observ	er Numbers	97	0.639	1.00000	C
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers 8	86	0.582 0.	3047 c,	B
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers 8	37	0.346 0.	2688 c	
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers 8	88	0.327 0.	2859 c	
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers 8	9	0.388 0.	2376 c	
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers 9	0	0.517 0.	1761 c	
tiger	nelagic loghook	Numbers 9	1	0 4 9 0	1900 c	
tiger	nelagic logbook	Numbers 9	99	0 199 0	2080 c	
tiger	nelagic loghook	Numbers 9	25	0.997 0	1775 0	
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers (14.	0.484 0	1614 0	
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers (15	0.201 0.	1769 0	
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers	00	0.227 0.	A170 0	
tiger	pelagic logbook	Numbers a	07	0.103 0.	21/2 0	
uger	peragic togotook	INULIDELS 8		0.187 0.	ZUOT C	
	44					
(timan	NIMES IT ME	Munchan	00	0.007	0 40 00	310
tiger	MATCH NE	Numbers	80	0.267	0.4030	1),12
tiger	NMF5 LL NE	Numbers	89	0.275	0.3219	
tiger	NMFSLLNE	Numbers	91	0.302	0.3565	1.
tiger	NMFSLLNE	Numbers	96	0.146	0.4737	1
tiger	NMF5 LL NE	Numbers	98	0.528	0.4601	1
			-			
tiger	NMFS LL SE	Numbers	95	0.512	0.194 i	,13
tiger	NMFS LL SE	Numbers	96	0.071	0.337 1	
tiger	NMFS LL SE	Numbers	97	0.216	0.172 i	
-						
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers	74	0.179 1	.0000 i,	,6
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers	75	0.259 0	0.7470 i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers	76	0.585 ().6587 i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers	77	0.000 1	.0000 i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers	78	0.000 1	.0000 i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Numbers	79	3.333	.0000 i	
sand tiger	Virginia LI.	Numbers	80	0.262 (0.5566 i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL.	Numbers	81	0.142 (.6936 i	
sand tiger	Virginia LI.	Numbers	82	0.781	.0000 i	
0	0					

, **%**

sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	S 83	0.103	1.0000	i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	s 84	0.163	1.0000	i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	rs 85	0.000	1.0000	i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	86 27	0.999	1.0000	i	
cand tiger	Virginia LI	Number	87	0.000	1 0000	1	
and tiger	Vinginia I I	Mumber	- 00	0.000	1.0000		
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number		0.100	1.0000	:	
sand tiger	virginia LL	Number	5 89	0.000	1.0000		
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	rs 90	0.050	0.4714	1	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	rs 91	0.094	0.4782	1	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	rs 92	0.117	0.7795	Î	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	rs 93	0.045	0.6851	i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	rs 95	0.029	0.5538	i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	rs 96	0.037	0.5686	i	
sand tiger	Virginia LL	Number	rs 97	0.000	1.0000	i	
cand tiger	MRESS HROAT	TTYI	Number	e 91	0 85	1 00000	r 9
sand tiger	MAPES HEOA	TTV:	Mumber	5 01	2.00	1.00000	1,0
sand uger	MRF55,HBOA	I,IAI	Number	s 82	11.92	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRF5S, HBOA	1,1X1	Number	s 83	11.98	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TX1	Number	8 84	2.34	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TX1	Number	s 85	2.97	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TX1	Number	s 86	2.28	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRESS HBOA'	T.TXI	Number	s 87	1.79	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRESS HBOA	TTXI	Number	88	015	1 00000	г
and tiger	MDESS UROA	TTY	Mumber		0.41	1.00000	-
sand uger	MATSSIIDOA	1,1 41	Number	5 03	0.71	1.00000	
sand tiger	MRFSS, HBOA	1,1X1	Number	s 90	0.043	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRFSS, HBOA	1,1X1	Number	s 91	0.030	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TX1	Number	s 92	0.12	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRFSS, HBOA'	T,TX2	Number	s 95	0.92	1.00000	r,9
sand tiger	MRFSS.HBOA	T.TX2	Number	s 94	0.005	1.00000	r
sand tiger	MRFSS.HBOA	T.TX2	Number	\$ 95	0.19	1.00000	г
		-,					
night	nelagic loghook	Number	00	0 100	0 5644	c 8	
night	pelagic logbook	Number	00	0.100	OSAEE	0,0	
might	pelagic logbook	Number	15 90	0.105	0.0100	c	
night	peragic logbook	Number	15 94	0.061	0.4338	C	
night	pelagic logbook	Number	rs 95	0.090	0.2957	c	
night	pelagic logbook	Number	rs 96	0.055	0.4553	C	
night	pelagic logbook	Number	rs 97	0.086	0.2666	c	
silky	pelagic logbook	Number	s 92	0.327	0.3589	c,8	
silky	pelagic logbook	Number	s 93	0.200	0.4455	c	
silky	pelagic logbook	Number	8 94	0.209	0.4341	c	
silky	pelagic logbook	Number	\$ 95	0.279	0.3208	c	
silky	pelagic logbook	Number	\$ 96	0 181	0.4995	c	
cilley	palagic logbook	Number	07	0.001	0.0800	~	
auty	peragic togoook	14 uniber	8 81	0.031	0.0303	C	
1	1	1. 17					
hammerhea	id pelagic logbo	ok Nu	mbers	86 2.	.634 0.2	884 C,8	
hammerhea	d pelagic logbo	ook Nu	mbers	87 1.	482 0.2	083 c	
hammerhea	d pelagic logbo	ook Nu	mbers	88 2.	264 0.1	605 C	
hammerhea	d pelagic logbo	ook Nu	mbers	89 1.	621 0.1	660 C	
hammerhea	d pelagic logbo	ook Nu	mbers	90 1.	675 0.1	665 C	
hammerhea	d nelagic logh	ook Nu	mbers	91 1	004 0.9	259 c	
hammerhes	d pelagic logh	ok Nu	mhere	0.0 1	194 01	108 C	
hammerhes	d pelagic logb	ok No	mhere	05 0	994 01	\$57 0	
hammerhea	d petagte logbe	JOK NU	mbers	93 0	OTT 0.1	331 C	
nammernea	d pelagic logo	ook Nu	moers	94 0	.681 0.1	353 C	
hammerhea	id pelagic logbo	ook Nu	mbers	95 0	.495 0.1	705 c	
hammerhea	d pelagic logbo	ook Nu	mbers	96 0	.510 0.1	886 c	
hammerhea	ad pelagic logbo	ook Nu	mbers	97 0	.351 0.9	2272 c	
hammerhea	d LPS	Numbe	rs 86	5.49	1.0000	0 r,11	
hammerhea	d LPS	Numbe	rs 87	3.41	1.0000	ОГ	
hammerhe	d LPS	Numbe	rs 88	0.85	1.0000	0 r	
hammerhe	d LPS	Numbe	18 89	3.84	1.0000	0 r	
hammerha	d LPS	Numbe		Q 47	1 0000	0 r	
hamman	d IPC	Man	10 50	2.71	1.0000		
hammerne	LIS	Numbe	18 91	6.03	1.0000		
nammernea	d LPS	Numbe	rs 92	2.10	1.0000	or	
nammerhea	d LPS	Numbe	rs 93	0.69	1.0000	or	
hammerhea	ad LPS	Numbe	rs 94	1.12	1.0000	0 r	
hammerhea	ad LPS	Numbe	rs 95	0.00	1.0000	0 r	
hammerhea	ad LPS	Numbe	rs 96	1.06	1.0000	0 r	
hammerhea	ad LPS	Numbe	rs 97	0.33	1.0000	0 r	

•

hammanhaa								
nammernea	d MRFSS,	HBOAT,T	X1 Nu	mbers	81	1.02	1.00000	r,9
hammerhea	d MRFSS.	HBOAT.T	X1 Nu	mbers	82	11.43	1.00000	r
hammerhea	d MRFSS.	HBOATT	X1 Nu	mbers	85	14.51	1.00000	r
hammerhea	d MRESS	HROATT	YI Nu	mhere	84	10.98	1 00000	- -
hammerhea	d MDFSS	UPOATT	WI Nu	mborn	or	0 40	1.00000	
hammernea	d MATSS,	HBOAT,I	AI INU	LIDELS	00	0.10	1.00000	1
nammernea	a MRFSS,	HBOAT, I	AI NU	mbers	86	2.97	1.00000	r
hammerhea	d MRFSS,	HBOAT, I	XI Nu	mbers	87	1.86	1.00000	r
hammerhea	d MRFSS,	HBOAT,T	X1 Nu	mbers	88	1.79	1.00000	г
hammerhea	d MRFSS,	HBOAT,T	XI Nu	mbers	89	1.48	1.00000	г
hammerhea	d MRFSS.	HBOAT.T	XI Nu	mbers	90	3.18	1.00000	r
hammerhea	d MRESS	HBOATT	YI Nu	mhere	01	4 90	1.00000	r
hammer hea	J MDECC	UDOAT,I	We Me	L	01	1.00	1.00000	
nammernea	a mit 33,	HBOA1,1	AI NU	moers	92	2.39	1.00000	1
hammerhea	d MRFSS,	HBOAT,T	X2 Nu	mbers	93	3.90	1.00000	г,9
hammerhea	d MRFSS,	HBOAT,T	X2 Nu	mbers	94	1.41	1.00000	Г
hammerhea	d MRFSS.	HBOAT.T	X2 Nu	mbers	95	2.22	1.00000	r
(ac hammer	NMEST	INF	Mumhor	. 00	0.000	0 0 90	1 110	
(se nammer i	I NMFSL	LINE	Numbers	5 80	0.223	0.38	1 1),12	
sc nammerr	I NMFSL	LNE	Numbers	89	0.783	0.29	1 1	
sc hammert	I NMFS L	LNE	Numbers	s 91	0.469	0.46	0 1	
sc hammerh	NMFS L	LNE	Numbers	96	0.008	3 0.14	8 i	
sc hammert	NMFS L	LNE	Numbers	98	0.030	0.21	4 i	
nelagic shar	te pelagic la	abook N	umbars	96	10 440	0000		
peragic sha	ks pelagic io	BDOOK IN	umbers	00	12.010	U.ZZOS	, cho	
pelagic shar	ks pelagic lo	gbook N	umbers	87	8.053	0.1005	С	
pelagic shar	ks pelagic lo	gbook Ni	umbers	88	5.740	0.1098	C	
pelagic shar	ks pelagic lo	gbook N	umbers	89	4.946	0.1013	С	
pelagic shar	ks pelagic lo	gbook Na	umbers	90	5.585	0.0996	с	
nelagic shar	ks pelagic lo	shook N	umbers	91	5.743	0.0994	c	
pelagic shar	the pelagic lo	ghook N	umbore	00	\$ 971	0.0695	c	
pelagic sha	the pelagic lo	gbook IV		02	0.071	0.0000	0	
peragic snal	ks pelagic lo	SDOOK IN	umbers	83	3.501	0.0725	C	
pelagic shar	rks pelagic lo	gbook N	umbers	94	3.200	0.0724	C	
pelagic share	rks pelagic lo	gbook N	umbers	95	3.066	0.0687	C	
pelagic shar	ks pelagic lo	gbook N	umbers	96	3.655	0.0700	С	
pelagic shar	ks pelagic lo	gbook N	umbers	97	3.934	0.0664	с	
1 0	1.0	0						
blue	Ispanece obe	Numbe	70	94.	0.000	00		
DIUC	Japanese ous	1 umbe	18 /0	Z. T.	0.220	00 0,0	,	
	T	NY 1						
blue	Japanese obs	Numbe	ers 79	1.77	0.190	00 c		
blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80	1.77 1.55	0.190 0.170	00 c 00 c		
blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80 ers 81	1.77 1.55 1.09	0.190 0.170 0.180	00 c 00 c 00 c		
blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80 ers 81 ers 82	1.77 1.52 1.09 0.42	0.190 0.170 0.180 0.180 0.180 0.400	00 c 00 c 00 c	1	
blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80 ers 81 ers 82 ers 83	1.77 1.52 1.09 0.42	7 0.190 5 0.170 6 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c	1	
blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80 ers 81 ers 82 ers 83	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.08	7 0.190 5 0.170 6 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350 9 0.930	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c	1	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80 ers 81 ers 82 ers 83 ers 84	1.77 1.52 1.09 0.42 1.08	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350 9 0.230	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c	1	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80 ers 81 ers 82 ers 83 ers 84 ers 85	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.08 1.89	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80 ers 81 ers 82 ers 83 ers 84 ers 85 ers 86	1.77 1.52 1.09 0.42 1.08 1.89 1.69	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c	-	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 87	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.08 1.89 1.69 1.54 1.00	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 5 0.400 6 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	ers 79 ers 80 ers 81 ers 82 ers 83 ers 84 ers 85 ers 86 ers 87 ers 87 ers 88	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.08 1.89 1.69 1.54 1.00 0.40	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 6 0.400 7 0.230 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580	000 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	Pars 79 Pars 80 Pars 81 Pars 82 Pars 83 Pars 84 Pars 85 Pars 86 Pars 87 Pars 88	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.08 1.89 1.69 1.34 1.00 0.40	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 6 0.400 7 0.230 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	2175 79 2175 80 2175 81 2175 82 2175 83 2175 84 2175 84 2175 86 2175 86 2175 88 2175 88	1.77 1.52 1.08 0.42 1.08 1.83 1.69 1.34 1.00 0.40	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 389 0.24	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	Arrs 79 errs 80 errs 81 errs 82 errs 83 errs 84 errs 85 errs 86 errs 87 errs 88 operrs 86 errs 88	1.77 1.52 1.09 0.42 1.09 1.89 1.69 1.54 1.00 0.40	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.580 0 0.580 5889 0.24 576 0.12	00 c 00 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe ok Numi	Pers 79 Pers 80 Pers 81 Pers 82 Pers 83 Pers 84 Pers 85 Pers 86 Pers 87 Pers 86 Pers 88 Peers 86	1.77 1.52 1.08 1.83 1.65 1.34 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.2	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.550 9 0.250 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 689 0.22 576 0.13 565 0.13	00 c 00 c 125 c, 362 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 84 Pris 86	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.42 1.08 1.89 1.54 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.250 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.580 0 .250 5 0.270 0 5.580 0 .277 5 0.13 5 0.12 5 0.250 5	00 c 00 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 82 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 87 Pris 88 Pris 88 Pris 89 Pris 89	1.77 1.55 1.08 0.44 1.08 1.89 1.54 1.00 0.40 0.40 0.40 4.5 3.5 2.5	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.580 0 0.580 689 0.22 576 0.13 565 0.14 252 0.14	00 c 00 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs	Numbe Numbe	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 82 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Peris 89 Peris 81	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.44 1.08 1.83 1.64 1.84 1.00 0.40 0.40 8.6 4.2 3.3 2.5 2.5	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 6389 0.270 565 0.14 252 0.14 381 0.13	00 c 00 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japan	Numbe Numbe	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 84 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 88 Pris 88 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 89 Pris 89 Pris 89 Pris 89 Pris 90 Pris 91	1.77 1.55 1.08 0.45 1.08 1.83 1.64 1.34 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 3.3 2.5 2.5 2.5	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.560 0 0.270 0 0.580 6389 0.22 6365 0.14 6365 0.14 912 0.13	00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 00 c 000 c 5562 c 5537 c 518 c 541 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo	Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe ok Numi ok Numi ok Numi	Pris 79 errs 80 errs 81 errs 82 errs 83 errs 84 errs 86 errs 86 errs 86 errs 86 errs 86 errs 88 opers 88 opers 89 opers 90 opers 91 opers 92	1.77 1.55 1.08 0.45 1.08 1.88 1.69 1.34 1.00 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.4	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 0 0.580 0 0.580 0 0.270 0 0.180 0 0.250 0 0	000 c 562 c 5537 c 518 c 541 c 0077 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo	Number Nu	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 82 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 89 Pris 90 Pris 91 Pris 92 Pris 92 Pris 92	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.89 1.89 1.89 1.84 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 3.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.550 9 0.250 9 0	000 c 5562 c 5577 c 5541 c 0777 c 132 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Pelagic logbo Pelagic logbo Pelagic logbo Pelagic logbo Pelagic logbo Pelagic logbo Pelagic logbo Pelagic logbo Pelagic logbo	Number Nu	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 82 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Peris 88 Peris 88 Peris 88 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 91 Peris 92 Peris 93 Peris 93	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.42 1.08 1.63 1.63 1.63 1.64 1.64 3.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 6389 0.270 0 0.580 6389 0.240 1365 0.14 252 0.14 262 0.14 263 0.12 363 0.13 353 0.13 354 0.14	000 c 562 c 5537 c 541 c 077 c 132 c 079 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Japan	Numbe Numbe	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 84 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 88 Peris 88 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 90 Peris 92 Peris 93 Peris 94	1.77 1.55 1.08 0.45 1.08 1.83 1.84 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 3.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 3 0.550 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 365 0.13 365 0.14 365 0.14 3912 0.13 3960 0.14 332 0.11 332 0.11	000 c 562 c 5537 c 518 c 541 c 0077 c 132 c 077 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Pelagic logbo pelagic logbo	Number Nu	Pris 79 errs 80 errs 81 errs 82 errs 83 errs 84 errs 86 errs 86 errs 86 errs 86 errs 88 opers 89 opers 91 opers 91 opers 92 opers 93 opers 94 opers 94	1.77 1.55 1.08 0.45 1.08 1.88 1.69 1.34 1.00 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.4	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.550 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 576 0.13 565 0.14 576 0.13 589 0.220 6576 0.13 565 0.14 581 0.13 5912 0.13 5953 0.13 535 0.13 535 0.13	000 c 5577 c 5518 c 5541 c 00779 c 0054 c 0054 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Pelagic logbo pelagic logbo	Number Nu	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 82 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 90 Pris 91 Pris 92 Pris 93 Pris 95 Pris 95 Pris 96	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.42 1.08 1.83 1.69 1.34 1.00 0.40 4.2 3.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 5 0.400 5 0.400 6 0.400 9 0.250 9 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.270 0 0.580 5365 0.13 565 0.14 565 0.14 576 0.13 565 0.14 576 0.13 589 0.22 560 0.16 533 0.11 532 0.16 124 0.16	000 c 5537 c 5541 c 0077 c 0077 c 0079 c 0054 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Pelagic logbo pelagic logbo	Number Nu	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 82 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 89 Poers 91 Poers 91 Poers 92 Poers 94 Poers 96 Poers 96	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.08 1.63 1.63 1.64 1.00 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.4	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.2200 4 0.2400 0 0.250 2 0.2400 0 0.2500 4 0.2400 0 0.2500 5 0.2400 0 0.2700 0 0.5800 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 5 0.12 6 <td< td=""><td>000 c 000 c 5537 c 5318 c 0077 c 0054 c 0054 c 0050 c</td><td></td><td></td></td<>	000 c 5537 c 5318 c 0077 c 0054 c 0054 c 0050 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs Pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo pelagic logbo	Number Nov Number Nov Nu	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 89 Pris 89 Pris 89 Pris 92 Pris 93 Pris 94 Pris 96 Pris 96 Pris 97	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.42 1.08 1.69 1.83 1.69 1.34 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 3.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 352 0.13 355 0.13 356 0.13 352 0.14 352 0.13 352 0.13 352 0.14 353 0.13 352 0.14 207 0.14	000 c 537 c 5378 c 5377 c 5411 c 0079 c 0054 c 0054 c 0050 c 0050 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese obs pelagic logbo pelagic logbo	Number Number	Pris 79 errs 80 errs 81 errs 82 errs 84 errs 85 errs 86 errs 86 errs 86 errs 86 errs 86 errs 90 errs 90 errs 91 berrs 92 berrs 93 berrs 95 berrs 95 berrs 95 berrs 95 berrs 95 berrs 97 86 97	1.77 1.55 1.08 0.45 1.08 1.89 1.34 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 6 0.170 7 0.180 5 0.400 6 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 365 0.13 365 0.14 365 0.12 365 0.13 365 0.14 372 0.14 383 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12 392 0.12	000 c 562 c 518 c 0077 c 132 c 0054 c 0056 c 0056 c 0057 c 0056 c 0057 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Jap	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 80 Pris 80 Pris 86 Pris 90 Pris 91 Poers 92 Poers 93 Poers 95 Poers 95 Poers 97 86 87	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.89 1.89 1.89 1.84 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.550 9 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 5 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 5 0.240 0 0.250 5 0.240 0 0.250 5 0.250 5 0.12 5 0.1	000 c 000 c 0077 c 0054 c 0056 c 0056 c 0056 c 0079 c 0056 c 0056 c 0056 c 0077 c 0056 c 0056 c 0056 c 0056 c 0077 c 0056 c 000	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Jap	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 90 Pris 91 Poers 91 Poers 92 Poers 94 Poers 96 Poers 97 86 87 88 8	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.08 1.69 1.69 1.69 1.64 1.64 3.1 4.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.250 0 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 889 0.24 576 0.13 565 0.14 525 0.14 525 0.14 535 0.	000 c 000 c 00		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanes	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 88 Peris 88 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 89 Peris 92 Peris 93 Peris 94 Peris 96 Peris 97 86 87 88 88	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.09 1.69 1.89 1.69 1.84 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 3.3 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9	7 0.190 5 0.170 6 0.170 7 0.180 5 0.400 6 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 6389 0.240 0 0.580 6389 0.240 0 0.580 6389 0.240 0 0.580 6389 0.240 0 0.580 6389 0.240 0 0.2400 0 0.580 0.11 0.11 0.352 0.11 0.352 0.11 0.352 0.11 0.352 0.11 0.352 0.11 0.352 0.11 0.352 0.11 0.352 0.11 0.352 0.11 </td <td>000 c 000 c 005 c 00</td> <td>8</td> <td></td>	000 c 000 c 005 c 00	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanes	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 88 Poers 89 Poers 90 Poers 91 Poers 92 Poers 93 Poers 95 Poers 96 Poers 97 86 87 88 89 Poers 97	1.77 1.52 1.08 0.42 1.08 1.83 1.84 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.2 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 5 0.400 6 0.400 8 0.550 9 0.230 8 0.250 9 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 5365 0.13 565 0.13 565 0.13 576 0.13 589 0.220 660 0.14 912 0.13 535 0.13 535 0.16 701 0.16 1244 0.16 0.219 0.362 0.231 0.231	000 c 000 c 0077 c 0054 c 0054 c 0056 c 0056 c 0056 c 0079 c 0056 c 0056 c 0056 c 0079 c 0056 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanes	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 90 Poers 91 Poers 92 Poers 93 Poers 95 Poers 95 Poers 96 Poers 97 86 87 88 89 90 91	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.45 1.08 1.69 1.54 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.550 9 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 5 0.240 0 0.250 1 0.250 5 0	000 c 000 c 0077 c 0054 c 0056 c 000	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanes	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 90 Pris 91 Poers 92 Poers 94 Poers 96 Poers 97 86 87 88 89 90 91	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.42 1.08 1.63 1.63 1.63 1.64 3.1 3.1 5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 389 0.24 576 0.12 365 0.12 365 0.12 365 0.12 352 0.12 353 0.12 353 0.12 353 0.12 353 0.12 353 0.12 0.219 0.252 0.292 0.278 0.190	00 c 00 c		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese obs Japanese Japanese obs Japanese Japanese	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 90 Poers 91 Poers 92 Poers 94 Poers 96 Poers 97 86 87 88 89 90 91 92 91	1.77 1.55 1.08 0.42 1.08 1.83 1.84 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 3.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2	7 0.190 5 0.170 6 0.170 7 0.180 5 0.400 6 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 2 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 6389 0.240 0 0.580 55 0.13 565 0.13 576 0.13 581 0.13 532 0.14 533 0.13 533 0.11 607 0.16 0.219 0.362 0.291 0.292 0.278 0.190 0.178 0.190	00 c 00 c 0 c	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese obs Japanese Japanese J	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 83 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 89 Poers 91 Poers 96 Poers 96 Poers 97 86 87 88 89 PO 91 Poers 92 Pris 93	1.77 1.52 1.05 0.42 1.06 1.65 1.54 1.00 0.44 1.00 0.44 4.1 3.3 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1	7 0.190 5 0.170 6 0.170 6 0.400 5 0.400 6 0.400 8 0.550 9 0.230 0 0.240 0 0.240 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.270 0 0.580 5365 0.13 5460 0.13 532 0.16 533 0.13 0.412 0.14 0.219 0.362 0.292 0.278 0.190 0.178 0.213 0.213	000 c 000 c 00	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Jap	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 90 Pris 91 Pris 96 Pris 97 86 87 88 89 PO 91 Pris 93 Pris 93 Pris 93 Pris 93 Pris 94	1.77 1.52 1.09 0.42 1.83 1.84 1.85 1.84 1.00 0.46 4.2 3.3 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.550 9 0.220 4 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 5 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 5 0.240 0 0.270 0 0.580 5 0.12 5 0.12	000 c 000 c 00	8	
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese Japanese	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 90 Poers 91 Poers 96 Poers 97 86 87 88 89 90 91 92 95 94 95	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.42 1.08 1.83 1.65 1.84 1.00 0.42 1.85 1.54 1.55 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 77.50 45.24 50.44 58.68 118.51 147.92 132.81 160.32	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.250 9 0.251 0 .252 0.178 0.251 0 .253 0 .189 0.253 0 .189 0.255 0 .189 0 .255 0 .180 0 .255 0 .189 0 .255 0 .180 0 .180	000 c 000 c 00		
blue blue blue blue blue blue blue blue	Japanese obs Japanese Japanese obs Japanese Japanese	Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Numbers	Pris 79 Pris 80 Pris 81 Pris 82 Pris 84 Pris 85 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 86 Pris 88 Peris 88 Peris 89 Peris 93 Peris 94 Peris 88 Peris 86 Peris 97 86 87 88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 94 95 96 96	1.77 1.55 1.09 0.42 1.09 1.83 1.65 1.84 1.00 0.40 8.6 4.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.5 77.50 45.24 90.36 50.44 18.3 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5	7 0.190 5 0.170 9 0.180 5 0.400 8 0.350 9 0.230 0 0.240 0 0.240 0 0.240 0 0.240 0 0.240 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.250 0 0.251 0 0.219 0.2219 0.2215 0.189 0.225 0.189 0.225 0.189 0.225 0.189 0.225 0.189 0.225 0.189 0.225 0.189 0.255 0.180 0.255 0.180 0	000 c 000 c 00		

۴,

.

blue	LPS Nu	mbers 97	\$11.	75 0.187	r
mako	Japanese obs	Numbers	78	0.60 0.1	19000 c.3
mako	Japanese obs	Numbers	79	0.49 0.1	19000 c
mako	Iananese obs	Numbers	80	0.56 01	18000 c
mako	Japanese obs	Mumbers	01	0.80 0.1	10000 0
mako	Japanese obs	Numbers	01	0.30 0.1	19000 C
тако	Japanese obs	Numbers	82	0.16 0.4	14000 C
mako	Japanese obs	Numbers	83	0.22 0.4	10000 c
mako	Japanese obs	Numbers	84	0.30 0.5	25000 c
mako	Japanese obs	Numbers	85	0.23 0.9	25000 c
mako	Japanese obs	Numbers	86	0.97 0.9	27000 c
mako	Iananese obs	Numbers	87	0.96 0.	50000 c
mako	Japanese obs	Numbers	00	0.17 0.4	65000 c
HIGKO	Japanese ous	INUMBERS	00	0.17 0.0	55000 C
maka	nalaria lambaak	Manushana	00	1 807 /	
пако	petagic logbook	Numbers	80	1.385	J.1802 C,8
тако	pelagic logbook	Numbers	87	0.817 (0.1503 C
mako	pelagic logbook	Numbers	88	0.596 (0.1775 c
mako	pelagic logbook	Numbers	89	0.700 (0.1496 c
mako	pelagic logbook	Numbers	90	0.503	0.1946 c
mako	pelagic loghook	Numbers	01	0 595 0	01741 c
mako	pelagio logbook	Numbers	00	0.020	0.1074 0
HIARO	peragic logbook	Numbers	92	0.495	J.10/4 C
тако	pelagic logbook	Numbers	93	0.360	J.134 7 C
mako	pelagic logbook	Numbers	94	0.357 (0.3630 c
mako	pelagic logbook	Numbers	95	0.363 (0.1196 c
mako	pelagic logbook	Numbers	96	0.324 (0.1419 c
mako	pelagic logbook	Numbers	97	0.570	0.1991 c
	r-bb		•		
mako	weighout	Biomass .	85 60	184 01	1800 03
mako	weighout	Diomass (00 7/	.07 0.1	1000 0,0
mako	weighout	DIOINASS	56 /1	5.87 0.00	3800 C
mako	weighout	Biomass a	87 5	5.63 0.00	5600 c
mako	weighout	Biomass a	88 5	5.05 0.04	5900 c
mako	weighout	Biomass a	89 44	9.57 0.04	6400 c
mako	weighout	Biomass s	90 4	1.70 0.00	6400 c
mako	weighout	Biomass :	91 54	8 19 0.0	5600 c
mako	weighout	Biomace	00 0	47 0.0	5800 c
mako	weighout	Diomass		P.T/ 0.04	1400 0
цако	weignout	Blomass :	93 33	2.73 0.04	FF00 C
make	T DO N	-			
шако	LPS N	umbers 8	6 40	.44 0.18	/ r,11
тако	LPS N	umbers 8	7 26	.67 0.26	8 r
mako	LPS N	umbers 8	8 11.	.10 0.51	0 r
mako	LPS N	umbers 8	9 17.	.98 0.35	4 r ·
mako	LPS N	umbers 9	0 20	.53 0.31	6 r
mako	LPS N	umbere 0	1	\$5 0.91	9 r
mako	I DC M	umbana 0	0 01	0. 0.00	
IIIAKO	LFS N	umbers 9	2 31	.85 0.22	6 F
тако	LPS N	umbers 9	3 32	.99 0.26	8 r
mako	LPS N	umbers 9	4 29	.61 0.25	7 r
mako	LPS N	umbers 9	5 27	.34 0.27	5 r
mako	LPS N	umbers 9	6 32	.67 0.25	4 r
mako	LPS N	umbers 9	7 40	.28 0.22	6 r
thresher	pelagic logbool	Numbers	86	0.284	0.5855 C.8
thresher	nelagic loghool	Numbers	87	0450	09474 C
threeher	palagic logbool	Mamban	00	0.200	0.0070 0
unconci	peragic loguou	I Inniners	66 6	0.383	0.28/2 C
thresher	pelagic logbool	Numbers	89	0.414	0.2364 c
thresher	pelagic logbool	Numbers	90	0.389	0.2431 c
thresher	pelagic logbool	Numbers	91	0.325	0.2701 c
thresher	pelagic logbool	Numbers	92	0.348	0.1642 c
thresher	nelagic loghool	Numbers	95	0.910	0.9967 6
thresher	palagie logbool	Nambon	04	0.1.80	0.2100 0
these	peragic logoool	Numbers	9T	0.130	0.3120 C
thresher	pelagic logbool	Numbers	95	0.150	0.2684 C
thresher	pelagic logbool	(Numbers	96	0.174	0.2515 c
thresher	pelagic logbool	Numbers	97	0.185	0.2351 c
thresher	weighout	Biomass	85	2.21 0.6	0200 c,3
thresher	weighout	Biomass	86	3.10 0.3	3300 c
thresher	weighout	Biomass	87	4.08 01	9700 c
thresher	weighout	Biomaco	88	8 80 01	6600 c
thresher	Weighout	Rioman	00	0.00 0.1	8800 0
these	weighout	Diomass	69	z.12 0.2	5800 C
uresher	weighout	Biomass	90	2.19 0.2	4400 C
thresher	weighout	Biomass	91	1.23 0.2	4500 c
thresher	weighout	Biomass	92	1.67 0.1	7500 c
thresher	weighout	Biomass	95	4.76 0.1	3500 c

Ł

, ¥.

ocean whitetip	pelagic logbo	ok Numbe	rs 92	0.0	82 0.19	87 c,8
ocean whitetip	pelagic logbo	ok Numbe	rs 93	0.0	79 0.17	89 c
ocean whitetip	pelagic logbo	ok Numbe	rs 94	0.0	77 0.16	23 C
ocean whitetip	pelagic logbo	ok Numbe	rs 95	0.0	61 0.14	80 c
ocean whitetip	pelagic logbo	ok Numbe	rs 96	0.0	82 0.16	00 c
ocean whitetip	pelagic logbo	ok Numbe	rs 97	0.0	94 0.15	97 C
small coastal	SCLL	Numbers		1 91 1	00000	15
small coastal	SCIL	Numbers	80	1.81	.00000	1,0
small coastal	SCLL	Numbers	95	175 1	00000	;
	00 11	uniour o	00	1.10		
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	72	0.565	0.260	i,14
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	78	1.009	0.182	i
small soastals	Gregon H	Numbers	74	1.881	A.175	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	75	1.544	0.161	1
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	76	1.612	0.143	1
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	79	0.909	0.206	1
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	79	0.730	0.133	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	80	1.449	0.909	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	81	0.882	0.228	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	82	0.952	0.199	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	83	0.790	0.234	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	84	0.664	0.365	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	. 85	1.069	0.344	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	86	1.067	0.562	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	87	4.655	0.911	1
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	88	0.269	0.456	1
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	89	0.410	0.686	1
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	90	0.104	0.479	;
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	99	0.188	0.484	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	93	0.327	0.485	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	94	1.097	0.415	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	95	0.495	0.551	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	96	0.276	0.487	i
small coastals	Oregon II	Numbers	97	0.600	0.546	i
charmon	One and II	NT	-			
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	72	0.400	0.341	1,14
sharphose	Oregon II	Numbers	13	1.609	0.255	1
sharphose	Oregon II	Numbers	75	1 985	0.178	;
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	76	1.915	0.151	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	77	0.632	0.200	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	78	0.686	0.204	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	79	0.798	0.208	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	80	1.334	0.210	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	81	0.845	0.235	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	82	0.889	0.210	i
sharphose	Oregon II	Numbers	83	0.727	0.249	1
sharphose	Oregon II	Numbers	OT OF	1.084	0.305	1
sharphose	Oregon II	Numbers	86	0.300	0.555	:
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	87	4.655	0.911	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	88	0.219	0.403	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	89	0.410	0.686	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	90	0.109	0.529	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	91	0.188	0.492	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	92	0.188	0.484	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	93	0.278	0.517	i
sharpnose	Oregon II	Numbers	94	1.082	0.421	I
sharphose	Oregon II	Numbers	95	0.477	0.572	1
sharphose	Oregon II	Numbers	90	0.229	0.5/7	;
Photo	JIG0011	Traimoci S	01	0.000	0.010	*
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	74	0.250	1.0000	i,6
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	75	0.692	0.8958	i
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	76	0.202	1.0000	i
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	77	1.588	0.5488	i
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	78	0.000	1.0000	1
sharphose	Virginia LL	Numbers	79	0.000	1.0000	1
PHOAC	· uguna LL	1 unipers	00	0.101	U.TZZT	1

sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	81	0.757	0.2530 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	82	0.000	1.0000 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	83	0.570	0.6566 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	84	0.000	1.0000 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	85	0.000	1.0000 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	86	0.000	1.0000 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	87	0.403	0.8020 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	88	0.433	0.6424 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	89	0.213	0.3378 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	90	0.64	6 0.5051 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	91	0.555	3 0.4531 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	92	0.875	0.4147 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	93	0.939	0.3447 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	95	1.026	6 0.2635 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	96	0.599	0.3252 i	
sharpnose	Virginia LL	Numbers	97	0.373	0.3963 i	
sharpnose	SC LL	Numbers	83	0.84	1.00000 i,5	
sharpnose	SC LL	Numbers	94	1.96	1.00000 i	
sharpnose	SCLL	Numbers	95	1.71	1.00000 i	
(sharpnose	NMFS LL NE	Numb	ers 8	6 0	.650 0.365	i),12
sharpnose	NMFS LL NE	Numb	ers 8	9 0.	054 0.173	i
sharpnose	NMFS LL NE	Numb	ers 9	1 0.	164 0.297	i
sharpnose	NMFS LL NE	Numb	ers 9	6 0.	.015 0.212	i
sharpnose	NMFS LL NE	Numb	ers 9	8 0.	071 0.356	i
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	72	1.64	0.36000 i,i	14
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	75	5.48	0.25000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	74	2.99	0.25000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	75	1.63	0.43000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	76	3.28	0.25000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	77	2.60	0.50000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	78	1.09	0.38000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	79	1.88	0.67000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	80	0.86	0.52000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	81	0.37	0.49000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	82	0.48	0.40000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	83	0.63	0.56000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	84	0.00	1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	85	0.54	1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	86	0.00	1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	87	0.00	1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	88	0.51	1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	89	0.00	0 1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	90	0.00	0 1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	91	0.00	0 1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	92	0.00	0 1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	93	0.48	8 1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	94	0.00	0 1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	95	0.00	0 1.00000 i	
bonnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	96	0.28	6 1.00000 i	
honnethead	Oregon II	Numbers	97	0.00	0 1.00000 i	

Sources:

3

10.2

c -- commercial fishery catch rates r -- recreational fishery catch rates

i -- fishery-independent resource survey catch rates

1 -- SB-III-22

2 - SB-III-13

- -3 - see 1994, 1995 & 1996 Shark Evaluation reports; also SB-III-15, 16
- 4 SB-IV-2 5 -- SB-III-9
- 6 SB-IV-13

- 7 SB-III-19 8 - SB-IV-11
- 9 -- SB-III-5
- 10-SB-IV-18

11 -- SB-IV-5

12 - NMFS/NEFSC unpublished analyses

13 - SB-IV-29 14 - SB-IV-30

APPENDIX 2. Production Model Analyses and Projections

Prior Distributions for each stock grouping.

		Parameters		
Grouping	r	K	Co	Z
Large Coastals	Lognormal Mean=0.113 SD=0.7	P(K) proportional to 1/K	Lognormal Mean=487.3 SD=0.51	Lognormal Mean=1 SD=0.2
Sandbar shark	Lognormal Mean=0.117 SD=0.7	P(K) proportional to 1/K	Lognormal Mean=135.9 SD=0.53	Lognormal Mean=1 SD=0.2
Blacktip shark	Lognormal Mean=0.136 SD=0.7	P(K) proportional to 1/K	Lognormal Mean=303.8 SD=0.43	Lognormal Mean=1 SD=0.2

r: intrinsic rate of increase; K: carrying capacity; Co: average catch from 1974 to year before first observed catch; z: ratio of abundance in 1974 to K

First year observed catch is 1981 for Large Coastal Sharks and 1986 for sandbar and blacktip sharks.

In the next three tables, sigma is the square root of the variance for each CPUE series; Q is the catchability coefficient.

LC Baseline			LC Alternative Catch		
Name	Sigma	Q		Sigma	Q
Brannon	0.3073	5.27E-02			3.82E-02
Hudson	0.6709	1.38E-05			1.00E-05
Crooke	0.2605	1.78E-05			1.34E-05
Shark Observer	0.3460	1.55E-03			1.14E-03
Jax	0.4161	7.07E-05			5.29E-05
NC#	0.3066	2.76E-01			1.97E-01
SCLL	0.0750	9.31E-04			7.06E-04
Pt Salemo	0.6589	4.63E-05	•		3.46E-05
Tampa Bay	0.5388	1.50E-05			1.08E-05
VaLL	0.5604	2.51E-04			1.88E-04
LPS	0.5483	7.82E-03			5.76E-03
Charter Boat	0.2233	1.17E-01			8.87E-02
Pelagic log	0.1616	2.13E-03			1.57E-03
Early Rec	0.2513	8.90E-04			6.58E-04
Late Rec	0.1337	1.12E-03			8.30E-04
NMFS LL NE	0.4599	8.64E-04			6.15E-04
NMFS LL SE	0.3788	4.96E-04			3.56E-04

Sandbar Baseline			Sandbar Alt Catch		
Name	Sigma	Q		Sigma	Q
VaLL	0.6966	4.41E-04		0.7003	4.15E-04
Pelagic Logs	0.5126	2.50E-03		0.4858	2.48E-03
Earty Rec	0.6614	5.60E-04		0.6641	4.97E-04
Late Rec	0.3938	4.01E-04		0.3598	4.01E-04
NMFS LL NE	0.5160	1.33E-03		0.4776	1.23E-03
NMFS LL SE	0.2857	2.53E-04		0.2810	2.47E-04

SCLL		0.7701	8.03E-04		0.7013	7.84E-04
Shark Observer		0.7184	1.57E-03		0.6864	1.56E-03
Blacktip Baseline				Blacktip Alt Catch		
	Name	Sigma	Q		Sigma	Q
pelagic log		0.1121	9.53E-04		0.1228	8.77E-04
Early Rec		0.5972	4.50E-03		0.6230	3.60E-03
Late Rec		0.1441	7.18E-03		0.1370	6.65E-03
Shark Observer		0.6071	2.08E-04		0.6060	1.92E-04
NMFS LL NE		0.4851	4.85E-05		0.4942	4.20E-05
NMFS LL SE		0.3050	1.56E-04		0.3003	1.44E-04
Gulf Logs		1.0981	4.57E-02		1.0885	4.23E-02

*

The next sets of tables show 10, 20, and 30-yr projections for several alternative total allowable catch (TAC) policies (0 catch, 10%, 20%, 30%, 40%, and 50% of the 1995 catch). Nfin/K is the ratio of stock size at the end of the projection to carrying capacity (K). Also shown is the probability that stock size will be less than 20% of K (Nfin<0.2K), more than 50% of K (Nfin>0.5K), and higher than the 1998 stock size (Nfin>N98).

Large Coastals	Baseline					
	1	=%C95	Nfin/K	P(Nfin<0.2K)	P(Nfin>0.5K)	P(Nfin>N98)
10-yea	ar	0	0.23	0.42	0.00	1.00
		10	0.18	0.68	0.00	0.66
		20	0.12	0.88	0.00	0.21
		30	0.07	0.97	0.00	0.03
		40	0.03	1.00	0.00	0.00
		50	0.01	1.00	0.00	0.00
20 -yea	ar	0	0.36	0.14	0.20	. 1.00
		10	0.25	0.46	0.07	0.74
		20	0.11	0.82	0.02	0.24
		30	0.03	0.97	0.00	0.04
		40	0.01	1.00	0.00	0.00
		50	0.01	1.00	0.00	0.00
30 -yea	ar	0	0.50	0.04	0.46	1.00
		10	0.33	0.37	0.23	0.76
		20	0.12	0.78	0.07	0.24
		30	0.03	0.96	0.01	0.04
		40	0.01	1.00	0.00	0.00
		50	0.01	1.00	0.00	0.00
Large Coastals	Alt Catch					
Horizo	on	f=%C95	Nfin/K	P(Nfin<0.2K)	P(Nfin>0.5K)	P(Nfin>N98)
10 -уе	ar	0	0.25	0.26	0.01	1.00
		10	0.22	0.49	+0.00	0.76
		20	0.17	0.71	0.00	0.30
		30	0.13	0.86	0.00	0.10

		40	0.09	0.95	0.00	0.04
		50	0.07	0.98	0.00	0.03
	20 -year	0	0.36	0.07	0.15	1.00
		10	0.27	0.33	0.08	0.82
		20	0.18	0.67	0.02	0.35
		30	0.10	0.86	0.01	0.15
		40	0.09	0.90	0.00	0.13
		50	0.09	0.89	0.01	0.12
	30 -year	0	0.47	0.03	0.39	1.00
		10	0.34	0.25	0.19	0.84
		20	0.18	0.65	0.08	0.36
		30	0.11	0.80	0.03	0.21
		40	0.15	0.72	0.03	0.33
		50	0.29	0.31	0.06	0.75
31 *					0.00	0.10
	Sandbar Base	line				
	Horizon	f=%C95	Nfin/K	P(Nfin<0.2k)	P(Nfin>0.5k)	P(Nfin>NIOR)
				i franci ocziły	1 (11111-0.014)	(14111-1450)
	10 -vear	0	0.48	0.05	0.41	1.00
	, o you	10	0.45	0.00	0.36	1.00
		20	0.41	0.14	0.30	0.90
		30	0.38	0.19	0.51	0.00
		40	0.34	0.19	0.20	0.70
		50	0.30	0.27	0.22	0.54
			0.00	0.50	0.17	0.41
	20 -vear	0	0.64	0.02	0.71	1.00
	Lo you.	10	0.59	0.02	0.71	1.00
		20	0.52	0.11	0.57	0.90
		30	0.02	0.11	0.52	0.89
		40	0.38	0.32	0.42	0.72
		50	0.31	0.52	0.35	0.55
			0.01	0.40	0.20	0.41
	30 -vear	0	0.75	000	0.95	1.00
	oo you	10	0.68	0.03	0.85	1.00
		20	0.00	0.00	0.75	0.99
		30	0.50	0.09	0.04	0.90
		40	0.40	0.25	0.51	0.73
		50	0.40	0.30	0.40	0.55
		50	0.51	0.49	0.31	0.41
	Sandhar	Alt Catch				
	Horizon	F-04 COS	NEDA	D/MEn -0 210	D/MEn O EIO	DANG- NOON
	110112011	1-700-50	NINK	P(NIII<0.2K)	P(NTIN>U.5K)	P(Ntin>N98)
	10	0	0.66	0.00	0.70	
	io -year	10	0.00	0.02	0.70	1.00
		20	0.64	0.03	0.67	1.00
		20	0.01	0.05	0.64	0.97
		50	0.50	0.08	0.59	0.90
		40	0.55	0.12	0.53	0.82
		50	0.52	0.16	0.50	0.74

c.

z

20 -year	0	0.80	0.01	0.86	1.00
	10	0.77	0.01	0.82	1.00
	20	0.72	0.04	0.76	0.97
	30	0.68	0.07	0.72	0.91
	40	0.63	0.13	0.68	0.83
	50	0.58	0.18	0.61	0.74
30 -year	0	0.87	0.00	0.94	1.00
	10	0.83	0.01	0.89	1.00
	20	0.78	0.03	0.84	0.98
	30	0.73	0.07	0.79	, 0.91
	40	0.67	0.14	0.72	0.83
	50	0.60	0.21	0.67	0.74

Blacktip Baseline

Horizon	f=%C95	Nfin/K	P(Nfin<0.2K)	P(Nfin>0.5K)	P(Nfin>N98)
10 -year	o	0.45	0.08	0.36	1.00
	10	0.41	0.15	0.29	0.94
	20	0.35	0.26	0.21	0.71
	30	0.28	0.39	0.12	0.48
	40	0.22	0.53	0.09	0.29
	50	0.17	0.65	0.06	0.16
20 -year	o	0.64	0.02	0.69	1.00
	10	0.56	0.09	0.56	0.96
	20	0.45	0.22	0.42	0.75
	30	0.34	0.40	0.30	0.51
	40	0.22	0.59	0.17	0.31
	50	0.14	0.74	0.10	0.16
30 -year	0	0.77	0.01	0.86	1.00
	10	0.66	0.06	0.71	0.96
	20	0.52	0.21	0.54	0.75
	30	0.37	0.42	0.38	0.52
	40	0.23	0.62	0.22	0.31
	50	0.13	0.79	0.13	0.17
Blacktip Alt Ca	atch				
Horizon	f=%C95	Nfin/K	P(Nfin<0.2K)	P(Nfin>0.5K)	P(Nfin>N98)
10-year	0	0.41	0.10	0.27	1.00
	10	0.38	0.18	0.24	0.95
	20	0.33	0.29	0.17	0.73
	30	0.27	0.41	0.13	0.52
	40	0.22	0.53	0.06	0.33
	50	0.16	0.63	0.04	0.21
20 -year	0	0.61	0.02	0.62	1.00
	10	0.53	0.09	0.51	0.97

	20	0.44	0.23	0.38	0.76
	30	0.34	0.39	0.28	0.54
	40	0.24	0.56	0.19	0.34
	50	0.17	0.70	0.14	0.23
30 -year	0	0.73	0.00	0.79	1.00
	10	0.64	0.06	0.67	0.97
	20	0.52	0.20	0.52	0.77
	30	0.38	0.39	0.37	0.55
	40	0.26	0.62	0.26	0.35
	50	0.17	0.75	0.17	. 0.23

The next sets of tables show 10, 20, and 30-yr projections for several alternative total allowable catch (TAC) policies (0 catch, 10%, 20%, 30%, 40%, and 50% of the 1995 catch) grouped (binned) by r interval. E[cat/yr] is the expected catch; E[N 2008 in k], etc., is the expected stock sizes in thousands of individuals; E[N 2008/K], etc., is the ratio of the expected stock size to K; P[Extinct] is the probability that the stock will become extinct; P[Nfin<0.2K] is the probability that stock size will be less than 20% of K; P[Nfin>MSYL] is the probability that stock size; will be higher than the Maximum Sustainable Yield (MSY) level; P[Nfin>Ncur] is the probability that stock size; and E[T(MSYL)|recov] is the expected time to reach the MSY level given recovery.

	val	ue for r					
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
4	0.0400	0.4200	0.0079	0.0872	0.007	0.0000	
~ ~	0.2574	0.4390	0.2078	0.0072	0.007	0.0008	6 4FF 100
0 2	51E+01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.40E+00
10	6.45E+01	3.95E+00	3.95E+00	3.90E+00	3.90E+00	3.90E+00	1.90E+01
20	1.04E+02	7.85E+00	7.85E+00	7.89E+00	7.89E+00	7.89E+00	3.26E+01
30	1.36E+02	9.27E+00	9.48E+00	9.94E+00	1.05E+01	1.18E+01	4.19E+01
40	1.49E+02	5.45E+00	5.79E+00	5.97E+00	1.13E+01	7.89E+00	4.26E+01
50	1.49E+02	2.15E+00	1.63E+00	2.08E+00	3.38E+00	9.87E+00	3.98E+01
	val	ue for r					
-		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
4	0.0400 0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
0	1.31E+01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.38E+00
10	5.45E+01	2.07E+00	2.07E+00	2.07E+00	2.07E+00	2.07E+00	1.56E+01
20	8.54E+01	3.03E+00	3.67E+00	4.07E+00	4.13E+00	4.13E+00	2.45E+01
30	8.64E+01	9.17E-01	1.71E+00	2.63E+00	5.14E+00	6.20E+00	2.33E+01
40	8.24E+01	4.14E-02	1.99E-01	5.88E-01	1.42E+00	4.13E+00	2.13E+01
50	7.89E+01	0.00E+00	9.95E-03	7.11E-02	5.91E-01	2.58E+00	2.03E+01
	1/2	ue for r					
	Val	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16.0	2000+	F(X)
4	0.0400	0.04	0.00	0.12	0.100	.20001	
	0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
0	8.89E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.29E+00
10	5.06E+01	1.40E+00	1.40E+00	1.40E+00	1.40E+00	1.40E+00	1.41E+01
20	6.52E+01	1.19E+00	2.06E+00	2.53E+00	2.80E+00	2.80E+00	1.80E+01
30	5.91E+01	1.40E-01	4.45E-01	1.40E+00	3.24E+00	3.15E+00	1.55E+01
40	5.59E+01	0.00E+00	2.70E-02	1.29E-01	9.60E-01	2.80E+00	1.44E+01
50	5.35E+01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.61E-02	4.00E-01	1.75E+00	1.38E+01
21		lue for r					
	va		0.00	0.40	0.40.0	2000	EM
	4 0 2 10 20 30 40 50 40 50 40 50 40 50 40 50 40 50 40 50 40 50	val <0.0400 0.2574 0 2.51E+01 10 6.45E+01 20 1.04E+02 30 1.36E+02 30 1.49E+02 50 1.49E+02 50 1.49E+02 50 1.49E+02 10 5.45E+01 10 5.45E+01 10 5.45E+01 10 8.24E+01 10 8.24E+01 10 8.24E+01 10 8.24E+01 10 8.24E+01 10 8.29E+01 10 5.06E+01 10 5.06E+01 10 5.05E+01 10 5.35E+01 10 5.35E+01 10 5.35E+01	value for r 0.0400 0.2574 0.4398 0.251E+01 0.00E+00 10 6.45E+01 3.95E+00 20 1.04E+02 7.85E+00 20 1.49E+02 5.45E+00 20 1.49E+02 2.15E+00 20 0.2574 0.4398 0 1.31E+01 0.00E+00 10 5.45E+01 3.03E+00 20 8.54E+01 3.03E+00 20 8.54E+01 4.14E+02 20 7.89E+01 0.00E+00 20 7.89E+01 0.00E+00 20 6.52E+01 1.40E+01 20 6.52E+01 1.40E+01 20 5.35E+01 0.00E+00 20 5.35E+01 0.00E+00 20 5.35E+01 0.00E+00	Value for r 0.0400 0.02574 0.4398 0.2078 0.2.51E+01 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 6.45E+01 3.95E+00 3.95E+00 20 1.04E+02 7.85E+00 7.85E+00 20 1.49E+02 5.45E+00 5.79E+00 20 1.49E+02 2.15E+00 1.63E+00 20 1.49E+02 2.15E+00 1.63E+00 20 1.49E+02 2.15E+00 0.00E+00 20 1.49E+02 2.15E+00 0.00E+00 20 8.54E+01 2.07E+00 2.07E+00 20 8.54E+01 2.07E+00 2.07E+00 20 8.54E+01 3.03E+00 3.06E+00 20 8.54E+01 3.03E+00 3.07E+00 20 8.54E+01 9.07E+01 1.71E+00 20 8.64E+01 9.17E+01 1.71E+00 20 7.89E+01 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 20 6.52E+01 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 20 6.52E+01 1.40E+01 4.45E+01 20	0.04 0.08 0.12 0.2574 0.4398 0.2073 0.0872 0.251E+01 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.104E+02 7.85E+00 7.85E+00 7.85E+00 0.136E+02 9.27E+00 9.48E+00 9.94E+00 0.149E+02 5.45E+00 5.79E+00 5.97E+00 0.149E+02 2.15E+00 1.63E+00 2.08E+00 0.01 0.0274 0.4398 0.2078 0.0872 0 1.31E+01 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0 1.31E+01 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0 1.31E+01 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0 8.54E+01 3.03E+00 3.67E+00 4.07E+00 0 8.64E+01 9.17E+01 1.71E+00 2.63E+01 0 8.64E+01 9.07E+00 9.05E+03 7.11E+02 0 8.89E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0 5.95E+01 0.00E+00	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0. 0.0400 0.02574 0.4398 0.2078 0.0872 0.007 0.2551E+01 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 6.455+01 3.95E+00 3.95E+00 3.95E+00 3.95E+00 3.95E+00 20 1.04E+02 5.45E+00 5.79E+00 5.97E+00 1.13E+01 20 1.49E+02 5.45E+00 5.79E+00 2.08E+00 3.38E+00 20 1.49E+02 2.15E+00 1.63E+02 2.07E+00 2.07E+00 20 1.49E+02 2.15E+00 1.63E+00 2.07E+00 2.07E+00 20 1.49E+02 2.15E+00 1.63E+01 2.07E+00 2.07E+00 20 8.54E+01 3.03E+00 3.07E+00 2.07E+00 2.07E+00 20 8.54E+01 9.07E+01 1.71E+00 2.63E+01 1.42E+00 20 8.54E+01 9.00E+00 9.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 <	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.2001 0.02574 0.4398 0.2078 0.0672 0.007 0.008400 0.2516401 0.008400 3.958400 <t< td=""></t<>

			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0400	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
him heren	0	1.82E+03	2.05E+03	2.26E+03	2.51E+03	2.92E+03	3.42E+03	2.08E+03
	10	1.38E+03	1.60E+03	1.79E+03	2.04E+03	2.50E+03	3.06E+03	1.63E+03
	20	9.18E+02	1.09E+03	1.22E+03	1.42E+03	1.87E+03	2.49E+03	1.11E+03
	30	4.74E+02	5.78E+02	6.37E+02	7.56E+02	1.19E+03	1.83E+03	5.84E+02

40	1.68E+02	2.20E+02	2.46E+02	3.18E+02	5.48E+02	1.14E+03	2.24E+02
50	8.95E+01	1.22E+02	1.23E+02	1.28E+02	2.28E+02	8.16E+02	1.16E+02

E[N 2018 in k] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	0	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	2.31E+03	3.13E+03	4.07E+03	4.78E+03	5.17E+03	5.31E+03	3.27E+03
	10	1.30E+03	2.00E+03	2.91E+03	3.79E+03	4.53E+03	4.91E+03	2.18E+03
	20	3.63E+02	7.51E+02	1.37E+03	2.22E+03	3.39E+03	4.22E+03	9.30E+02
	30	3.86E+01	1.07E+02	2.60E+02	6.56E+02	1.75E+03	2.71E+03	1.83E+02
	40	7.26E+00	2.05E+01	7.32E+01	1.45E+02	4.55E+02	1.73E+03	4.33E+01
	50	5.20E+01	7.99E+01	8.70E+01	8.64E+01	1.56E+02	9.13E+02	7.59E+01

E[N 2028 in k] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	2.90E+03	4.43E+03	5.91E+03	6.36E+03	6.03E+03	5.73E+03	4.52E+03
	10	1.19E+03	2.55E+03	4.32E+03	5.43E+03	5.60E+03	5.47E+03	2.84E+03
	20	1.38E+02	5.42E+02	1.69E+03	3.28E+03	4.63E+03	5.08E+03	9.47E+02
	30	8.52E+00	2.33E+01	1.67E+02	8.09E+02	2.55E+03	3.31E+03	1.38E+02
	40	4.92E+00	1.78E+01	5.93E+01	1.29E+02	5.69E+02	2.20E+03	3.84E+01
	50	5.16E+01	7.99E+01	8.65E+01	8.19E+01	1.56E+02	1.09E+03	7.55E+01

E[N 2008 / K] 10 -year

value for r

			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	1.68E-01	2.13E-01	2.69E-01	3.46E-01	4.68E-01	5.87E-01	2.27E-01
	10	1.28E-01	1.66E-01	2.14E-01	2.81E-01	4.00E-01	5.25E-01	1.78E-01
	20	8.47E-02	1.13E-01	1.45E-01	1.95E-01	3.01E-01	4.27E-01	1.21E-01
	30	4.36E-02	6.04E-02	7.62E-02	1.04E-01	1.92E-01	3.12E-01	6.43E-02
	40	1.55E-02	2.30E-02	2.94E-02	4.39E-02	8.75E-02	1.93E-01	2.48E-02
	50	8.69E-03	1.29E-02	1.46E-02	1.75E-02	3.61 E-02	1.38E-01	1.28E-02

E[N 2018 / K] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	2.15E-01	3.27E-01	4.85E-01	6.59E-01	8.26E-01	9.14E-01	3.64E-01
	10	1.20E-01	2.09E-01	3.47E-01	5.23E-01	7.24E-01	8.45E-01	2.47E-01
	20	3.35E-02	7.88E-02	1.65E-01	3.08E-01	5.45E-01	7.26E-01	1.09E-01
	30	3.44E-03	1.12E-02	3.10E-02	9.10E-02	2.81E-01	4.63E-01	2.25E-02
	40	8.15E-04	2.40E-03	9.03E-03	2.00E-02	7.25E-02	2.92E-01	5.63E-03
	50	5.35E-03	8.54E-03	1.03E-02	1.18E-02	2.45E-02	1.53E-01	8.60E-03

E[N 2028 / K] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	2.70E-01	4.62E-01	7.03E-01	8.74E-01	9.62E-01	9.88E-01	5.02E-01
	10	1.11E-01	2.68E-01	5.16E-01	7.47E-01	8.94E-01	9.43E-01	3.26E-01
	20	1.26E-02	5.70E-02	2.04E-01	4.54E-01	7.43E-01	8.75E-01	1.16E-01
	30	6.66E-04	2.41E-03	1.99E-02	1.13E-01	4.09E-01	5.67E-01	1.85E-02
	40	5.79E-04	2.15E-03	7.40E-03	1.78E-02	9.05E-02	3.73E-01	5.12E-03
	50	5.31E-03	8.54E-03	1.03E-02	1.12E-02	2.46E-02	1.83E-01	8.55E-03

P[Extinct] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	1.01E-02	5.46E-03	5.78E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.20E-03
	30	3.23E-01	2.17E-01	1.99E-01	1.61E-01	1.14E-01	0.00E+00	2.35E-01
	40	7.21E-01	6.55E-01	6.33E-01	6.22E-01	2.86E-01	5.00E-01	6.62E-01
	50	9.26E-01	8.91E-01	9.17E-01	8.95E-01	8.29E-01	5.00E-01	9.05E-01

P[Extinct] 20 -year

		Va	lue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	d	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00		0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	20	4.99E-01	2.67E-01	1.13E-01	1.61E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.71E-01
	30	9.43E-01	8.52E-01	7.25E-01	5.76E-01	1.71E-01	0.00E+00	8.20E-01
	40	9.97E-01	9.95E-01	9.76E-01	9.29E-01	8.29E-01	5.00E-01	9.84E-01
	50	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	9.99E-01	9.93E-01	9.43E-01	7.50E-01	9.98E-01

.

P[Extinct	30 -1	rear
-----------	-------	------

		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	6.92E-02	2.27E-03	9.63E-04	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.90E-02
	20	8.63E-01	5.74E-01	2.66E-01	9.63E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.38E-01
	30	9.97E-01	9.67E-01	8.94E-01	6.67E-01	2.29E-01	2.50E-01	9.28E-01
	40	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.95E-01	9.77E-01	8.29E-01	5.00E-01	9.95E-01
	50	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.98E-01	9.43E-01	7.50E-01	9.99E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 10 -year

P[Nfin>MSYL] 20 -year							
	value	e for r			5		
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2	000+	E(X)
	<0.0400						
prob. per bin	0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	

			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	7.77E-04	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.84E-02	2.86E-01	7.50E-01	4.40E-03
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.59E-03	1.43E-01	5.00E-01	1.80E-03
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.71E-02	2.50E-01	6.00E-04
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.50E-01	2.00E-04
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.50E-01	2.00E-04
	50	0.00E+00						

value for r

P[Nfin>MSYL] 10 -year	
nogn mar in	

			val	ue for r					
				0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
		4	0.0400						
prob. per bin			0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
		0	1.41E-01	1.82E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.72E-02
		10	8.88E-01	3.07E-01	7.70E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.65E-01
	5.5	20	9.97E-01	9.16E-01	5.27E-01	1.49E-01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.82E-01
		30	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.60E-01	7.48E-01	2.57E-01	2.50E-01	9.64E-01
		40	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.99E-01	9.82E-01	8.86E-01	5.00E-01	9.97E-01
		50	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.98E-01	9.43E-01	7.50E-01	9.99E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 30 -year

	50	9.992-01	1.002+00	1.002+00	3.30E-01	3.402-01	7.502-01	3.35E-01
P[Nfin<0.2K] 20 -year							1	
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
/-	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	4.76E-01	4.18E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.41E-01
π φ(π.π.) π(π.π.) -βα μ φ =	10	9.05E-01	4.88E-01	7.41E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.63E-01
	20	9.93E-01	9.24E-01	6.19E-01	3.39E-01	8.57E-02	0.00E+00	8.21E-01
	30	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	9.63E-01	7.80E-01	2.86E-01	2.50E-01	9.67E-01
	40	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.98E-01	9.82E-01	8.86E-01	5.00E-01	9.97E-01
	50	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.98E-01	9.43E-01	7.50E-01	9.99E-01

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	8.04E-01	4.30E-01	1.19E-01	9.17E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.22E-01
	10	9.25E-01	7.60E-01	4.47E-01	1.31E-01	5.71E-02	0.00E+00	6.77E-01
	20	9.83E-01	9.31E-01	7.93E-01	5.71E-01	1.14E-01	0.00E+00	8.78E-01
	30	9.96E-01	9.86E-01	9.63E-01	8.35E-01	5.71E-01	5.00E-01	9.68E-01
	40	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	9.95E-01	9.79E-01	8.57E-01	5.00E-01	9.96E-01
	50	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.93E-01	9.43E-01	7.50E-01	9.99E-01

	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.86E-02	2.50E-01	4.00E-04
P[Nfin>Ncur] 30 -year								
		val	ue for r					
	-	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	-	0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	2.01E-01	9.13E-01	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.56E-01
	20	0.00E+00	9.50E-02	5.70E-01	8.65E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	2.43E-01

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	1.67E-01	8.87E-01	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.36E-01
	20	0.00E+00	8.87E-02	5.45E-01	8.60E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	2.35E-01
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.66E-02	2.59E-01	7.43E-01	7.50E-01	3.60E-02
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.63E-04	1.84E-02	1.14E-01	5.00E-01	3.00E-03
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.86E-02	2.50E-01	4.00E-04

P[Nfin>Ncur] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	<	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	6.68E-02	7.79E-01	9.95E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	6.62E-01
	20	0.00E+00	6.96E-02	4.73E-01	8.44E-01	9.14E-01	1.00E+00	2.10E-01
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.27E-02	2.18E-01	7.43E-01	7.50E-01	3.16E-02
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.63E-04	1.61E-02	1.14E-01	5.00E-01	2.80E-03
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.86E-02	2.50E-01	4.00E-04

P[Nfin>Ncur]	10 -year
--------------	----------

P[Nfin>MSYL] 30 -yea	r							
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	4.66E-03	3.71E-01	9.87E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	4.64E-01
	10	0.00E+00	3.82E-02	5.61E-01	9.95E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	2.28E-01
•	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.22E-02	4.95E-01	9.14E-01	1.00E+00	6.54E-02
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.63E-04	6.42E-02	4.57E-01	7.50E-01	9.60E-03
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.59E-03	1.14E-01	5.00E-01	1.60E-03
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.50E-01	2.00E-04

0	7.77E-04	2.87E-02	4.44E-01	9.91E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.99E-01
10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.22E-02	5.80E-01	9.43E-01	1.00E+00	7.30E-02
20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.81E-03	1.49E-01	7.71E-01	1.00E+00	2.02E-02
30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.88E-03	1.43E-01	5.00E-01	2.00E-03
40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.86E-02	2.50E-01	4.00E-04
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.50E-01	2.00E-04

30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.14E-02	2.59E-01	7.43E-01	7.50E-01	3.70E-02
40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.63E-04	1.84E-02	1.14E-01	5.00E-01	3.00E-03
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.29E-03	2.86E-02	2.50E-01	6.00E-04

P[N98>N93	10-	year
-----------	-----	------

		Val	ue ior i					
		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	0.00E+00						
	30	0.00E+00						
	40	0.00E+00						
	50	0.00E+00						

P[N98>N93] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	0.00E+00						
	30	0.00E+00						
	40	0.00E+00						
	50	0.00E+00						

P[N98>N93] 30 -year

	vai	ue for r					
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
0	0.0400						
	0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	0 10 20 30 40 50	<0.0400 0.2574 0 0.00E+00 10 0.00E+00 20 0.00E+00 30 0.00E+00 40 0.00E+00 50 0.00E+00	Value for F 0.04 0.2574 0.4398 0 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 20 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 30 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 40 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 50 0.00E+00 0.00E+00	Value for r 0.04 0.08 <0.0400	Value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 <0.0400	Value for F 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0. <0.0400	Value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.2000+ <0.0400

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400		A DOTATION OF				
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	3.10E+01	2.92E+01	2.14E+01	1.55E+01	1.13E+01	8.50E+00	2.67E+01
	10	3.10E+01	3.09E+01	2.75E+01	1.99E+01	1.36E+01	1.00E+01	2.85E+01
	20	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	3.05E+01	2.66E+01	1.86E+01	1.30E+01	2.90E+01
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.09E+01	2.96E+01	2.62E+01	1.67E+01	2.92E+01

40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.99E+01	2.30E+01	1.65E+01	2.63E+01
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	3.10E+01	1.60E+01	2.60E+01

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	<	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	3.10E+01	2.92E+01	2.14E+01	1.55E+01	1.13E+01	8.50E+00	2.67E+01
	10	3.10E+01	3.09E+01	2.75E+01	1.99E+01	1.36E+01	1.00E+01	2.85E+01
	20	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	3.05E+01	2.66E+01	1.86E+01	1.30E+01	2.90E+01
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.09E+01	2.96E+01	2.62E+01	1.67E+01	2.92E+01
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.99E+01	2.30E+01	1.65E+01	2.63E+01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	3.10E+01	1.60E+01	2.60E+01

EIT	(MSYL)lrecov]	30 -1	rear
-----	-------	----------	-------	------

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.2574	0.4398	0.2078	0.0872	0.007	0.0008	
	0	3.10E+01	2.92E+01	2.14E+01	1.55E+01	1.13E+01	8.50E+00	2.67E+01
	10	3.10E+01	3.09E+01	2.75E+01	1.99E+01	1.36E+01	1.00E+01	2.85E+01
	20	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	3.05E+01	2.66E+01	1.86E+01	1.30E+01	2.90E+01
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.09E+01	2.96E+01	2.62E+01	1.67E+01	2.92E+01
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.99E+01	2.30E+01	1.65E+01	2.63E+01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.10E+01	3.10E+01	1.60E+01	2.60E+01

Large Coastals E[cat/yr] 10 -year	A	It Catch	Cond on r					
		1	alue for r					
	4	0.400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	2.51E+01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.68E+00
	10	6.45E+01	3.95E+00	3.95E+00	3.95E+00	3.95E+00	0.00E+00	2.73E+01
	20	1.04E+02	7.89E+00	7.89E+00	7.89E+00	7.89E+00	0.00E+00	4.50E+01
	30	1.43E+02	1.18E+01	1.18E+01	1.18E+01	1.18E+01	0.00E+00	6.26E+01
	40	1.79E+02	1.41E+01	1.45E+01	1.49E+01	1.58E+01	0.00E+00	7.78E+01
	50	2.00E+02	1.08E+01	1.39E+01	1.60E+01	1.97E+01	0.00E+00	8.42E+01

E[cat/yr] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400	0.4000	0 1 2 1 6	0.0106	0.002	0	
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4000	0.1310	0.0106	0.005	0	
	0	1.31E+01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.07E+00
	10	5.45E+01	2.07E+00	2.07E+00	2.07E+00	2.07E+00	0.00E+00	2.23E+01
	20	9.52E+01	4.11E+00	4.12E+00	4.13E+00	4.13E+00	0.00E+00	3.93E+01
	30	1.22E+02	4.29E+00	5.64E+00	5.85E+00	6.20E+00	0.00E+00	5.01E+01
	40	1.22E+02	1.42E+00	4.21E+00	6.71E+00	8.27E+00	0.00E+00	4.84E+01
	50	1.15E+02	3.13E-01	1.10E+00	4.49E+00	6.89E+00	0.00E+00	4.48E+01

E[cat/yr] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	8.89E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.43E+00
	10	5.09E+01	1.40E+00	1.40E+00	1.40E+00	1.40E+00	0.00E+00	2.05E+01
	20	8.75E+01	2.61E+00	2.76E+00	2.80E+00	2.80E+00	0.00E+00	3.54E+01
	30	9.13E+01	1.31E+00	3.31E+00	3.96E+00	4.20E+00	0.00E+00	3.63E+01
	40	8.35E+01	1.79E-01	1.30E+00	3.91E+00	5.60E+00	0.00E+00	3.25E+01
	50	7.81E+01	8.96E-03	1.81E-01	1.72E+00	4.67E+00	0.00E+00	3.02E+01

E[N 2008 in k] 10 -year

1. her		Val	ue for t					
The second secon			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	<0.0400							
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	2.62E+03	2.89E+03	3.32E+03	3.88E+03	4.49E+03	0.00E+00	2.86E+03
	10	2.20E+03	2.46E+03	2.92E+03	3.52E+03	4.19E+03	0.00E+00	2.44E+03
	20	1.75E+03	1.97E+03	2.39E+03	3.00E+03	3.72E+03	0.00E+00	1.96E+03
	30	1.30E+03	1.48E+03	1.85E+03	2.44E+03	3.20E+03	0.00E+00	1.47E+03
	40	9.31E+02	1.02E+03	1.34E+03	1.89E+03	2.65E+03	0.00E+00	1.04E+03
	50	6.94E+02	7.35E+02	9.34E+02	1.32E+03	2.04E+03	0.00E+00	7.55E+02

E[N 2018 in k] 20 -year

		Val	ue ior i					
	<	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0.	
	0	3.25E+03	4.23E+03	5.52E+03	6.36E+03	6.71E+03	0.00E+00	4.05E+03
	10	2.28E+03	3.20E+03	4.58E+03	5.69E+03	6.28E+03	0.00E+00	3.07E+03
	20	1.26E+03	2.02E+03	3.36E+03	4.73E+03	5.67E+03	0.00E+00	1.94E+03
	30	6.61E+02	1.05E+03	2.08E+03	3.50E+03	4.88E+03	0.00E+00	1.07E+03
	40	9.27E+02	9.68E+02	1.16E+03	2.22E+03	3.72E+03	0.00E+00	9.99E+02
	50	9.94E+02	1.03E+03	1.17E+03	1.30E+03	2.53E+03	0.00E+00	1.04E+03

E[N 2028 in k] 30 -year

		vai	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	3.97E+03	5.74E+03	7.45E+03	7.71E+03	7.41E+03	0.00E+00	5.31E+03
	10	2.38E+03	4.12E+03	6.29E+03	7.12E+03	7.07E+03	0.00E+00	3.78E+03
	20	7.64E+02	2.08E+03	4.56E+03	6.20E+03	6.64E+03	0.00E+00	1.96E+03
	30	6.12E+02	1.09E+03	2.47E+03	4.65E+03	6.02E+03	0.00E+00	1.14E+03
	40	1.62E+03	1.72E+03	1.55E+03	2.82E+03	4.73E+03	0.00E+00	1.68E+03
	50	3.44E+03	3.30E+03	3.39E+03	2.83E+03	3.95E+03	0.00E+00	3.37E+03

E[N 2008 / K] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	2.08E-01	2.55E-01	3.42E-01	4.62E-01	5.89E-01	0.00E+00	2.52E-01
	10	1.75E-01	2.18E-01	3.00E-01	4.18E-01	5.50E-01	0.00E+00	2.15E-01
	20	1.39E-01	1.75E-01	2.46E-01	3.56E-01	4.87E-01	0.00E+00	1.73E-01
	30	1.03E-01	1.31E-01	1.90E-01	2.89E-01	4.19E-01	0.00E+00	1.30E-01
	40	7.40E-02	9.02E-02	1.37E-01	2.23E-01	3.45E-01	0.00E+00	9.22E-02
	50	5.50E-02	6.49E-02	9.57E-02	1.55E-01	2.65E-01	0.00E+00	6.67E-02

E[N 2018 / K] 20 -year

	-							
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	2.58E-01	3.75E-01	5.67E-01	7.57E-01	8.82E-01	0.00E+00	3.61E-01
	10	1.81E-01	2.84E-01	4.71E-01	6.77E-01	8.26E-01	0.00E+00	2.75E-01
	20	9.99E-02	1.79E-01	3.46E-01	5.61E-01	7.46E-01	0.00E+00	1.76E-01
	30	5.42E-02	9.33E-02	2.14E-01	4.14E-01	6.40E-01	0.00E+00	9.92E-02
	40	7.39E-02	8.51E-02	1.18E-01	2.61E-01	4.86E-01	0.00E+00	8.82E-02
	50	7.94E-02	9.09E-02	1.21E-01	1.54E-01	3.29E-01	0.00E+00	9.18E-02

E[N 2028 / K] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	3.15E-01	5.08E-01	7.64E-01	9.19E-01	9.76E-01	0.00E+00	4.73E-01
	10	1.90E-01	3.65E-01	6.46E-01	8.48E-01	9.31E-01	0.00E+00	3.41E-01
	20	6.07E-02	1.85E-01	4.69E-01	7.38E-01	8.74E-01	0.00E+00	1.83E-01
	30	5.27E-02	9.84E-02	2.54E-01	5.51E-01	7.91E-01	0.00E+00	1.08E-01
	40	1.30E-01	1.51E-01	1.60E-01	3.34E-01	6.19E-01	0.00E+00	1.48E-01
	50	2.73E-01	2.92E-01	3.49E-01	3.36E-01	5.19E-01	0.00E+00	2.93E-01

P[Extinct] 10 -year								
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	30	7.25E-03	4.69E-03	6.08E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.80E-03
	40	1.47E-01	1.06E-01	7.90E-02	5.66E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.17E-01
	50	4.89E-01	4.55E-01	2.96E-01	1.89E-01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.43E-01
P[Extinct] 20 -year								
		val	lue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)

67

<0.0400

prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	20	4.97E-02	6.40E-03	3.04E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.26E-02
	30	5.29E-01	3.09E-01	9.12E-02	5.66E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.62E-01
	40	9.38E-01	8.28E-01	4.91E-01	1.89E-01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.17E-01
	50	9.96E-01	9.70E-01	8.94E-01	5.66E-01	3.33E-01	0.00E+00	9.64E-01
	30 40 50	5.29E-01 9.38E-01 9.96E-01	3.09E-01 8.28E-01 9.70E-01	9.12E-02 4.91E-01 8.94E-01	5.66E-02 1.89E-01 5.66E-01	0.00E+00 0.00E+00 3.33E-01	0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00	3.6 8.1 9.6

P[Extinct] 30 -year

	value for f								
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+ /	E(X)	
and another	4	0.0400	0.4000	0.4246	0.0406	0.000	0		
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1310	0.0106	0.005	0		
	0	0.00E+00							
- 10° mar. 27° 4	10	0.00E+00							
and the	20	3.21E-01	7.00E-02	1.37E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.59E-01	
ngare in * pr - name	30	9.32E-01	6.89E-01	2.11E-01	5.66E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.11E-01	
sector V	40	9.96E-01	9.68E-01	7.68E-01	3.02E-01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.43E-01	
	50	1.00E+00	9.99E-01	9.74E-01	7.55E-01	3.33E-01	0.00E+00	9.91E-01	

6---

P[Nfin<0.2K] 10 -year

		val	ue for r						
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)	
	<0.0400			5 1 P 100				-	
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0		
	0	4.62E-01	1.66E-01	2.43E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.59E-01	
	10	7.30E-01	4.19E-01	5.32E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.85E-01	
	20	9.01E-01	6.93E-01	2.64E-01	5.66E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.08E-01	
	30	9.64E-01	8.87E-01	5.53E-01	1.89E-01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.63E-01	
	40	9.90E-01	9.64E-01	8.42E-01	3.21E-01	6.67E-02	0.00E+00	9.48E-01	
	50	9.96E-01	9.86E-01	9.35E-01	7.36E-01	3.33E-01	0.00E+00	9.79E-01	

P[Nfin<0.2K] 20 -year

- 5 -		Val	ue for r					
a wedd awy y war Shar a 'r			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob per bin	4	0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
prob. per bill		0.000	0.4000	0.1010	0.0100	0.000	U	1.000
	0	1.80E-01	6.83E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.26E-02
	10	6.67E-01	1.54E-01	6.08E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.31E-01
	20	9.49E-01	6.26E-01	8.51E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.71E-01
	30	9.71E-01	9.07E-01	4.59E-01	9.43E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.62E-01
	40	9.38E-01	9.07E-01	8.34E-01	3.40E-01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.00E-01
	50	9.09E-01	8.97E-01	8.54E-01	6.79E-01	2.67E-01	0.00E+00	8.92E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	<	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	7.77E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.00E-02
	10	5.72E-01	5.63E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.47E-01

20	9.68E-01	5.82E-01	5.02E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.53E-01
30	9.11E-01	8.30E-01	4.20E-01	5.66E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.97E-01
40	7.57E-01	7.06E-01	6.88E-01	3.02E-01	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.17E-01
50	3.21E-01	3.30E-01	2.28E-01	1.51E-01	6.67E-02	0.00E+00	3.10E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	6	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.08E-03	2.83E-01	9.33E-01	0.00E+00	6.60E-03
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.56E-03	1.89E-01	6.67E-01	0.00E+00	4.60E-03
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.77E-02	4.00E-01	0.00E+00	1.60E-03
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.33E-01	0.00E+00	1.00E-03
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.67E-02	0.00E+00	2.00E-04
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.67E-02	0.00E+00	2.00E-04

P[Nfin>MSYL] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	0.00E+00	6.74E-02	7.77E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.47E-01
	10	0.00E+00	1.28E-02	4.29E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.60E-02
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.54E-02	7.55E-01	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.96E-02
	30	1.55E-03	0.00E+00	7.60E-03	3.02E-01	9.33E-01	0.00E+00	7.60E-03
	40	1.55E-03	8.53E-04	6.08E-03	7.55E-02	6.67E-01	0.00E+00	4.60E-03
	50	4.15E-03	8.96E-03	5.62E-02	0.00E+00	3.33E-01	0.00E+00	1.42E-02

P[Nfin>MSYL] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	1.24E-02	5.12E-01	-9.97E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.90E-01
	10	0.00E+00	1.25E-01	9.18E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.93E-01
	20	0.00E+00	1.28E-02	4.62E-01	- 1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.04E-02
	30	9.33E-03	1.20E-02	6.84E-02	7.36E-01	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.90E-02
	40	1.40E-02	2.30E-02	4.26E-02	2.64E-01	6.67E-01	0.00E+00	2.66E-02
	50	2.07E-02	3.03E-02	2.26E-01	1.70E-01	4.67E-01	0.00E+00	5.52E-02

P[Nfin>Ncur] 10 -year

	val	ue for r					
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
4	0.0400	0.4688	0 1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0.000	0.4000	0.1010	0.0100	0.000	U	
0	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.00E+00
10	3.88E-01	9.89E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.58E-01
20	0.00E+00	3.51E-01	9.51E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.03E-01
	0 10 20	val <0.0400 0.386 0 1.00E+00 10 3.88E-01 20 0.00E+00	value for r 0.04 <0.0400 0.386 0.4688 0 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 10 3.88E-01 9.89E-01 20 0.00E+00 3.51E-01	value for r 0.04 0.08 <0.0400 0.386 0.4688 0.1316 0 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 10 3.88E-01 9.89E-01 1.00E+00 20 0.00E+00 3.51E-01 9.51E-01	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 <0.0400	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0 <0.386 0.4688 0.1316 0.0106 0.003 0 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 10 3.88E-01 9.89E-01 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 20 0.00E+00 3.51E-01 9.51E-01 1.00E+00 1.00E+00	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.2000+ <0.0400

30	0.00E+00	3.37E-02	5.09E-01	9.43E-01	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.58E-02
40	3.42E-02	1.02E-02	7.90E-02	5.85E-01	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.76E-02
50	1.40E-02	1.96E-02	5.32E-02	1.51E-01	6.67E-01	0.00E+00	2.52E-02

P[Nfin>Ncur] 20 -year value for r 0.16 0.2000+ 0.04 0.08 0.12 E(X) <0.0400 0.0106 0.003 0.386 0.4688 0.1316 0 prob. per bin 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 0.00E+00 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 0 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 0.00E+00 8.22E-01 5.43E-01 9.97E-01 10 20 5.18E-04 4.39E-01 9.70E-01 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 0.00E+00 3.47E-01 0.00E+00 6.03E-01 9.43E-01 1.00E+00 1.45E-01 30 3.63E-02 8.28E-02 0.00E+00 1.29E-01 6.42E-01 1.00E+00 40 8.96E-02 1.34E-01 1.67E-01 7.33E-01 0.00E+00 1.24E-01 50 9.95E-02 1.31E-01 1.49E-01 2.26E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 30 -year

		Val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.00E+00
	10	5.86E-01	9.97E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.39E-01
	20	1.55E-03	4.67E-01	9.71E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.61E-01
	30	9.12E-02	1.78E-01	6.22E-01	9.43E-01	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.13E-01
	40	2.85E-01	3.61E-01	3.27E-01	6.98E-01	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.33E-01
	50	7.28E-01	7.58E-01	7.74E-01	7.36E-01	9.33E-01	0.00E+00	7.49E-01

P[N98>N93] 10 -year

3ŕ

	val	ue for r					
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
4	0.0400						
	0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00
	0 10 20 30 40 50	val <0.0400 0.386 0 0.00E+00 10 0.00E+00 20 0.00E+00 30 0.00E+00 40 0.00E+00 50 0.00E+00	value for r 0.0400 0.386 0.4688 0 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 20 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 30 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 40 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 50 0.00E+00 0.00E+00	value for r 0.0400 0.08 0.386 0.4688 0.1316 0 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 20 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 30 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 40 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 50 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 <0.0400	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0. <0.0400	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.2000+ <0.0400

P[N98>N93] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	0.00E+00						
	30	0.00E+00						
	40	0.00E+00						
	50	0.00E+00						

P[N98>N93] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	0.00E+00						
	30	0.00E+00						
	40	0.00E+00						
	50	0.00E+00						

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
 prob. per bin	4	0.0400	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	3.10E+01	2.78E+01	1.78E+01	1.17E+01	8.20E+00	0.00E+00	2.75E+01
	10	3.10E+01	3.04E+01	2.22E+01	1.36E+01	9.07E+00	0.00E+00	2.90E+01
	20	3.10E+01	3.09E+01	2.78E+01	1.79E+01	1.10E+01	0.00E+00	2.93E+01
	30	3.04E+01	3.07E+01	3.04E+01	2.36E+01	1.41E+01	0.00E+00	3.00E+01
	40	3.07E+01	3.07E+01	3.03E+01	2.81E+01	2.05E+01	0.00E+00	3.05E+01
	50	3.08E+01	3.08E+01	2.93E+01	2.96E+01	2.51E+01	0.00E+00	3.06E+01

E[T(MSYL)[recov] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	•	0.0400 0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0	
	0	3.10E+01	2.78E+01	1.78E+01	1.17E+01	8.20E+00	0.00E+00	2.75E+01
	10	3.10E+01	3.04E+01	2.22E+01	1.36E+01	9.07E+00	0.00E+00	2.90E+01
	20	3.10E+01	3.09E+01	2.78E+01	1.79E+01	1.10E+01	0.00E+00	2.93E+01
	30	3.04E+01	3.07E+01	3.04E+01	2.36E+01	1.41E+01	0.00E+00	3.00E+01
	40	3.07E+01	3.07E+01	3.03E+01	2.81E+01	2.05E+01	0.00E+00	3.05E+01
	50	3.08E+01	3.08E+01	2.93E+01	2.96E+01	2.51E+01	0.00E+00	3.06E+01

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 30 -year

		val	ue for r						
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2000+		E(X)	
prob. per bin	4	0.0400 0.386	0.4688	0.1316	0.0106	0.003	0		
	0	3.10E+01	2.78E+01	1.78E+01	1.17E+01	8.20E+00	0.00E+00	2.75E+01	
	10	3.10E+01	3.04E+01	2.22E+01	1.36E+01	9.07E+00	0.00E+00	2.90E+01	
	20	3.10E+01	3.09E+01	2.78E+01	1.79E+01	1.10E+01	0.00E+00	2.93E+01	
	30	3.04E+01	3.07E+01	3.04E+01	2.36E+01	1.41E+01	0.00E+00	3.00E+01	
	40	3.07E+01	3.07E+01	3.03E+01	2.81E+01	2.05E+01	0.00E+00	3.05E+01	
	50	3.08E+01	3.08E+01	2.93E+01	2.96E+01	2.51E+01	0.00E+00	3.06E+01	
Sandbar	B	aseline	Cond on r						
--	---------------------	--	---	--	--	--	--	------------------	
E[cat/yr] 10 -year		,	value for r						
		`		0.09	0.12	016.0	2000+	FIN	
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.00	0.12	0.10 0.	2000		
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858		
	0	3.41E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.77E+01	
	10	3.51E+02	9.78E-01	9.78E-01	9.78E-01	9.78E-01	9.78E-01	4.99E+01	
	20	3.61E+02	1.96E+00	1.96E+00	1.96E+00	1.96E+00	1.96E+00	5.21E+01	
	30	3.71E+02	2.92E+00	2.92E+00	2.93E+00	2.94E+00	2.94E+00	5.43E+01	
	40	3.80E+02	3.81E+00	3.86E+00	3.87E+00	3.91E+00	3.90E+00	5.64E+01	
	50	3.89E+02	4.60E+00	4.65E+00	4.66E+00	4.88E+00	4.88E+00	5.84E+01	
E[cat/yr] 20 -year									
		N	value for r						
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)	
prob. per. bin	A	0.0400	0.3646	0 2176	0 1184	0.0738	0.0858		
prop. percent	0	1 79E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.000 +00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2505+01	
	10	1.89E+02	5125-01	5 12E-01	5 12E-01	5 12E-01	5 12E-01	2.000-101	
	20	1 99E+02	1.02E+00	1.02E+00	1.03E+00	1.03E+00	1 03E+00	2.05L+01	
	30	2 09E+02	1.02E+00	1.51E+00	1.53E+00	1.54E+00	1.545+00	3055+01	
	40	217E+02	1.75E+00	1.89E+00	1955+00	204E+00	2055+00	3 105-01	
	50	2.24E+02	1.81E+00	2.03E+00	2.23E+00	2.41E+00	2.54E+00	3.30E+01	
E[cat/yr] 30 -year									
			value for r						
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)	
prob. por bio	4	0.0400	0.3646	0.2176	01184	0.0729	0.0050		
prop. per bin	0	1 21 5402	0.005+00	0.2170	0.005+00	0.0738	0.005+00	1 005 101	
	10	1 225-02	3.475.04	3.475.01	3 475 01	3.475.01	2.47E.01	1.095+01	
	20	1.020+02	6915.01	6.01E.01	5.47E-01	5.47E-01	5.47E-01	20/5-01	
	20	1.4205.000	0.012-01	1.005+00	1.025+00	0.942-01	0.946-01	2.040 - 01	
	40	1.500-102	9.232-01	1.000-00	1.052+00	1.040+00	1.040+00	2.100-01	
<i>k</i> .	50	1.600+02	796E-01	1.195+00	1.485+00	1.502+00	1.392+00	2.295.10	
and a second sec		1.002.02	1.502-01	1.132.00	1.402.000	1.002.000	1.722100	2.000101	
EIN 2008 in k 1 10 -vea	r								
			value for r						
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)	
prob per bin	0	0.0400	0 3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0729	0.0050		
hion her nitt	0	1 305 -03	0.3040	1 465+02	1 565+02	1 575+02	1 775 102	1 AFE IN	
	10	1 305-00	1.325+03	1 305-03	1.000-103	1515+02	1.7/2403	1 27540	
	20	1 105-00	112000	1 275-02	1 385-03	1 415-02	1.675+03	1.3/670	
	20	1.000.000	1.12010	1 455.00	1.00000	1.412103	1.0/2+03	1.455.00	
	0 10 20 30	1.39E+03 1.30E+03 1.19E+03 1.08E+03	3 1.32E+03 3 1.23E+03 3 1.12E+03 3 1.01E+03	1.46E+03 1.39E+03 1.27E+03 1.15E+03	1.56E+03 1.49E+03 1.38E+03 1.27E+03	1.57E+03 1.51E+03 1.41E+03 1.30E+03	1.77E+03 1.74E+03 1.67E+03 1.59E+03	1 1 1 1	

r

1.03E+03

9.11E+02

1.14E+03

1.02E+03

1.18E+03

1.06E+03

1.50E+03

1.41E+03

1.04E+03

9.22E+02

8.89E+02

7.75E+02

40

50

9.71E+02

8.66E+02

	30	2.57E-01	2.79E-01	3.78E-01	4.62E-01	5.45E-01	7.24E-01	3.77E-01
	40	2.30E-01	2.45E-01	3.36E-01	4.15E-01	4.93E-01	6.82E-01	3.39E-01
	50	2.03E-01	2.12E-01	2.94E-01	3.67E-01	4.39E-01	6.36E-01	3.00E-01
E[N 2018 / K] 20 -year								
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	4.00E-01	5.05E-01	7.00E-01	8.33E-01	9.12E-01	9.77E-01	6.42E-01
	10	3.45E-01	4.43E-01	6.41E-01	7.85E-01	8.75E-01	9.53E-01	5.88E-01
	20	2.85E-01	3.70E-01	5.65E-01	7.19E-01	8.23E-01	9.23E-01	5.23E-01
	30	2.28E-01	2.95E-01	4.79E-01	6.40E-01	7.60E-01	8.89E-01	4.52E-01
	40	1.77E-01	2.22E-01	3.88E-01	5.48E-01	6.80E-01	8.49E-01	3.78E-0
	50	1.32E-01	1.59E-01	2.99E-01	4.54E-01	5.81E-01	7.97E-01	3.06E-01
E[N 2028 / K] 30 -year								
		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)

	10	1.58E+03	1.95E+03	2.39E+03	2.47E+03	2.29E+03	2.17E+03	2.10E+03
	20	1.22E+03	1.57E+03	2.12E+03	2.32E+03	2.20E+03	2.12E+03	1.82E+03
	30	8.82E+02	1.16E+03	1.79E+03	2.12E+03	2.09E+03	2.07E+03	1.52E+03
	40	6.05E+02	7.84E+02	1.40E+03	1.84E+03	1.93E+03	2.01E+03	1.21E+03
	50	4.11E+02	4.83E+02	1.03E+03	1.53E+03	1.70E+03	1.93E+03	9.29E+02
E[N 2008 / K] 1	10-year							

0.08

0.2176

4.85E-01

4.58E-01

4.18E-01

			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0400 0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	1.65E+03	1.80E+03	2.12E+03	2.26E+03	2.18E+03	2.17E+03	1.96E+03
	10	1.44E+03	1.58E+03	1.95E+03	2.14E+03	2.10E+03	2.12E+03	1.79E+03
	20	1.20E+03	1.33E+03	1.72E+03	1.97E+03	1.98E+03	2.06E+03	1.59E+03
	30	9.74E+02	1.08E+03	1.48E+03	1.77E+03	1.84E+03	1.99E+03	1.37E+03
	40	7.66E+02	8.25E+02	1.21E+03	1.53E+03	1.66E+03	1.91E+03	1.14E+03
	50	5.83E+02	6.01E+02	9.52E+02	1.29E+03	1.44E+03	1.81E+03	9.21E+02

0.08

0.2176

2.59E+03

0.12

0.12

0.1184

5.77E-01

5.51E-01

5.08E-01

0.1184

2.59E+03

0.16 0.2000+

0.16 0.2000+

0.0738

6.63E-01

6.38E-01

5.93E-01

0.0858

0.0858

8.16E-01

7.99E-01

7.63E-01

2.22E+03

0.0738

2.36E+03

E(X)

E(X)

4.75E-01

4.50E-01

4.14E-01

2.33E+03

value for r

value for r

value for r

0.04

0.3646

3.72E-01

3.46E-01

3.12E-01

<0.0400

<0.0400

0

10

20

0.1398

3.36E-01

3.12E-01

2.84E-01

0

0.1398

1.93E+03

0.04

0.3646

2.26E+03

E[N 2028 in k] 30 -year

prob. per bin

prob. per bin

prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	4.66E-01	6.34E-01	8.53E-01	9.49E-01	9.83E-01	9.97E-01	7.52E-01
	10	3.79E-01	5.43E-01	7.86E-01	9.05E-01	9.51E-01	9.75E-01	6.83E-01
	20	2.87E-01	4.32E-01	6.94E-01	8.47E-01	9.12E-01	9.51E-01	5.98E-01
	30	2.03E-01	3.14E-01	5.78E-01	7.64E-01	8.64E-01	9.22E-01	5.02E-01
	40	1.37E-01	2.07E-01	4.43E-01	6.52E-01	7.88E-01	8.92E-01	4.03E-01
	50	9.23E-02	1.23E-01	3.17E-01	5.33E-01	6.83E-01	8.49E-01	3.13E-01

P[Extinct] 10 -year

		vai	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	0	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
integer i visit unter Austan in	0	0.00E+00						
an I an	10	0.00E+00						
a na tha tha tha tha tha tha tha tha tha th	20	0.00E+00	5.49E-04	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.00E-04
	30	1.43E-02	5.49E-03	4.60E-03	1.69E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.20E-03
	40	4.15E-02	2.63E-02	1.47E-02	1.18E-02	0.00E+00	2.33E-03	2.02E-02
	50	8.58E-02	5.87E-02	4.96E-02	4.73E-02	2.71E-03	2.33E-03	5.02E-02

P[Extinct] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	1.86E-02	6.58E-03	1.84E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.40E-03
	30	1.00E-01	4.11E-02	1.65E-02	6.76E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.34E-02
	40	2.00E-01	1.47E-01	7.72E-02	4.90E-02	2.71E-03	2.33E-03	1.05E-01
	50	3.68E-01	2.94E-01	2.07E-01	1.30E-01	5.96E-02	9.32E-03	2.24E-01

P[Extinct] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	1.43E-03	5.49E-04	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.00E-04
	20	5.87E-02	1.92E-02	4.60E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.62E-02
	30	2.03E-01	1.14E-01	3.86E-02	1.18E-02	0.00E+00	2.33E-03	7.98E-02
	40	4.32E-01	2.79E-01	1.31E-01	7.77E-02	8.13E-03	2.33E-03	2.01E-01
	50	5.92E-01	5.41E-01	3.16E-01	1.49E-01	6.23E-02	9.32E-03	3.72E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K]	10 -year
--------------	----------

	value	e for r					
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2	+000	E(X)
	<0.0400						
prob. per bin	0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	

0	1.89E-01	6.09E-02	1.20E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.12E-02
10	2.62E-01	1.21E-01	2.85E-02	1.69E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.72E-02
20	3.12E-01	2.05E-01	6.89E-02	2.20E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.36E-01
30	3.81E-01	2.90E-01	1.20E-01	5.24E-02	2.71E-03	2.33E-03	1.91E-01
40	5.04E-01	3.66E-01	2.18E-01	1.25E-01	4.34E-02	2.33E-03	2.69E-01
50	5.79E-01	4.84E-01	3.47E-01	1.91E-01	9.21E-02	1.87E-02	3.64E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 20 -year

0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.200	0.0858	
-0.0400	0.0656	
<0.0400	0.0858	
prob. per bin 0.1398 0.3646 0.2176 0.1184 0.0738		
0 8.58E-02 8.78E-03 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0	.00E+00 1.52	2E-02
10 2.12E-01 4.00E-02 4.60E-03 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0	.00E+00 4.52	2E-02
20 3.26E-01 1.53E-01 2.21E-02 1.69E-03 0.00E+00 0	.00E+00 1.06	6E-01
30 4.92E-01 2.91E-01 8.27E-02 3.21E-02 0.00E+00 2	.33E-03 1.9	7E-01
40 6.25E-01 4.89E-01 2.01E-01 9.80E-02 1.36E-02 2	.33E-03 3.2	2E-01
50 7.18E-01 6.51E-01 3.80E-01 1.89E-01 6.78E-02 9	.32E-03 4.4	8E-01

value for a

P[Nfin<0.2K] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	2.86E-02	1.10E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.40E-03
	10	1.70E-01	2.03E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.12E-02
	20	3.42E-01	1.00E-01	1.10E-02	1.69E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.70E-02
	30	5.68E-01	2.91E-01	6.62E-02	1.69E-02	0.00E+00	2.33E-03	2.02E-01
	40	7.02E-01	5.40E-01	2.18E-01	8.78E-02	1.08E-02	2.33E-03	3.54E-01
	50	7.97E-01	7.15E-01	4.11E-01	1.84E-01	7.05E-02	9.32E-03	4.89E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 10 -year

		Val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.1	2000+	E(X)
and markin	4	0.0400	0.0040	0.0176	04404	0.0729	0.0050	
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3040	0.2176	0.1104	0.0738	0.0656	
	0	1.77E-01	1.76E-01	4.16E-01	6.94E-01	9.11E-01	9.93E-01	4.14E-01
	10	1.45E-01	1.06E-01	3.60E-01	6.45E-01	8.67E-01	9.93E-01	3.63E-01
	20	1.23E-01	7.79E-02	2.90E-01	5.59E-01	7.32E-01	9.70E-01	3.12E-01
	30	3.00E-02	6.42E-02	2.40E-01	4.56E-01	6.10E-01	9.37E-01	2.59E-01
	40	2.00E-02	3.84E-02	2.03E-01	3.60E-01	5.18E-01	8.60E-01	2.16E-01
	50	2.00E-02	1.21E-02	1.65E-01	2.31E-01	3.90E-01	7.97E-01	1.68E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 20 -year

	val	ue for r					
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
4	0.1398	03646	0.2176	0 1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0.1090	0.0040	0.2170	0.1104	0.0750	0.0000	
0	2.53E-01	5.31E-01	9.30E-01	9.98E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.09E-01
10	1.92E-01	3.45E-01	8.45E-01	9.88E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	6.13E-01
20	1.62E-01	2.22E-01	6.70E-01	9.32E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	5.19E-01
	0 10 20	 <0.0400 0.1398 0 2.63E-01 10 1.92E-01 20 1.62E-01 	value for Y 0.04 <0.0400	0.04 0.08 <0.0400	0.04 0.08 0.12 <0.0400	0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0 <0.0400	0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.2000+ <0.0400

30	1.14E-01	1.06E-01	4.96E-01	8.26E-01	9.57E-01	9.98E-01	4.17E-01
40	2.00E-02	6.42E-02	3.31E-01	6.74E-01	9.00E-01	9.91E-01	3.29E-01
50	0.00E+00	2.08E-02	2.37E-01	5.46E-01	7.51E-01	9.63E-01	2.62E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 30 -year

		Val	ue lor i					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob per bin	4	0.0400	03646	0.2176	01184	0.0738	0.0858	
prop. per pin		0.1390	0.3040	0.2170	0.1104	0.0750	0.0000	
	0	3.99E-01	8.10E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.47E-01
	10	2.49E-01	6.03E-01	9.77E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.45E-01
	20	1.72E-01	3.90E-01	9.03E-01	9.95E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	6.40E-01
	30	1.23E-01	1.87E-01	7.11E-01	9.49E-01	1.00E+00	9.98E-01	5.12E-01
	40	0.00E+00	9.98E-02	5.09E-01	8.45E-01	9.46E-01	9.98E-01	4.03E-01
	50	0.00E+00	3.13E-02	3.24E-01	6.76E-01	8.32E-01	9.88E-01	3.08E-01

value for r

P[Nfin>Ncur] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00
	10	8.51 E-01	9.92E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.76E-01
	20	4.39E-01	8.95E-01	9.91E-01	9.98E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.81E-01
	30	1.63E-01	5.60E-01	9.27E-01	9.83E-01	1.00E+00	9.98E-01	7.04E-01
	40	1.00E-02	2.83E-01	7.57E-01	9.05E-01	9.89E-01	9.98E-01	5.35E-01
	50	0.00E+00	1.12E-01	5.37E-01	8.06E-01	9.30E-01	9.91E-01	4.07E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 20 -year

		Val	ue for r					
	A	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	1.00E+00						
** <i>n</i> 2 19	10	9.00E-01	9.96E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.85E-01
	20	4.78E-01	9.14E-01	9.93E-01	9.98E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.94E-01
	30	1.79E-01	6.02E-01	9.32E-01	9.87E-01	1.00E+00	9.98E-01	7.23E-01
	40	1.72E-02	3.07E-01	7.65E-01	9.07E-01	9.89E-01	9.98E-01	5.47E-01
	50	0.00E+00	1.17E-01	5.46E-01	8.09E-01	9.30E-01	9.91E-01	4.11E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	9.13E-01	9.98E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.87E-01
	20	4.95E-01	9.20E-01	9.94E-01	9.98E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.99E-01
	30	1.83E-01	6.18E-01	9.39E-01	9.87E-01	1.00E+00	9.98E-01	7.31E-01
	40	1.72E-02	3.09E-01	7.66E-01	9.07E-01	9.92E-01	9.98E-01	5.48E-01
	50	0.00E+00	1.18E-01	5.48E-01	8.11E-01	9.30E-01	9.91E-01	4.12E-01

1.88E+01

2.01E+01

2.01E+01

1.27E+01

1.44E+01

1.66E+01

9.12E+00

1.13E+01

1.36E+01

ELI (MOLE) [COAL]	-year						
		val	ue for r				
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+
prob. per bin	A	0.0400	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858
	0	2.42E+01	1.97E+01	1.14E+01	8.20E+00	6.50E+00	4.32E+00
	10	2.54E+01	2.29E+01	1.31E+01	8.86E+00	6.67E+00	4.19E+00
	20	2.30E+01	2.56E+01	1.59E+01	1.05E+01	7.67E+00	4.58E+00

2.66E+01

2.57E+01

2.66E+01

 	 -	

		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	-	0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02

30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02
40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02

value for r

0.1398

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

2.04E+01

1.23E+01

1.00E+00

30

40

50

<0.0400

0

10

20

value for r

value for r

0.04

0.3646

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

P[N98>N93] 20 -year

P[N98>N93] 30 -year

prob. per bin

			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.01E-02	8.95E-02	1.60E-01	5.55E-01	7.22E-02

0.08

0.2176

1.01E-02

1.01E-02

1.01E-02

0.12

0.1184

8.95E-02

8.95E-02

8.95E-02

0.16 0.2000+

0.0858

5.55E-01

5.55E-01

5.55E-01

5.55E-01

5.55E-01

5.55E-01

0.0738

1.60E-01

1.60E-01

1.60E-01

1.60E-01

1.60E-01

1.60E-01

E(X)

7.22E-02

7.22E-02

7.22E-02

7.22E-02

7.22E-02

7.22E-02

E(X)

5.00E+00

5.75E+00

6.74E+00

1.49E+01

1.65E+01

1.76E+01

1.77E+01

1.66E+01

1.60E+01

P[N98>N93] 10 -year

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
	0	2.42E+01	1.97E+01	1.14E+01	8.20E+00	6.50E+00	4.32E+00	1.49E+01
	10	2.54E+01	2.29E+01	1.31E+01	8.86E+00	6.67E+00	4.19E+00	1.65E+01
	20	2.30E+01	2.56E+01	1.59E+01	1.05E+01	7.67E+00	4.58E+00	1.76E+01
	30	2.04E+01	2.66E+01	1.88E+01	1.27E+01	9.12E+00	5.00E+00	1.77E+01
	40	1.23E+01	2.57E+01	2.01E+01	1.44E+01	1.13E+01	5.75E+00	1.66E+01
	50	1.00E+00	2.66E+01	2.01E+01	1.66E+01	1.36E+01	6.74E+00	1.60E+01

E[T(MSYL) recov] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
2			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
***	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1398	0.3646	0.2176	0.1184	0.0738	0.0858	
4ª 2 -	0	2.42E+01	1.97E+01	1.14E+01	8.20E+00	6.50E+00	4.32E+00	1.49E+01
	10	2.54E+01	2.29E+01	1.31E+01	8.86E+00	6.67E+00	4.19E+00	1.65E+01
	20	2.30E+01	2.56E+01	1.59E+01	1.05E+01	7.67E+00	4.58E+00	1.76E+01
	30	2.04E+01	2.66E+01	1.88E+01	1.27E+01	9.12E+00	5.00E+00	1.77E+01
	40	1.23E+01	2.57E+01	2.01E+01	1.44E+01	1.13E+01	5.75E+00	1.66E+01
	50	1.00E+00	2.66E+01	2.01E+01	1.66E+01	1.36E+01	6.74E+00	1.60E+01

Sandbar
Elcat/vrl 10 -vear

Alt Catch Cond on r

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	3.89E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.67E+0
	10	3.99E+02	9.78E-01	9.78E-01	9.78E-01	9.78E-01	9.78E-01	2.82E+0
	20	4.08E+02	1.96E+00	1.96E+00	1.96E+00	1.96E+00	1.96E+00	2.98E+0
	30	4.18E+02	2.94E+00	2.94E+00	2.94E+00	2.94E+00	2.94E+00	3.14E+0
	40	4.28E+02	3.85E+00	3.89E+00	3.89E+00	3.91E+00	3.91E+00	3.30E+0
and the second second	50	438E+02	473E+00	474E+00	483E+00	489E+00	4895+00	3 45E+0

E[cat/yr] 20-year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	0	0.0400				and the second	and a start of	
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	2.04E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.40E+01
	10	2.14E+02	5.12E-01	5.12E-01	5.12E-01	5.12E-01	5.12E-01	1.51E+01
	20	2.24E+02	1.03E+00	1.03E+00	1.03E+00	1.03E+00	1.03E+00	1.63E+01
	30	2.34E+02	1.50E+00	1.53E+00	1.53E+00	1.54E+00	1.54E+00	1.75E+01
	40	2.44E+02	1.90E+00	1.96E+00	2.03E+00	2.05E+00	2.05E+00	1.86E+01
	50	2.52E+02	2.14E+00	2.25E+00	2.45E+00	2.55E+00	2.56E+00	1.95E+01
E[cat/yr] 30 -year						<i>A</i> r		
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)

<0.0400

78

	0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
0	1.38E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.46E+00
10	1.48E+02	3.47E-01	3.47E-01	3.47E-01	3.47E-01	3.47E-01	1.05E+01
20	1.59E+02	6.92E-01	6.94E-01	6.94E-01	6.94E-01	6.94E-01	1.15E+01
30	1.69E+02	9.83E-01	1.01E+00	1.04E+00	1.04E+00	1.04E+00	1.25E+01
40	1.77E+02	1.21E+00	1.29E+00	1.37E+00	1.39E+00	1.39E+00	1.34E+01
50	1.82E+02	1.14E+00	1.42E+00	1.59E+00	1.72E+00	1.73E+00	1.39E+01
	0 10 20 30 40 50	0.0686 0 1.38E+02 10 1.48E+02 20 1.59E+02 30 1.69E+02 40 1.77E+02 50 1.82E+02	0.0686 0.19 0 1.38E+02 0.00E+00 10 1.48E+02 3.47E-01 20 1.59E+02 6.92E-01 30 1.69E+02 9.83E-01 40 1.77E+02 1.21E+00 50 1.82E+02 1.14E+00	0.0686 0.19 0.1343 0 1.38E+02 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 1.48E+02 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 20 1.59E+02 6.92E-01 6.94E-01 30 1.69E+02 9.83E-01 1.01E+00 40 1.77E+02 1.21E+00 1.29E+00 50 1.82E+02 1.14E+00 1.42E+00	0.0686 0.19 0.1343 0.1179 0 1.38E+02 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 1.48E+02 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 20 1.59E+02 6.92E-01 6.94E-01 6.94E-01 30 1.69E+02 9.83E-01 1.01E+00 1.04E+00 40 1.77E+02 1.21E+00 1.29E+00 1.37E+00 50 1.82E+02 1.14E+00 1.42E+00 1.59E+00	0.0686 0.19 0.1343 0.1179 0.1057 0 1.38E+02 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 1.48E+02 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 20 1.59E+02 6.92E-01 6.94E-01 6.94E-01 6.94E-01 30 1.69E+02 9.83E-01 1.01E+00 1.04E+00 1.04E+00 40 1.77E+02 1.21E+00 1.29E+00 1.37E+00 1.39E+00 50 1.82E+02 1.14E+00 1.42E+00 1.59E+00 1.72E+00	0.0686 0.19 0.1343 0.1179 0.1057 0.3836 0 1.38E+02 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 10 1.48E+02 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 3.47E-01 20 1.59E+02 6.92E-01 6.94E-01 6.94E-01 6.94E-01 6.94E-01 30 1.69E+02 9.83E-01 1.01E+00 1.04E+00 1.04E+00 1.04E+00 40 1.77E+02 1.21E+00 1.29E+00 1.37E+00 1.39E+00 1.39E+00 50 1.82E+02 1.14E+00 1.42E+00 1.59E+00 1.72E+00 1.73E+00

E[N 2008 in k] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0400	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	.0.1057	0.3836	
Proce ber own	0	1.58E+03	1.60E+03	1.56E+03	1.70E+03	1.99E+03	1.66E+03	1.67E+03
	10	1.48E+03	1.52E+03	1.49E+03	1.64E+03	1.95E+03	1.64E+03	1.62E+03
	20	1.38E+03	1.41E+03	1.37E+03	1.53E+03	1.86E+03	1.59E+03	1.53E+03
	30	1.27E+03	1.30E+03	1.25E+03	1.42E+03	1.77E+03	1.54E+03	1.45E+03
	40	1.16E+03	1.18E+03	1.13E+03	1.30E+03	1.67E+03	1.49E+03	1.36E+03
	50	1.04E+03	1.07E+03	1.01E+03	1.18E+03	1.57E+03	1.43E+03	1.26E+03

E[N 2018 in k] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
		-	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0400	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	1.91E+03	2.15E+03	2.29E+03	2.45E+03	2.53E+03	1.82E+03	2.10E+03
	10	1.69E+03	1.95E+03	2.12E+03	2.33E+03	2.46E+03	1.78E+03	1.99E+03
	20	1.45E+03	1.72E+03	1.90E+03	2.17E+03	2.37E+03	1.74E+03	1.85E+03
	30	1.21E+03	1.47E+03	1.65E+03	1.99E+03	2.27E+03	1.70E+03	1.71E+03
	40	9.73E+02	1.22E+03	1.39E+03	1.78E+03	2.15E+03	1.65E+03	1.56E+03
	50	7.59E+02	9.77E+02	1.12E+03	1.53E+03	2.02E+03	1.60E+03	1.40E+03

E[N 2028 in k] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	2.26E+03	2.66E+03	2.81E+03	2.78E+03	2.66E+03	1.83E+03	2.35E+03
	10	1.92E+03	2.37E+03	2.61E+03	2.67E+03	2.59E+03	1.80E+03	2.21E+03
	20	1.54E+03	2.02E+03	2.35E+03	2.53E+03	2.52E+03	1.76E+03	2,05E+03
	30	1.15E+03	1.65E+03	2.03E+03	2.36E+03	2.44E+03	1.72E+03	1.86E+03
	40	8.09E+02	1.26E+03	1.65E+03	2.13E+03	2.34E+03	1.68E+03	1.66E+03
	50	5.39E+02	9.24E+02	1.24E+03	1.84E+03	2.22E+03	1.64E+03	1.46E+03

E[N 2008 / K] 10 -year

	value	forr					
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2	+000+	E(X)
	<0.0400						
prob. per bin	0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	

	0	3.25E-01	4.04E-01	4.74E-01	5.79E-01	7.41E-01	9.20E-01	6.62E-01
	10	3.06E-01	3.83E-01	4.51E-01	5.58E-01	7,25E-01	9.05E-01	6.44E-01
	20	2.82E-01	3.54E-01	4.15E-01	5.20E-01	6.91E-01	8.80E-01	6.14E-01
	30	2.59E-01	3.25E-01	3.79E-01	4.80E-01	6.56E-01	8.54E-01	5.84E-01
	40	2.36E-01	2.96E-01	3.42E-01	4.38E-01	6.19E-01	8.26E-01	5.52E-01
	50	2.12E-01	2.66E-01	3.04E-01	3.95E-01	5.81E-01	7.96E-01	5.19E-01
E[N 2018 / K] 20 -yes	ar							
		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	3.94E-01	5.43E-01	6.93E-01	8.37E-01	9.43E-01	9.92E-01	8.02E-01
	10	3.48E-01	4.92E-01	6.41E-01	7.96E-01	9.15E-01	9.73E-01	7.67E-01
و با م التركية ،	20	2.97E-01	4.31E-01	5.74E-01	7.39E-01	8.81E-01	9.52E-01	7.25E-01
	30	2.46E-01	3.67E-01	4.98E-01	6.75E-01	8.42E-01	9.29E-01	6.79E-01
	40	1.95E-01	3.04E-01	4.17E-01	6.00E-01	7.97E-01	9.05E-01	6.29E-01
	50	1.50E-01	2.42E-01	3.33E-01	5.14E-01	7.43E-01	8.77E-01	5.77E-01
EIN 2028 / K 1 30 -ye	ar							
		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	4.66E-01	6.71E-01	8.49E-01	9.50E-01	9.90E-01	9.99E-01	8.73E-01
	10	3.94E-01	5.97E-01	7.90E-01	9.13E-01	9.65E-01	9.81E-01	8.32E-01
	20	3.14E-01	5.08E-01	7.10E-01	8.64E-01	9.36E-01	9.61E-01	7.83E-01
	30	2.32E-01	4.11E-01	6.11E-01	8.02E-01	9.05E-01	9.41E-01	7.27E-01
	40	1.59E-01	3.13E-01	4.94E-01	7.21E-01	8.68E-01	9.18E-01	6.66E-01
	50	1.03E-01	2.27E-01	3.68E-01	6.14E-01	8.20E-01	8.94E-01	6.02E-01

P[Extinct] 10 -year

20

0.00E+00

		val	le for r					
- 1258 # 4* 			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
147	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
: : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	0.00E+00						
	30	0.00E+00						
	40	0.00E+00	1.50E-02	5.32E-03	6.06E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.29E-03
	50	1.04E-02	3.38E-02	3.19E-02	1.21E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.29E-02
P[Extinct] 20 -year								
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	0	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

30	1.04E-02	2.26E-02	5.32E-03	6.06E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.43E-03
40	8.33E-02	7.52E-02	4.26E-02	1.21E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.71E-02
50	1.98E-01	1.65E-01	1.22E-01	4.24E-02	6.76E-03	1.86E-03	6.79E-02

P[Extinct] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
		0.0.00	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	1.04E-02	3.76E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.43E-03
	30	8.33E-02	5.64E-02	3.19E-02	6.06E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.14E-02
	40	2.19E-01	1.28E-01	7.45E-02	1.21E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.07E-02
	50	4.79E-01	3.46E-01	1.81E-01	8.49E-02	6.76E-03	1.86E-03	1.34E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 10 -year

		vai	ue for r					
		0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	1.25E-01	5.64E-02	1.60E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.14E-02
	10	1.88E-01	7.90E-02	3.19E-02	6.06E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.29E-02
	20	2.60E-01	1.20E-01	5.32E-02	6.06E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.86E-02
	30	3.13E-01	2.14E-01	9.57E-02	2.42E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.79E-02
	40	4.17E-01	2.67E-01	2.29E-01	3.64E-02	0.00E+00	1.86E-03	1.15E-01
	50	5.42E-01	3.76E-01	2.71E-01	1.03E-01	6.76E-03	1.86E-03	1.59E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 20 -year

		val	ue for r			•		
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	5.21E-02	7.52E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.00E-03
	10	1.15E-01	3.38E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.43E-02
	20	2.50E-01	7.90E-02	1.60E-02	6.06E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.50E-02
	30	3.85E-01	1.92E-01	5.85E-02	6.06E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.14E-02
	40	5.94E-01	3.46E-01	1.33E-01	3.03E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.28E-01
	50	6.77E-01	4.40E-01	2.98E-01	9.70E-02	6.76E-03	1.86E-03	1.83E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
	4	0.400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	2.08E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.43E-03
	10	6.25E-02	1.13E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.43E-03
	20	2.40E-01	6.77E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.93E-02
	30	5.00E-01	1.81E-01	3.72E-02	6.06E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.43E-02
	40	6.56E-01	3.87E-01	1.22E-01	3.03E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.39E-01
	50	7.71E-01	5.08E-01	3.19E-01	9.70E-02	6.76E-03	1.86E-03	2.05E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	8.33E-02	2.59E-01	4.84E-01	7.58E-01	9.93E-01	1.00E+00	6.98E-01
	10	6.25E-02	2.29E-01	4.10E-01	6.91E-01	9.80E-01	9.98E-01	6.71E-01
	20	5.21E-02	2.11E-01	3.03E-01	5.64E-01	9.60E-01	9.98E-01	6.35E-01
	30	3.13E-02	1.65E-01	2.23E-01	4.36E-01	8.99E-01	9.91E-01	5.90E-01
	40	0.00E+00	9.77E-02	9.57E-02	3.27E-01	8.31E-01	9.81E-01	5.34E-01
	50	0.00E+00	4.51E-02	4.79E-02	2.42E-01	8.11E-01	9.61E-01	4.98E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
-B			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
		<0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	1.67E-01	5.98E-01	9.36E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.58E-01
	10	1.15E-01	5.19E-01	8.14E-01	9.94E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.22E-01
	20	5.21E-02	3.23E-01	7.07E-01	9.70E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.64E-01
	30	3.13E-02	2.41E-01	5.80E-01	9.03E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.21E-01
	40	1.04E-02	2.18E-01	4.26E-01	8.06E-01	9.93E-01	9.98E-01	6.82E-01
	50	0.00E+00	1.39E-01	2.50E-01	5.94E-01	9.60E-01	9.98E-01	6.14E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 30 -year

		vali	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	4.27E-01	8.65E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.35E-01
	10	2.60E-01	6.81E-01	9.89E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.87E-01
	20	1.04E-01	5.41E-01	9.20E-01	9.94E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.40E-01
- 100 -	30	3.13E-02	3.91E-01	7.93E-01	9.70E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.86E-01
Tak. Letter	40	1.04E-02	2.33E-01	5.96E-01	9.21E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.23E-01
	50	0.00E+00	1.73E-01	3.99E-01	8.24E-01	9.87E-01	9.98E-01	6.71E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 10 -year

E(X)
1.00E+00
9.99E-01
9.69E-01
8.98E-01
8.19E-01
7.39E-01

			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00
	10	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00
	20	7.40E-01	9.62E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.75E-01
	30	2.71E-01	8.12E-01	9.68E-01	9.94E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.09E-01
	40	8.33E-02	5.19E-01	8.78E-01	9.70E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.26E-01
	50	0.00E+00	2.97E-01	6.86E-01	9.03E-01	9.93E-01	9.98E-01	7.43E-01
P[N98>N93] 10 -year								
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400					and and and the	
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

1.21E-01

1.21E-01

1.21E-01

1.21E-01

1.21E-01

5.81E-01

5.81E-01

5.81E-01

5.81E-01

5.81E-01

8.53E-01

8.53E-01

8.53E-01

8.53E-01

8.53E-01

4.03E-01

4.03E-01

4.03E-01

4.03E-01

4.03E-01

					1
>Ncur] 30 -year					
	value for r				
	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2000+	

value for r

<0.0400

0.0686

0.04

0.19

0	1.00E+00						
10	9.90E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.99E-01
20	7.29E-01	9.62E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.74E-01
30	2.60E-01	8.01E-01	9.63E-01	9.94E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.06E-01
40	8.33E-02	5.15E-01	8.78E-01	9.70E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.25E-01
50	0.00E+00	2.97E-01	6.81E-01	9.03E-01	9.93E-01	9.98E-01	7.42E-01

0.08

0.1343

0.12

0.1179

0.16 0.2000+

0.1057

E(X)

0.3836

P[Nfin

P[Nfin>Ncur] 20 -year

prob. per bin

10

20

30

40

50

0.00E+00

P[N98>N93] 20 -year

		vai	ue for r					
	•	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
P[N98>N93] 30 -year						(j.		

prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.21E-01	5.81E-01	8.53E-01	4.03E-01

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
π.	0	2.60E+01	1.77E+01	1.18E+01	8.16E+00	4.53E+00	2.42E+00	9.10E+00
	10	2.79E+01	1.99E+01	1.32E+01	8.69E+00	4.39E+00	2.10E+00	9.77E+00
-14	20	2.88E+01	2.21E+01	1.58E+01	9.99E+00	4.82E+00	2.23E+00	1.04E+01
	30	2.72E+01	2.33E+01	1.88E+01	1.18E+01	5.51E+00	2.41E+00	1.04E+01
	40	2.32E+01	2.21E+01	2.14E+01	1.40E+01	6.27E+00	2.61E+00	9.83E+00
	50	1.00E+00	2.10E+01	2.37E+01	1.64E+01	7.41E+00	2.98E+00	9.45E+00

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 20 -year

		val	ue for r		*			
		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	2.60E+01	1.77E+01	1.18E+01	8.16E+00	4.53E+00	2.42E+00	9.10E+00
	10	2.79E+01	1.99E+01	1.32E+01	8.69E+00	4.39E+00	2.10E+00	9.77E+00
	20	2.88E+01	2.21E+01	1.58E+01	9.99E+00	4.82E+00	2.23E+00	1.04E+01
	30	2.72E+01	2.33E+01	1.88E+01	1.18E+01	5.51E+00	2.41E+00	1.04E+01
	40	2.32E+01	2.21E+01	2.14E+01	1.40E+01	6.27E+00	2.61E+00	9.83E+00
	50	1.00E+00	2.10E+01	2.37E+01	1.64E+01	7.41E+00	2.98E+00	9.45E+00

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 30 -year

•

down		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.0686	0.19	0.1343	0.1179	0.1057	0.3836	
	0	2.60E+01	1.77E+01	1.18E+01	8.16E+00	4.53E+00	2.42E+00	9.10E+00
	10	2.79E+01	1.99E+01	1.32E+01	8.69E+00	4.39E+00	2.10E+00	9.77E+00
	20	2.88E+01	2.21E+01	1.58E+01	9.99E+00	4.82E+00	2.23E+00	1.04E+01
	30	2.72E+01	2.33E+01	1.88E+01	1.18E+01	5.51E+00	2.41E+00	1.04E+01
	40	2.32E+01	2.21E+01	2.14E+01	1.40E+01	6.27E+00	2.61E+00	9.83E+00
	50	1.00E+00	2.10E+01	2.37E+01	1.64E+01	7.41E+00	2.98E+00	9.45E+00
Blacktip	8	aseline C	ond on r					
E[cat/yr] 10 -year								
		val	ue for r					
		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.068	0.1434	

	0	5.85E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.78E+01
	10	6.09E+02	2.45E+00	2.45E+00	2.45E+00	2.45E+00	2.44E+00	7.28E+01
	20	6.34E+02	4.87E+00	4.88E+00	4.89E+00	4.89E+00	4.89E+00	7.78E+01
	30	6.57E+02	6.83E+00	6.89E+00	7.09E+00	7.11E+00	7.20E+00	8.23E+01
	40	6.76E+02	7.62E+00	7.68E+00	8.10E+00	8.01E+00	9.27E+00	8.55E+01
	50	6.91E+02	7.41E+00	7.60E+00	8.31E+00	7.53E+00	8.82E+00	8.71E+01
E[cat/yr] 20 -year								
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	3.06E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.55E+01
	10	3.32E+02	1.28E+00	1.28E+00	1.28E+00	1.28E+00	1.28E+00	3.96E+01
	20	3.56E+02	2.37E+00	2.48E+00	2.54E+00	2.56E+00	2.56E+00	4.35E+01
	30	3.74E+02	2.58E+00	2.95E+00	3.31E+00	3.50E+00	3.73E+00	4.61E+01
	40	3.86E+02	2.23E+00	2.69E+00	3.39E+00	3.37E+00	4.06E+00	4.74E+01
	50	3.94E+02	1.68E+00	2.22E+00	2.84E+00	2.72E+00	3.99E+00	4.79E+01
E[cat/yr] 30 -year								
		val	ue for r					
	-	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	2.07E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.41E+01
	10	2.34E+02	8.67E-01	8.68E-01	8.68E-01	8.68E-01	8.67E-01	2.79E+01
	20	2.55E+02	1.43E+00	1.62E+00	1.71E+00	1.73E+00	1.73E+00	3.10E+01

10	2.34E+02	8.67E-01	8.68E-01	8.68E-01	8.68E-01	8.67E-01	2.79E+01
20	2.55E+02	1.43E+00	1.62E+00	1.71E+00	1.73E+00	1.73E+00	3.10E+01
30	2.68E+02	1.33E+00	1.79E+00	2.13E+00	2.34E+00	2.53E+00	3.28E+01
40	2.76E+02	9.55E-01	1.38E+00	2.07E+00	2.12E+00	2.73E+00	3.34E+01
50	2.79E+02	3.67E-01	1.02E+00	1.59E+00	1.65E+00	2.45E+00	3.35E+01

E[N 2008 in k] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	2.61E+03	2.03E+03	2.16E+03	2.37E+03	2.41E+03	2.62E+03	2.29E+03
	10	2.36E+03	1.78E+03	1.91E+03	2.15E+03	2.19E+03	2.47E+03	2.07E+03
	20	2.06E+03	1.48E+03	1.60E+03	1.83E+03	1.87E+03	2.22E+03	1.77E+03
	30	1.81E+03	1.18E+03	1.28E+03	1.50E+03	1.52E+03	1.92E+03	1.46E+03
	40	1.57E+03	9.08E+02	9.74E+02	1.17E+03	1.16E+03	1.57E+03	1.15E+03
	50	1.36E+03	6.77E+02	7.18E+02	8.77E+02	8.54E+02	1.24E+03	8.91E+02

E[N 2018 in k] 20 -year

		Val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.06	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.068	0.1434	
	0	3.08E+03	2.87E+03	3.36E+03	3.71E+03	3.68E+03	3.33E+03	3.27E+03
	10	2.51E+03	2.27E+03	2.83E+03	3.30E+03	3.38E+03	3.19E+03	2.81E+03
	20	1.92E+03	1.59E+03	2.13E+03	2.71E+03	2.90E+03	2.98E+03	2.23E+03

30	1.45E+03	9.92E+02	1.42E+03	1.98E+03	2.19E+03	2.65E+03	1.63E+03
40	1.08E+03	5.70E+02	8.62E+02	1.32E+03	1.44E+03	1.98E+03	1.09E+03
50	8.03E+02	2.94E+02	4.82E+02	8.15E+02	9.22E+02	1.44E+03	6.92E+02

E[N 2028 in k] 30 -year value for r 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.2000+ E(X) 0.04 <0.0400 0.116 0.272 0.234 0.1466 0.088 0.1434 prob. per bin 4.09E+03 3.44E+03 3.94E+03 3.60E+03 4.39E+03 0 3.74E+03 4.31E+03 3.67E+03 4.03E+03 3.88E+03 3.32E+03 3.34E+03 10 2.68E+03 2.82E+03 20 1.81E+03 1.74E+03 2.68E+03 3.42E+03 3.51E+03 3.18E+03 2.58E+03 1.62E+03 2.44E+03 2.73E+03 2.92E+03 1.78E+03 30 1.18E+03 9.01E+02 2.23E+03 8.62E+02 1.53E+03 1.71E+03 1.09E+03 40 7.61E+02 3.88E+02 50 4.78E+02 1.31E+02 3.71E+02 8.53E+02 1.04E+03 1.55E+03 6.16E+02

E[N 2008 / K] 10 -year

.

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	3.00E-01	3.20E-01	4.07E-01	5.02E-01	5.71E-01	7.60E-01	4.50E-01
	10	2.68E-01	2.79E-01	3.60E-01	4.54E-01	5.20E-01	7.16E-01	4.06E-01
	20	2.33E-01	2.31E-01	3.00E-01	3.85E-01	4.41E-01	6.42E-01	3.47E-01
	30	1.99E-01	1.83E-01	2.38E-01	3.12E-01	3.55E-01	5.52E-01	2.85E-01
	40	1.68E-01	1.40E-01	1.80E-01	2.41E-01	2.68E-01	4.45E-01	2.22E-01
	50	1.43E-01	1.03E-01	1.32E-01	1.79E-01	1.94E-01	3.47E-01	1.69E-01

E[N 2018 / K] 20 -year

		Val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	<0.0400							
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
-	0	3.59E-01	4.54E-01	6.34E-01	7.86E-01	8.76E-01	9.68E-01	6.45E-01
*	10	2.86E-01	3.58E-01	5.32E-01	6.99E-01	8.03E-01	9.26E-01	5.61 E-01
	20	2.11E-01	2.47E-01	3.98E-01	5.71E-01	6.87E-01	8.66E-01	4.53E-01
	30	1.53E-01	1.52E-01	2.63E-01	4.13E-01	5.15E-01	7.68E-01	3.37E-01
	40	1.10E-01	8.62E-02	1.58E-01	2.71E-01	3.32E-01	5.65E-01	2.23E-01
	50	7.91E-02	4.41E-02	8.72E-02	1.63E-01	2.06E-01	4.01E-01	1.41E-01

E[N 2028 / K] 30 -year

		Val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	<0.0400 0.116		0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	4.22E-01	5.92E-01	8.12E-01	9.31E-01	9.75E-01	9.97E-01	7.65E-01
	10	3.05E-01	4.45E-01	6.89E-01	8.54E-01	9.23E-01	9.62E-01	6.62E-01
	20	1.96E-01	2.69E-01	5.00E-01	7.22E-01	8.35E-01	9.22E-01	5.25E-01
	30	1.21E-01	1.37E-01	2.99E-01	5.10E-01	6.44E-01	8.47E-01	3.74E-01
	40	7.48E-02	5.83E-02	1.57E-01	3.12E-01	3.95E-01	6.36E-01	2.33E-01
	50	4.62E-02	1.98E-02	6.60E-02	1.69E-01	2.31E-01	4.34E-01	1.34E-01

P[Extinct] 10 -year								
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	<	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	2.00E-04
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	2.00E-04
	20	1.72E-03	5.15E-03	3.42E-03	1.36E-03	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	2.80E-03
	30	7.41E-02	6.99E-02	6.15E-02	3.41E-02	3.18E-02	1.95E-02	5.26E-02
	40	2.05E-01	2.21E-01	2.15E-01	1.72E-01	1.82E-01	5.30E-02	1.83E-01
	50	3165.01	3045-01	3 70E_01	321E-01	384E-01	2 70E-01	3.53E.M

P[Extinct] 20 -year

		Vdi	ue ioi i					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob por bin		0.0400	0.272	0.224	0 1 466	0.088	01/2/	
prob. per bin		0.110	0.272	0.234	0.1400	0.000	0.1404	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	2.00E-04
	10	1.72E-03	7.35E-04	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	6.00E-04
	20	1.47E-01	7.43E-02	3.08E-02	9.55E-03	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	4.60E-02
	30	3.22E-01	3.28E-01	2.33E-01	1.39E-01	8.86E-02	2.93E-02	2.13E-01
	40	4.85E-01	5.65E-01	4.76E-01	3.38E-01	3.43E-01	2.08E-01	4.31E-01
	50	6.31E-01	7.38E-01	6.53E-01	5.57E-01	5.75E-01	3.77E-01	6.13E-01

P[Extinct] 30 -year

		Val	ue for r					
		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	2.00E-04
	10	3.45E-03	7.35E-04	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	8.00E-04
	20	2.78E-01	1.75E-01	6.75E-02	1.77E-02	2.27E-03	1.40E-03	9.86E-02
	30	4.74E-01	4.90E-01	3.12E-01	1.81E-01	1.02E-01	2.93E-02	3.01E-01
	40	6.55E-01	7.25E-01	6.02E-01	4.05E-01	3.89E-01	2.13E-01	5.38E-01
	50	7.66E-01	9.15E-01	7.66E-01	6.34E-01	6.21E-01	4.37E-01	7.27E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	2.85E-01	1.35E-01	3.42E-02	1.36E-03	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	7.80E-02
	10	3.85E-01	2.89E-01	1.17E-01	2.46E-02	4.55E-03	1.40E-03	1.55E-01
	20	4.64E-01	4.38E-01	2.72E-01	1.31E-01	7.27E-02	4.18E-03	2.63E-01
	30	5.31E-01	5.83E-01	4.40E-01	2.70E-01	2.32E-01	4.32E-02	3.89E-01
	40	6.14E-01	6.84E-01	5.73E-01	4.39E-01	4.30E-01	2.46E-01	5.29E-01
	50	6.81E-01	7.97E-01	6.90E-01	5.70E-01	5.96E-01	4.28E-01	6.55E-01

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.068	0.1434	
	0	1.16E-01	3.83E-01	8.29E-01	9.95E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	6.89E-01
	10	6.03E-02	1.94E-01	5.97E-01	9.13E-01	9.93E-01	9.99E-01	5.64E-01
	20	2.24E-02	4.71E-02	3.37E-01	6.94E-01	8.84E-01	9.96E-01	4.17E-01
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.81E-01	4.49E-01	5.98E-01	9.36E-01	2.95E-01
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.05E-02	2.59E-01	3.57E-01	6.79E-01	1.72E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.96E-02	2.25E-01	4.62E-01	1.01E-01
PINfin>MSYL1 30 -vear			•					
		val	ue for r			*		
	•	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)

P[Nfin>MSYL] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	<	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	5.69E-02	5.07E-02	2.56E-01	5.20E-01	6.93E-01	9.69E-01	3.56E-01
	10	2.59E-02	1.91E-02	1.79E-01	4.07E-01	5.27E-01	9.12E-01	2.87E-01
	20	2.07E-02	0.00E+00	1.20E-01	2.74E-01	3.55E-01	7.78E-01	2.13E-01
	30	6.90E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.39E-01	2.39E-01	5.38E-01	1.19E-01
	40	1.72E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.05E-02	1.75E-01	4.18E-01	8.74E-02
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.82E-03	1.32E-01	3.47E-01	6.24E-02

P[Nfin>MSYL] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	<0.0400							
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
3.456.5	0	6.21E-02	7.35E-04	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.40E-03
	10	3.31E-01	9.12E-02	2.56E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	6.40E-02
	20	5.24E-01	3.97E-01	1.45E-01	2.05E-02	6.82E-03	1.40E-03	2.07E-01
	30	7.03E-01	6.82E-01	4.28E-01	2.31E-01	1.16E-01	2.93E-02	4.15E-01
	40	7.85E-01	8.83E-01	6.68E-01	4.63E-01	4.11E-01	2.19E-01	6.23E-01
	50	9.79E-01	9.82E-01	8.21E-01	6.79E-01	6.39E-01	4.41E-01	7.92E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	1.16E-01	1.91E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.86E-02
	10	3.59E-01	1.49E-01	1.88E-02	1.36E-03	0.00E+00	1.40E-03	8.70E-02
	20	5.00E-01	4.13E-01	1.82E-01	4.78E-02	1.59E-02	1.40E-03	2.22E-01
	30	6.31E-01	6.44E-01	4.26E-01	2.42E-01	1.57E-01	2.93E-02	4.01E-01
	40	7.41E-01	8.17E-01	6.39E-01	4.54E-01	4.23E-01	2.20E-01	5.93E-01
	50	7.81E-01	9.38E-01	7.89E-01	6.47E-01	6.25E-01	4.41E-01	7.43E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 20 -year

	0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
0	3.76E-01	7.39E-01	9.97E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	8.56E-01
10	7.41E-02	4.18E-01	8.79E-01	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	9.99E-01	7.05E-01
20	2.41E-02	1.53E-01	5.91E-01	9.00E-01	9.82E-01	9.99E-01	5.44E-01
30	0.00E+00	1.69E-02	3.01E-01	6.49E-01	7.96E-01	9.68E-01	3.79E-01
40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.58E-02	3.68E-01	4.98E-01	7.66E-01	2.23E-01
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.11E-02	1.58E-01	2.71E-01	5.27E-01	1.25E-01
	0 10 20 30 40 50	0.116 0 3.76E-01 10 7.41E-02 20 2.41E-02 30 0.00E+00 40 0.00E+00 50 0.00E+00	0.116 0.272 0 3.76E-01 7.39E-01 10 7.41E-02 4.18E-01 20 2.41E-02 1.53E-01 30 0.00E+00 1.69E-02 40 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 50 0.00E+00 0.00E+00	0.116 0.272 0.234 0 3.76E-01 7.39E-01 9.97E-01 10 7.41E-02 4.18E-01 8.79E-01 20 2.41E-02 1.53E-01 5.91E-01 30 0.00E+00 1.69E-02 3.01E-01 40 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 6.58E-02 50 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 1.11E-02	0.116 0.272 0.234 0.1466 0 3.76E-01 7.39E-01 9.97E-01 1.00E+00 10 7.41E-02 4.18E-01 8.79E-01 9.99E-01 20 2.41E-02 1.53E-01 5.91E-01 9.00E-01 30 0.00E+00 1.69E-02 3.01E-01 6.49E-01 40 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 6.58E-02 3.68E-01 50 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 1.11E-02 1.58E-01	0.116 0.272 0.234 0.1466 0.088 0 3.76E-01 7.39E-01 9.97E-01 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 10 7.41E-02 4.18E-01 8.79E-01 9.99E-01 1.00E+00 20 2.41E-02 1.53E-01 5.91E-01 9.00E-01 9.82E-01 30 0.00E+00 1.69E-02 3.01E-01 6.49E-01 7.96E-01 40 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 6.58E-02 3.68E-01 4.98E-01 50 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 1.11E-02 1.58E-01 2.71E-01	0.116 0.272 0.234 0.1466 0.088 0.1434 0 3.76E-01 7.39E-01 9.97E-01 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 1.00E+00 10 7.41E-02 4.18E-01 8.79E-01 9.99E-01 1.00E+00 9.99E-01 20 2.41E-02 1.53E-01 5.91E-01 9.00E-01 9.82E-01 9.99E-01 30 0.00E+00 1.69E-02 3.01E-01 6.49E-01 7.96E-01 9.68E-01 40 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 6.58E-02 3.68E-01 4.98E-01 7.66E-01 50 0.00E+00 0.00E+00 1.11E-02 1.58E-01 2.71E-01 5.27E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 10 -year

49 31-

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	6.35E-01	9.24E-01	9.97E-01	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	9.99E-01	9.36E-01
	20	6.90E-02	4.98E-01	8.37E-01	9.69E-01	9.86E-01	9.99E-01	7.11E-01
	30	0.00E+00	1.51E-01	5.01E-01	7.54E-01	8.46E-01	9.68E-01	4.82E-01
	40	0.00E+00	1.32E-02	2.47E-01	4.86E-01	5.52E-01	7.69E-01	2.91E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.74E-02	2.84E-01	3.39E-01	5.43E-01	1.56E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 20 -year

		Vai	ue for f					
-			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	7.43E-01	9.60E-01	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.99E-01	9.59E-01
	20	1.10E-01	5.62E-01	8.77E-01	9.82E-01	9.96E-01	9.99E-01	7.46E-01
	30	1.72E-03	1.83E-01	5.36E-01	7.72E-01	8.84E-01	9.71E-01	5.06E-01
	40	0.00E+00	1.32E-02	2.76E-01	5.13E-01	5.73E-01	7.80E-01	3.06E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.42E-02	2.97E-01	3.46E-01	5.57E-01	1.62E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	7.69E-01	9.66E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.99E-01	9.64E-01
	20	1.26E-01	5.82E-01	8.83E-01	9.82E-01	9.98E-01	9.99E-01	7.55E-01
	30	1.72E-03	1.90E-01	5.60E-01	7.82E-01	8.89E-01	9.71E-01	5.15E-01
	40	0.00E+00	1.32E-02	2.85E-01	5.23E-01	5.82E-01	7.82E-01	3.10E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	5.81E-02	2.99E-01	3.48E-01	5.57E-01	1.68E-01

P[N98>1	N93] 1	O-year
---------	--------	--------

	value				E(X)		
		0.04 0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2000+			
	<0.0400						
prob. per bin	0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	

0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.27E-03	8.79E-02	1.28E-02
10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.27E-03	8.79E-02	1.28E-02
20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.27E-03	8.79E-02	1.28E-02
30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.27E-03	8.79E-02	1.28E-02
40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.27E-03	8.79E-02	1.28E-02
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.27E-03	8.79E-02	1.28E-02

0.12

0.1466

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.12

0.1466

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.16 0.2000+

0.16 0.2000+

0.088

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

0.088

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

2.27E-03

0.1434

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

0.1434

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

8.79E-02

E(X)

1.28E-02

E(X)

0.08

0.234

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.08

0.234

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

value for r

<0.0400

0

10

20

30

40

50

0

10

20

30

40

0.116

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.116

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

<0.0400

0.04

0.272

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.04

0.272

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

0.00E+00

value for r

	50	0.00E+00	

EII(MSYL)(recov) 10 -ve	<i>r</i> ear
-------------------------	--------------

P[N98>N93] 20 -year

P[N98>N93] 30 -year

prob. per bin

prob. per bin

		Val	ue lor l					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2000+		E(X)
prob per bin	4	0.0400	0.272	0.234	01466	0.088	01434	
prop. per pill		0.110	0.212	0.201	0.1400	0.000	0.1404	
	0	2.72E+01	2.28E+01	1.48E+01	1.05E+01	8.76E+00	5.64E+00	1.59E+01
	10	2.92E+01	2.66E+01	1.87E+01	1.25E+01	9.98E+00	6.02E+00	1.82E+01
	20	2.60E+01	2.88E+01	2.29E+01	1.64E+01	1.30E+01	7.30E+00	1.89E+01
	30	3.50E+00	3.06E+01	2.47E+01	1.91E+01	1.65E+01	9.12E+00	1.85E+01
	40	1.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.91E+01	2.14E+01	1.74E+01	1.04E+01	1.84E+01
	60	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.99E+01	2.47E+01	1.69E+01	9.63E+00	1.64E+01

E[T(MSYL)[recov] 20 -year

		Val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.068	0.1434	
	0	2.72E+01	2.28E+01	1.48E+01	1.05E+01	8.76E+00	5.64E+00	1.59E+01
	10	2.92E+01	2.66E+01	1.87E+01	1.25E+01	9.98E+00	6.02E+00	1.82E+01
	20	2.60E+01	2.88E+01	2.29E+01	1.64E+01	1.30E+01	7.30E+00	1.89E+01

30	3.50E+00	3.06E+01	2.47E+01	1.91E+01	1.65E+01	9.12E+00	1.85E+01
40	1.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.91E+01	2.14E+01	1.74E+01	1.04E+01	1.84E+01
50	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.99E+01	2.47E+01	1.69E+01	9.63E+00	1.64E+01

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 30 -year

5

f

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	A	0.116	0.272	0.234	0.1466	0.088	0.1434	
	0	2.72E+01	2.28E+01	1.48E+01	1.05E+01	8.76E+00	5.64E+00	1.59E+01
	10	2.92E+01	2.66E+01	1.87E+01	1.25E+01	9.98E+00	6.02E+00	1.82E+01
	20	2.60E+01	2.88E+01	2.29E+01	1.64E+01	1.30E+01	7.30E+00	1.89E+01
	30	3.50E+00	3.06E+01	2.47E+01	1.91E+01	1.65E+01	9.12E+00	1.85E+01
	40	1.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.91E+01	2.14E+01	1.74E+01	1.04E+01	1.84E+01
	50	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.99E+01	2.47E+01	1.69E+01	9.63E+00	1.64E+01

Blacktip

Alt Catch Cond on r

E[cat/yr] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
	4	0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	6.67E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.57E+01
	10	6.92E+02	2.45E+00	2.45E+00	2.45E+00	2.45E+00	2.45E+00	9.09E+01
	20	7.16E+02	4.89E+00	4.89E+00	4.89E+00	4.88E+00	4.89E+00	9.62E+01
	30	7.40E+02	7.09E+00	7.18E+00	7.24E+00	7.17E+00	7.29E+00	1.01E+02
	40	7.61E+02	8.20E+00	8.52E+00	8.47E+00	8.24E+00	9.45E+00	1.05E+02
	50	7.79E+02	7.86E+00	8.66E+00	8.52E+00	7.83E+00	1.10E+01	1.08E+02

E[cat/yr] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	.2000+	E(X)
prob por bin	4	0.0400	0.2009	0 2266	0 1202	0.0762	0 1200	
prob. per bin		0.1204	0.3006	0.2200	0.1292	0.0702	0.1300	
	0	3.49E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.49E+01
	10	3.75E+02	1.28E+00	1.28E+00	1.28E+00	1.28E+00	1.28E+00	4.93E+01
	20	4.00E+02	2.46E+00	2.54E+00	2.56E+00	2.56E+00	2.56E+00	5.36E+01
	30	4.20E+02	2.80E+00	3.30E+00	3.51E+00	3.60E+00	3.81E+00	5.67E+01
	40	4.34E+02	2.45E+00	3.24E+00	3.55E+00	3.67E+00	4.83E+00	5.86E+01
	50	4.44E+02	1.80E+00	2.75E+00	2.93E+00	3.20E+00	5.23E+00	5.95E+01

E[cat/yr] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob por bin	4	0.0400		0.0000	0.4000	0.0700	0.4000	
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	2.37E+02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.04E+01
	10	2.63E+02	8.68E-01	8.68E-01	8.68E-01	8.68E-01	8.68E-01	3.45E+01
	20	2.86E+02	1.54E+00	1.69E+00	1.74E+00	1.73E+00	1.74E+00	3.81E+01
	30	3.01E+02	1.45E+00	2.03E+00	2.30E+00	2.39E+00	2.58E+00	4.04E+01
	40	3.11E+02	1.07E+00	1.81E+00	2.08E+00	2.27E+00	3.25E+00	4.15E+01
	50	3.17E+02	4.13E-01	1.35E+00	1.65E+00	1.88E+00	3.48E+00	4.19E+01

E[N 2008 in k] 10 -year

value for r

			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0400 0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	2.82E+03	2.13E+03	2.43E+03	2.57E+03	2.66E+03	2.96E+03	2.50E+03
	10	2.57E+03	1.88E+03	2.20E+03	2.35E+03	2.44E+03	2.82E+03	2.27E+03
	20	2.30E+03	1.58E+03	1.88E+03	2.02E+03	2.10E+03	2.55E+03	1.97E+03
	30	2.02E+03	1.27E+03	1.55E+03	1.66E+03	1.72E+03	2.22E+03	1.65E+03
	40	1.76E+03	9.82E+02	1.23E+03	1.31E+03	1.34E+03	1.84E+03	1.33E+03
	50	1.53E+03	7.29E+02	9.43E+02	9.94E+02	1.01E+03	1.40E+03	1.03E+03

E[N 2018 in k] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
- + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +				0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	3.35E+03	3.07E+03	3.87E+03	4.23E+03	4.31E+03	3.95E+03	3.65E+03
	10	2.78E+03	2.46E+03	3.33E+03	3.80E+03	3.98E+03	3.81E+03	3.18E+03
	20	2.18E+03	1.76E+03	2.62E+03	3.17E+03	3.46E+03	3.62E+03	2.58E+03
	30	1.66E+03	1.10E+03	1.86E+03	2.36E+03	2.69E+03	3.34E+03	1.94E+03
	40	1.25E+03	6.34E+02	1.21E+03	1.59E+03	1.85E+03	2.90E+03	1.37E+03
	50	9.30E+02	3.28E+02	7.37E+02	1.03E+03	1.21E+03	2.24E+03	9.22E+02

E[N 2028 in k] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0400 0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	3.93E+03	4.08E+03	5.03E+03	5.15E+03	4.88E+03	4.08E+03	4.48E+03
	10	3.01E+03	3.14E+03	4.38E+03	4.77E+03	4.66E+03	3.97E+03	3.84E+03
	20	2.08E+03	1.99E+03	3.40E+03	4.15E+03	4.29E+03	3.84E+03	3.03E+03
. in	30	1.39E+03	1.03E+03	2.24E+03	3.05E+03	3.47E+03	3.65E+03	2.16E+03
11	40	8.87E+02	4.46E+02	1.30E+03	1.91E+03	2.32E+03	3.27E+03	1.42E+03
	50	5.29E+02	1.55E+02	6.69E+02	1.17E+03	1.45E+03	2.67E+03	8.97E+02

E[N 2008 / K] 10 -year

100

	value for r									
		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)		
prob. per bin	٩	0.0400	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388			
	0	2.83E-01	2.92E-01	3.87E-01	4.59E-01	5.26E-01	7.27E-01	4.12E-01		
	10	2.56E-01	2.57E-01	3.49E-01	4.18E-01	4.83E-01	6.92E-01	3.76E-01		
	20	2.25E-01	2.15E-01	2.97E-01	3.58E-01	4.13E-01	6.24E-01	3.25E-01		
	30	1.95E-01	1.73E-01	2.45E-01	2.93E-01	3.37E-01	5.43E-01	2.72E-01		
	40	1.67E-01	1.33E-01	1.93E-01	2.29E-01	2.59E-01	4.48E-01	2.16E-01		
	50	1.43E-01	9.78E-02	1.47E-01	1.72E-01	1.92E-01	3.36E-01	1.65E-01		

E[N 2018 / K] 20 -year

ţ

1

	val	ue for r					
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
<0.0400							. ,
	0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
0	3.40E-01	4.22E-01	6.15E-01	7.57E-01	8.55E-01	9.68E-01	6.07E-01
10	2.77E-01	3.37E-01	5.28E-01	6.79E-01	7.90E-01	9.35E-01	5.34E-01
20	2.10E-01	2.39E-01	4.14E-01	5.63E-01	6.85E-01	8.88E-01	4.41E-01
30	1.55E-01	1.48E-01	2.92E-01	4.16E-01	5.30E-01	8.20E-01	3.39E-01
40	1.14E-01	8.44E-02	1.88E-01	2.75E-01	3.58E-01	7.11E-01	2.44E-01
50	8.25E-02	4.30E-02	1.13E-01	1.76E-01	2.29E-01	5.47E-01	1.65E-01
	0 10 20 30 40 50	val <0.0400 0.1284 0 3.40E-01 10 2.77E-01 20 2.10E-01 30 1.55E-01 40 1.14E-01 50 8.25E-02	value for r 0.04 <0.0400 0.1284 0.3008 0 3.40E-01 4.22E-01 10 2.77E-01 3.37E-01 20 2.10E-01 2.39E-01 30 1.55E-01 1.48E-01 40 1.14E-01 8.44E-02 50 8.25E-02 4.30E-02	value for r 0.04 0.08 <0.0400	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 <0.0400	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0. <0.0400	value for r 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.2000+ <0.0400

E[N 2028 / K] 30 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	<0.0400							
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	4.02E-01	5.61E-01	8.01E-01	9.20E-01	9.70E-01	9.97E-01	7.33E-01
	10	3.00E-01	4.30E-01	6.96E-01	8.52E-01	9.25E-01	9.70E-01	6.41E-01
	20	1.98E-01	2.70E-01	5.38E-01	7.39E-01	8.50E-01	9.39E-01	5.19E-01
	30	1.27E-01	1.38E-01	3.51E-01	5.38E-01	6.85E-01	8.93E-01	3.83E-01
	40	7.85E-02	5.88E-02	2.01E-01	3.32E-01	4.52E-01	8.02E-01	2.62E-01
	50	4.63E-02	2.04E-02	1.02E-01	1.99E-01	2.74E-01	6.52E-01	1.72E-01

P[Extinct] 10 -year

		Agi	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	8.83E-04	0.00E+00	2.63E-03	0.00E+00	4.00E-04
	30	4.52E-02	3.39E-02	2.21E-02	1.39E-02	2.36E-02	7.21E-03	2.56E-02
	40	1.51E-01	1.62E-01	1.29E-01	1.35E-01	1.58E-01	3.46E-02	1.32E-01
	50	2.57E-01	3.58E-01	2.92E-01	3.03E-01	3.60E-01	1.05E-01	2.88E-01

P[Extinct] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	0.00E+00						
	20	5.14E-02	3.99E-02	8.83E-03	0.00E+00	2.63E-03	0.00E+00	2.08E-02
	30	2.63E-01	2.72E-01	1.42E-01	8.82E-02	6.30E-02	1.01E-02	1.65E-01
	40	4.16E-01	5.23E-01	3.68E-01	3.08E-01	2.84E-01	5.76E-02	3.63E-01
	50	5.39E-01	7.19E-01	5.71E-01	5.43E-01	5.01E-01	1.84E-01	5.49E-01
P[Extinct] 30 -year								
		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)

<0.0400

93

prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	0.00E+00						
	10	3.12E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.00E-04
	20	2.03E-01	1.12E-01	2.47E-02	0.00E+00	2.63E-03	0.00E+00	6.56E-02
	30	4.13E-01	4.45E-01	2.20E-01	1.18E-01	8.40E-02	1.01E-02	2.60E-01
	40	5.86E-01	6.93E-01	4.79E-01	4.03E-01	3.47E-01	6.48E-02	4.80E-01
	50	6.78E-01	9.05E-01	6.88E-01	6.19E-01	5.67E-01	1.99E-01	6.66E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
•	<	<0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
. *	0	2.79E-01	1.86E-01	4.06E-02	1.55E-03	2.63E-03	0.00E+00	1.01E-01
	10	3.75E-01	3.32E-01	1.13E-01	2.63E-02	7.87E-03	0.00E+00	1.78E-01
2	20	4.63E-01	4.86E-01	2.53E-01	1.38E-01	7.61E-02	7.21E-03	2.88E-01
	30	5.25E-01	6.06E-01	4.07E-01	3.19E-01	2.44E-01	3.60E-02	4.07E-01
	40	5.86E-01	7.15E-01	5.53E-01	4.89E-01	4.28E-01	9,80E-02	5.25E-01
	50	6.32E-01	8.33E-01	6.51E-01	6.19E-01	5.96E-01	2.16E-01	6.35E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 20 -year

			valu	ue for r					
				0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
		~	<0.0400						
prob. per bin			0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
		0	1.22E-01	2.39E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.28E-02
		10	3.30E-01	1.63E-01	8.83E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	9.34E-02
		20	4.89E-01	4.36E-01	1.30E-01	1.86E-02	7.87E-03	0.00E+00	2.26E-01
		30	5.95E-01	6.47E-01	3.64E-01	2.07E-01	1.26E-01	1.15E-02	3.91E-01
		40	6.73E-01	8.34E-01	5.74E-01	4.61E-01	3.68E-01	7.06E-02	5.65E-01
		50	7.18E-01	9.59E-01	7.24E-01	6.53E-01	5.85E-01	2.06E-01	7.02E-01

P[Nfin<0.2K] 30 -year

2.51		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	2.49E-02	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.20E-03
	10	2.84E-01	8.38E-02	8.83E-04	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	6.18E-02
	20	5.09E-01	3.90E-01	8.74E-02	7.74E-03	2.63E-03	0.00E+00	2.04E-01
	30	6.40E-01	6.67E-01	3.35E-01	1.81E-01	9.71E-02	1.01E-02	3.91E-01
	40	9.41E-01	8.90E-01	5.85E-01	4.54E-01	3.60E-01	6.63E-02	6.16E-01
	50	9.94E-01	9.73E-01	7.41E-01	6.55E-01	5.80E-01	2.02E-01	7.45E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 10 -year

	value						
		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2	+000	E(X)
	<0.0400						
prob. per bin	0.1284	0.3006	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	

0	1.40E-02	0.00E+00	2.25E-01	3.45E-01	5.35E-01	9.63E-01	2.72E-01
10	1.09E-02	0.00E+00	1.88E-01	2.86E-01	4.25E-01	9.37E-01	2.43E-01
20	7.79E-03	0.00E+00	1.77E-02	1.95E-01	2.70E-01	8.26E-01	1.65E-01
30	3.12E-03	0.00E+00	9.71E-03	1.49E-01	1.84E-01	7.03E-01	1.33E-01
40	3.12E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	7.12E-02	1.47E-01	2.84E-01	6.02E-02
50	1.56E-03	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.32E-02	1.18E-01	2.33E-01	4.46E-02

P[Nfin>MSYL] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
	4	0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	7.01E-02	2.95E-01	8.10E-01	9.92E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	6.24E-01
	10	2.18E-02	1.19E-01	5.90E-01	9.18E-01	9.95E-01	1.00E+00	5.05E-01
	20	7.79E-03	1.46E-02	3.59E-01	- 6.56E-01	8.87E-01	9.93E-01	3.77E-01
	30	1.56E-03	0.00E+00	2.15E-01	4.04E-01	6.19E-01	9.67E-01	2.82E-01
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	4.06E-02	2.40E-01	3.91E-01	8.78E-01	1.92E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.53E-03	1.41E-01	2.18E-01	7.26E-01	1.36E-01

P[Nfin>MSYL] 30 -year

		Val	ue for t					
		0.0400	0.04	0,08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	1.59E-01	6.72E-01	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	7.93E-01
	10	5.61E-02	3.69E-01	9.11E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	6.69E-01
	20	6.23E-03	1.21E-01	6.40E-01	9.24E-01	9.84E-01	1.00E+00	5.15E-01
	30	1.56E-03	1.13E-02	3.58E-01	6.50E-01	8.48E-01	9.89E-01	3.71E-01
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.53E-01	3.90E-01	5.62E-01	9.27E-01	2.56E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	3.09E-02	2.18E-01	3.31E-01	7.84E-01	1.69E-01

makes for

value for r

P[Nfin>Ncur] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
	-	0.400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	7.23E-01	9.59E-01	9.99E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.52E-01
	20	8.72E-02	5.72E-01	9.19E-01	9.88E-01	9.95E-01	1.00E+00	7.34E-01
	30	0.00E+00	2.13E-01	6.42E-01	8.14E-01	8.92E-01	9.89E-01	5.20E-01
	40	0.00E+00	1.40E-02	3.68E-01	5.26E-01	6.38E-01	9.34E-01	3.34E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.17E-01	3.28E-01	4.09E-01	7.94E-01	2.10E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 20 -year

		Val						
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	1.00E+00						
	10	8.05E-01	9.83E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.70E-01
	20	1.26E-01	6.30E-01	9.44E-01	9.95E-01	9.97E-01	1.00E+00	7.63E-01

30	0.00E+00	2.50E-01	6.67E-01	8.36E-01	9.03E-01	9.90E-01	5.41E-01
40	0.00E+00	2.33E-02	3.81E-01	5.51E-01	6.40E-01	9.34E-01	3.43E-01
50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.72E-01	3.39E-01	4.20E-01	7.98E-01	2.26E-01

P[Nfin>Ncur] 30 -year

		Val	lue for r		•			
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	<	0.0400 0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00
	10	8.30E-01	9.89E-01	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	1.00E+00	9.75E-01
	20	1.43E-01	6.54E-01	9.51E-01	9.97E-01	9.97E-01	1.00E+00	7.74E-01
	30	4.67E-03	2.59E-01	6.78E-01	8.45E-01	9.11E-01	9.90E-01	5.48E-01
	40	0.00E+00	2.39E-02	3.87E-01	5.57E-01	6.43E-01	9.35E-01	3.46E-01
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	1.73E-01	3.42E-01	4.20E-01	7.98E-01	2.26E-01

P[N98>N93] 10 -year

		Val	ue lor l					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin	4	0.0400 0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
1.1.1.1	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8,79E-02	1.42E-02
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02

unline for a

P[N98>N93] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
		0.0400	0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
-	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02

P[N98>N93] 30 -year

	value for r							
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.	2000+	E(X)
	<0.0400							
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	10	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	20	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	30	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	40	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02
	50	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.63E-02	8.79E-02	1.42E-02

E[T(MSYL)[recov] 10 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	.2000+	E(X)
	4	0.0400						
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	2.94E+01	2.46E+01	1.56E+01	1.18E+01	9.88E+00	6.66E+00	1.79E+01
	10	3.03E+01	2.79E+01	1.90E+01	1.37E+01	1.10E+01	7.08E+00	1.99E+01
	20	2.93E+01	2.99E+01	2.31E+01	1.75E+01	1.37E+01	8.24E+00	2.05E+01
	30	1.39E+01	3.09E+01	2.53E+01	2.07E+01	1.69E+01	9.57E+00	2.02E+01
	40	1.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.81E+01	2.16E+01	1.79E+01	1.15E+01	1.91E+01
	50	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.98E+01	2.26E+01	1.88E+01	1.40E+01	1.90E+01

E[T(MSYL)[recov] 20 -year

		val	ue for r					
			0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0	2000+	E(X)
	<0.0400							
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	2.94E+01	2.46E+01	1.56E+01	1.18E+01	9.88E+00	6.66E+00	1.79E+01
	10	3.03E+01	2.79E+01	1.90E+01	1.37E+01	1.10E+01	7.08E+00	1.99E+01
	20	2.93E+01	2.99E+01	2.31E+01	1.75E+01	1.37E+01	8.24E+00	2.05E+01
	30	1.39E+01	3.09E+01	2.53E+01	2.07E+01	1.69E+01	9.57E+00	2.02E+01
	40	1.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.81E+01	2.16E+01	1.79E+01	1.15E+01	1.91E+01
	50	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.98E+01	2.26E+01	1.88E+01	1.40E+01	1.90E+01

E[T(MSYL)|recov] 30 -year

	-							
		val	ue for r					
	<0.0400		0.04	0.08	0.12	0.16 0.2000+		E(X)
prob. per bin		0.1284	0.3008	0.2266	0.1292	0.0762	0.1388	
	0	2.94E+01	2.46E+01	1.56E+01	1.18E+01	9.88E+00	6.66E+00	1.79E+01
	10	3.03E+01	2.79E+01	1.90E+01	1.37E+01	1.10E+01	7.08E+00	1.99E+01
	20	2.93E+01	2.99E+01	2.31E+01	1.75E+01	1.37E+01	8.24E+00	2.05E+01
	30	1.39E+01	3.09E+01	2.53E+01	2.07E+01	1.69E+01	9.57E+00	2.02E+01
	40	1.00E+00	3.10E+01	2.81E+01	2.16E+01	1.79E+01	1.15E+01	1.91E+01
	50	1.00E+00	0.00E+00	2.98E+01	2.26E+01	1.88E+01	1.40E+01	1.90E+01



86



Figure 1.1. Four views of the available catch rate information for large coastal sharks. Available time series have been adjusted through a Generalized Linear Modeling procedure so as to appear on a common scale.



Large Coastal Shark Catch Rates since 1993











Figure 1.2. Four views of the available catch rate information for sandbar sharks. Available time series have been adjusted through a Generalized Linear Modeling procedure so as to appear on a common scale.



99



Blacktip Shark Catch Rates

Figure 1.3. Four views of the available catch rate information for blacktip sharks. Available time series have been adjusted through a Generalized Linear Modeling procedure so as to appear on a common scale.



100

Blacktip Shark Catch Rates since 1985



. NMFS LL SE

• pelagic logbook

MRFSS, HBOAT, TX1

A MRESS, HBOAT, TX2

× SHARK Observer

X NMFS LL NE

Figure 4.1. Relative catch rate patterns resulting from a Generalized Linear Model fit to the available catch-rate time series. Mean and approximate 80% confidence levels are shown.



101



Figure 4.2. Abundance of Large Coastal Sharks predicted by the production model (expected value from Bayesian results referred to as "Model") versus the indices of abundance used in the production model fitting. The first panel presents all the data from 1974-97; the second panel plots only the 1990-97 data; in the third panel data is presented for 1993-97, plotting only those indices with 4 or more data points during that period. The model fit in this figure used the baseline catch and index data. Note, the indices of abundance are scaled by the inverse of the expected q estimated from the production model analysis.







Figure 4.3. Abundance of Large Coastal Sharks predicted by the production model (expected value from Bayesian results referred to as "Model") versus the indices of abundance used in the production model fitting. The first panel presents all the data from 1974-97; the second panel plots only the 1990-97 data; in the third panel data is presented for 1993-97, plotting only those indices with 4 or more data points during that period. The model fit in this figure used the alternative catch scenario. All else is as in the baseline scenario. Note, the indices of abundance are scaled by the inverse of the expected q estimated from the production model analysis.







Figure 4.4. Abundance of Sandbar sharks predicted by the production model (expected value from Bayesian results referred to as "Model") versus the indices of abundance used in the production model fitting. The first panel presents all the data from 1974-97; the second panel plots only the 1990-97 data; in the third panel data is presented for 1993-97, plotting only those indices with 4 or more data points during that period. The model fit in this figure used the baseline catch and index data. Note, the indices of abundance are scaled by the inverse of the expected q estimated from the production model analysis.







Figure 4.5. Abundance of Sandbar sharks predicted by the production model (expected value from Bayesian results referred to as "Model") versus the indices of abundance used in the production model fitting. The first panel presents all the data from 1974-97; the second panel plots only the 1990-97 data; in the third panel data is presented for 1993-97, plotting only those indices with 4 or more data points during that period. The model fit in this figure used the alternative catch scenario. All else is as in the baseline scenario. Note, the indices of abundance are scaled by the inverse of the expected q estimated from the production model analysis. à









Year

Figure 4.6. Abundance of Blacktip sharks predicted by the production model (expected value from Bayesian results referred to as "Model") versus the indices of abundance used in the production model fitting. The first panel presents all the data from 1974-97; the second panel plots only the 1990-97 data; in the third panel data is presented for 1993-97, plotting only those indices with 4 or more data points during that period. The model fit in this figure used the baseline catch and index data. Note, the indices of abundance are scaled by the inverse of the expected q estimated from the production model analysis.



Figure 4.7. Abundance of Blacktip sharks predicted by the production model (expected value from Bayesian results referred to as "Model") versus the indices of abundance used in the production model fitting. The first panel presents all the data from 1974-97; the second panel plots only the 1990-97 data; in the third panel data is presented for 1993-97, plotting only those indices with 4 or more data points during that period. The model fit in this figure used the alternative catch scenario. All else is as in the baseline 'scenario. Note, the indices of abundance are scaled by the inverse of the expected q estimated from the production model analysis.






2 . .

Figure 4.8. Large coastal baseline trajectories of N/K. Also, median projections (with 90% CI's) under future catch scenarios of (0, 10, 20, 30, 40 and 50% of the 1995 harvest).



\$

Figure 4.9. Sandbar shark baseline trajectories of N/K. Also, median projections (with 90% CI's) under future catch scenarios of (0, 10, 20, 30, 40 and 50% of the 1995 harvest).